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This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their
meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may
also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda.

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting
the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100.

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIOENRS
Agenda
7:00 PM- Regular Meeting

March 06, 2017
Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex

7:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME

Chairman Clayton Riggs

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner Garry Meiggs

ITEM 1. PUBLIC COMMENTS

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and
number of comments may be limited upon the Chairman'’s discretion due to
scheduling and other issues.

ITEM 2. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA (For discussion and possible action)
ITEM 3. PRESENTATIONS (For discussion and possible action)
A. Presentation by Gary Hobbs - American Red Cross...........oeen.. (Pgs. 6-7)
B. 2016 Year in Review
Cameron Lowe, NC Cooperative EXteNSION ........ceomecinserneerssesissessneses (Pg. 8)
C. Presentation by Brian Lannon - Watershed Projects.........cc........ (Pgs. 9-10)
Agenda - Camden County Board of Commissioners March 06, 2017
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ITEM 4. OLD BUSINESS (For discussion and possible action)
A. Recommendation on RFQ for Architectural/Engineering
(A/E) Services - Mich@el BrilIRATT ........evvererererrsrssssssisssissrissssssnnns (Pgs. 11-13)
ITEM 5. PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. RECONVENE Public Hearing - Special Use Permit Application
(UDO 2016-08-10) Mining Operation for B&M ............cccccreruuer.. (Pgs. 14-58)
ITEM 6. NEW BUSINESS (For discussion and possible action)
A. FY 15-16 County Audit by Greg Allison
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & C0., PA ...ecvercvrrevrrrrrrrenn, (Pgs. 59-202)
B. Monthly Tax Report - January 2017 - Lisa Anderson............ (Pgs. 203-210)
C. Annual Report & Resolution No. 2017-02-03
Bland Baker, Trillium Health ReSOUTCES......couwrrmvrsrnsrissssssnnns (Pgs. 211-231)
D. Brand Change- Camden County Eco Industrial Park
CRATLIE BAUMAN couvvoererirerirsirssrssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssans (Pgs. 232-233)
ITEM 7. BOARD APPOINTMENTS (For discussion and possible action)
ITEM 8. CONSENT AGENDA
A 2016-11-21 BOC Minutes = DI Qft......ocomeecomseronserisssrsnserisssssons (Pgs. 234-262)
B. 2017-02-20 BOC Minutes — DI Qft......cmeevomeronsersnserinsesisssesanns (Pgs. 263-295)
C. 16-17 Budget AMENdmMENLS .....ooccoveromerreersmereneesssessseesssesanssssneses (Pgs. 296-299)
D. CCS Budget AMENAMENTS ....coceeeeeeeerserireerssriseesssesiseesssesassssssenes (Pgs. 300-304)
E. VTS Refunds OVer $100.00 ......eerccmmmeeeerrsseseesisssssessissssseeses (Pgs. 305-307)
F. DMV Monthly Report - April Renewals ...........eoueeereeenn. (Pgs. 308-309)
G. Proclamation - National County Government Month ....... (Pgs. 310-284)
H. Proclamation: American Red Cross Month 2017 ................. (Pgs. 348-349)
Agenda - Camden County Board of Commissioners March 06, 2017
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ITEM 9. Commissioners' Report

ITEM 10. County Manager's Report
A. Status Report on RFQ for Construction Manager

at Risk (CMR) Services - Michael Brillnart............... (Pgs. 350-351)

ITEM 11. INFORMATION, (Reports & Minutes from other Agencies)
A. January 2017 LiDrary SEACISTICS.....commrimssomsssssssssssssassssssinens (Pgs. 352-354)
B. EMS REPOTES vovrrversrissrissssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssans (Pgs. 355-360)
C. ARPO Transportation UPAQte.........ssmsimssisssisssssssssssssees (Pgs. 361-367)
D. National Association Of COUNEIES ........cwcereeveerreersserneesssesineennns (Pgs. 368-369)
E. D17 Lo 0ol 1y o Al Lo K (Pgs. 370-371)
F. FY 16-17 Sales Tax Revenue Collections.........c..coessrssenns (Pgs. 372-373)
G. Sheriffs Monthly Report - January 2017 .....oerissserinsens (Pgs. 374-375)
H. MOA Program Calendar Feb - APT 2017 ...eeoveerveerisnseriniens (Pgs. 376-381)

ITEM 12. OTHER MATTERS (For discussion and possible action)

ITEM 13. ADJOURN

Agenda - Camden County Board of Commissioners March 06, 2017
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CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

Presentations

Item Number: 3.A

Meeting Date: March 06, 2017

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board
Administration
Prepared by: Angela Wooten

Item Title Presentation by Gary Hobbs - American Red Cross

Attachments: Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style (PDF)

Presentation by: ~ Gary Hobbs
American Red Cross

Consent Agenda Item 8.F - Proclamation: American Red Cross Month 2017

Packet Pg. 5




Angela Wooten

3.A1

From: Self, Carolyn J. <carolyn.self2@redcross.org>
Sent: Tuesday, February 14, 2017 10:26 AM

To: info@camdencountync.gov

Subject: RedCross proclamation

Attachments: mircm-localizable-mayoral-proclamation.docx

The American Red Cross would like to have this proclamation at your March 6, 2017 commissioners meeting at 7:00
p.m.. The person representing the Red Cross for the proclamation will be Gary Hobbs a volunteer for our chapter. We

would like to thank you for your support of the American Red Cross.

Carolyn Self
Community Volunteer Leader | Greater Albemarle Area

Eastern NC Region
1409-B Parkview Drive
Elizabeth City, NC 27909
Tel. (252) 335-2185

Cell (252) 333-2588

Attachment: Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style (1565 : Presentation by Gary Hobbs - American Red Cross)
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CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

Presentations
Item Number: 3.B
Meeting Date: March 06, 2017
Submitted By: Cameron Lowe, Cooperative Extension Director
NC Cooperative Extension
Prepared by: Angela Wooten
Item Title 2016 Year in Review — Cameron Lowe, NC Cooperative
Extension
Attachments:
Presentation by: Cameron S. Lowe
County Extension Director
NG Cooperative Extension
Summary: 2016 Year in Review

3.B
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CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

Presentations

Item Number: 3.C

Meeting Date: March 06, 2017

Submitted By: Michael Brillhart, County Manager
Administration
Prepared by: Angela Wooten

Item Title Presentation by Brian Lannon - Watershed Projects

Attachments: Watershed Projects (PDF)

Presentation by: Brian Lannon

Soil & Water Technician

3.C
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Summary of Watershed Projects

North River Watershed

4/11/2016 Run Swamp Canal — Buckhorn Ditch around bend to Hwy 34 culverts
10/16/2015  Run Swamp Canal — bend to Hwy 34 culverts

2/10/2015 Run Swamp Canal — Hwy 34 to Indiantown Creek (State Funds)

4/19/2013 Buckhorn Ditch to Indiantown Road (Farmer Funded)

Sawyer’s Creek Watershed
8/26/2015 Seymour Drive to NC 158

8/26/2016 Scotland Road to Sawyer’s Creek Road & Spur

Shiloh Watershed
8/26/2015 Trotman Road to Portahonk Creek & Tributary
Dailey Road to Pasquotank River

5/2/2016 Barlett’s Landing to Pasquotank River

South Mills Watershed
8/26/2015 Elm Street to Water Plant Shed
Main Street to Water Plant Shed

3/28/2016 NC 343 North to Joyce Creek

$13,275
$2,360
$10,000

$8,976

$11,760

$22,125

$7,938

$7,644

$9,440

$8,526

$12,390

3.C.a

Attachment: Watershed Projects (1572 : Presentation by Brian Lannon - Watershed Projects)
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CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

N\

Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

Old Business

Item Number: 4A

Meeting Date: March 06, 2017

Submitted By: Michael Brillhart, County Manager
Administration
Prepared by: Angela Wooten

Item Title RFQ for Architectural/Engineering (A/E) Services

Attachments:

Summary:

An RFQ for Architectural & Engineering Services was advertised specific to the design of a new
county Public Services Building to be located along North Highway 343 across from the Old
Courthouse. Camden County received four (4) proposals all of which met the required
minimum qualifications as specified within the RFQ. Each firm was scored on the Initial Criteria
to determine the highest qualified submission.

Architect/Design Initial Criteria from RFQ Announcement:

1. Specialized, appropriate expertise for this type of project.

2. Organizational chart and project team expertise.

3. Proposed design approach and innovative design solutions for projects of this type.

4. Project quality control plan including recent experience with cost control, change orders, and maintaining
design and construction schedules.

5. Current workload of firm’s personnel.

6. Record of successfully completed projects without major legal or technical problems.

7. Capabilities and proven experience in extensive evaluation of facilities energy consumption and life cycle

analyses during design of similar projects.

8. Compliance with proposal format requirements.

9. Experience working on projects utilizing Construction Management at Risk construction delivery method.
10. Proximity to and familiarity with Camden County area.

11. (50%) Minority/Women Owned Business

Packet Pg. 10




CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

Scoring:

Firm Initial Score
VIA Design Architects 51

HBA Architecture 51

Oakley Collier Architects | 49.5
Bommerang 41

4.A

A Selection Committee, consisting of County staff, rated the four firms and chose three
firms for the interview process to determine which of the three firms provided the
best qualifications for our needs. Based upon the interviews conducted with each

company, the highest scoring firm was VIA Design Architects.

Interview Panel Scores:

Firm Final Score (0-3)
VIA Design Architects Avg 2.61
HBA Architecture Avg 2.32
Oakley Collier Architects | Avg 2.25

Bommerang

Noted Strengths for VIA:

e Their team will consist of assistance from local firms such as East Carolina

Engineering.

e VIA was well prepared, cohesive, and excited about the proposed project.

e 25 years of Experience
e Budget Sensitive

e Community and Employee Involvement Experience

e Library, Historical & Community Emphasis

e Historically Underutilized Business (50%+ Female Owned)

Packet Pg. 11
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CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

Recommendation:
In accordance with the state mandated RFQ process, the next step is to conduct
negotiations with the highest scoring firm for the proposed fee for services. With
board approval, staff will commence with the necessary steps for securing VIA’s
proposal for services.

1. Motion to accept staff’s recommendation and allow staff to commence with the
necessary steps for securing VIA Design Architects’ proposal for services.

2. Determine availability for Commissioners to meet with approved firm for an
introductory presentation:
Proposed Date/Time: March 20, 2017 9:30 am

Packet Pg. 12
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CAMDENCOUNTY

ew energy. new vision.

N\

Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

Item Number: 5.A

Meeting Date: March 06, 2017

Submitted By: Dave Parks, Permit Officer
Planning & Zoning

Prepared by: Angela Wooten

Item Title Reconvene Public Hearing - Special Use Permit Application
(UDO 2016-08-10) Mining Operation for B&M

Attachments: Agenda Summary SUP Mining Operation (PDF)
SUP Conditions Mining SUP.docx (PDF)
UDO 2016-08-10 Findings of Facts(PDF)
UDO 2016-08-10 Bright Mine - Meiggs Tract  (PDF)

Summary:

B&M Investments of NC, LLC was issued a Special Use Permit on July 16, 2007 for a Mining
Operation at/near the end of Ponderosa Road. Due to the down turn in the economy and
the demand for materials, the Special Use Permit expired. This is a new SUP application for
the same use at the same location.

Planning Board met on October 19, 2016 to consider the Special Use Permit application and
after discussion with staff, adjacent property owners and applicant, Planning Board tabled
the application for consideration at their next meeting. On November 16, 2016, Planning
Board recommended approval of the Special Use Permit application with the conditions as
stated in Staffs Findings on a 6-0 vote.

At the January 3, 2017 Board of Commissioners meeting the Public Hearing was recessed
and staff was directed to facilitate a meeting with applicant, adjacent property owner and
Camden Yard Materials to come up with conditions on the maintenance and upkeep of
Ponderosa Road.

Meeting held on Monday, January 30, 2017 at 6:00 PM. See attached.
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new energy. new vision.

Recommendation:

Reconvene Public Hearing.

5.A
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MOTION MADE BY: |

Camden County Board of Commissioners C. Riggs
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET T. White
G. Meiggs __
R. Krainiak
R. Munro -
NO MOTION
Item Number:
VOTE:
Meeting Date:  January 3, 2017 C. Riggs
Attachments: SUP Findings of Facts with supporting documents | T. White
Submitted By: Planning Department G. Meiggs
R. Krainiak
R. Munro -
ITEM TITLE: Public Hearing — Special Use Permit ABSENT
Application (UDO 2016-08-10) Mining RECUSED _

Operation for B&M Investments of NC, LLC

SUMMARY:

B&M Investments of NC, LLC was issued a Special Use Permit on July 16, 2007 for
a Mining Operation at/near the end of Ponderosa Road. Due to the down turn in
the economy and the demand for materials, the Special Use Permit expired. This is
a new SUP application for the same use at the same location.

Planning Board met on October 19, 2016 to consider the Special Use Permit
application and after discussion with staff, adjacent property owners and applicant,
Planning Board tabled the application for consideration at their next meeting. On
November 16, 2016, Planning Board recommended approval of the Special Use
Permit application with the conditions as stated in Staffs Findings on a 6-0 vote.

RECOMMENDATION:

1) Hold Public Hearing.
2) Motion to amend agenda for consideration.

Attachment: Agenda Summary SUP Mining Operation (1504 : Reconvene Public Hearing - Special Use Permit Application (UDO 2016-08-10)
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Meeting Summary Notes
January 30, 2017 6:00 PM
UDO Ponderosa Road |ssues

The purpose of this meeting was to discuss issues related maintenance of Ponderosa RD if the
Mining SUP application is approved.

Present:

Garry Meiggs & wife Applicant

Jeremee Rosenberger & wife Neighboring property owners

Chris Coleman Owner Camden Yard Materials
Dan Porter Planning Director

Dave Parks Permit Officer

Mr. Parks opened the meeting and read the staff recommendations and invited discussion of each
item below.

In general the applicant, Mr. Meiggs, did not object to the conditions with the exception of using
trip logs to determine proration of costs. He did request that the paving condition alow for use
of asphat millings in place of actually paving that portion of road.

While the Rosenberger’s and Mr. Coleman each had suggestions about suggested conditions,
their stated position is that Ponderosa Rd. is currently unsafe because it is too narrow for two
vehicles to pass. With one mine operating the unsafe condition is exacerbated by the heavy
trucks and frequency of truck hauling. Permitting a second mine on the same road would be
disastrous.

Below are the recommended conditions and the feedback received.

Recommended Additional Conditions

1. The applicant shall paveto NCDOT construction standards a 400" section of Ponderosa
Drive from the entrance to the mine west towards U.S. 17.

How wide should the paving be? The previoudy approved Camden Yard Materials was
required to pave the portion of Ponderosaroad 22 feet wide for the distance that the road travels
adjacent to residentia homes. The applicant requested that he be allowed to use asphalt millings
rather than actually paving the road.

Staff recommendation is as stated above with the addition that the paving shall be 20 feet wide.

Attachment: SUP Conditions Mining SUP.docx (1504 : Reconvene Public Hearing - Special Use Permit Application (UDO 2016-08-10) Mining
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5A.2

2. The applicant shall improve to NCDOT unpaved constructions standards that portion of
Ponderosa Drive starting 400° west of the entrance to the mine to eastern property line
of Camden Y ard Materials.

Mr. Coleman stated that he had improved the road from where the pavement stopped behind
Heritage Court Subdivision to his mine entrance using asphalt or concrete millings as base
materia for theroad. The recommendation would leave and unimproved gap from his mine
entrance to his eastern property boundary. The Rosenberger’s stated that the condition of the
road was aminor item compared to the narrow road which could lead to serious accidents.

Staff recommends extending the improved conditions all the way to the entrance of Camden
Yard Materias.

3. The applicant shall be responsible for any failures to the road improvements mentioned
in conditions above. Road failures shall be corrected within 30 days once identified.

After discussion all parties agreed that road failures will be corrected within 24 hours of the
county providing notice to the active mining operations. Mr. Meiggs offered theat complainants
arewelcome to call him about any problems for hisimmediate attention.

4. Applicant shall install asix (6) foot wooden fence along the front property line of
property now or formerly owned by Rosenberger and Roberts. Property owners shall be
responsible for the maintenance of fence.

The Rosenberger’ s did not appear to object to afence but are concerned that it might encroach
on their septic field which istheir front yard.

5. Theapplicant shall cause to be created and maintained and eight (8) foot wide vegetated
buffer immediately south of the fence. Such buffer shall include trees with a preference
of heavily year round leafy trees at a planting height of at least 8 feet with minimum of 1
% inchin diameter. The applicant shall maintain the vegetated buffer at all times during
the term of the permit.

The Rosenberger’s do want a buffer installed but are concerned about root intrusion into their
drainfield. (afield check on Jan 30 indicated that they have a tree planted in the front yard and
it does not gppear that the landscaping would be any closer to the drain field than the tree)

6. The applicant shall install 10 MPH speed limit signs at a point 500" prior to the entrance
to the mine and at the exit from the mine.

No objections or concerns other than importance of mining operators need to enforce the speed
limit.

7. Private vehicles shall have the right of way at al times when traveling along Ponderosa
Drive.

Attachment: SUP Conditions Mining SUP.docx (1504 : Reconvene Public Hearing - Special Use Permit Application (UDO 2016-08-10) Mining
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All parties agreed that this was very important but once again it was emphasized that the narrow
road does not alow for two vehicles to pass and requires that one vehicle pull off the road a bit
into the farm field. (A field check on Jan 30indicated there are adequate areas for the dump
trucks or owners can pull off to allow for the passing of vehicles. Also thereisaclear line of site
with no obstructions to observe oncoming vehicles)

M aintenance Agreement

The maintenance/upkeep of Ponderosa Drive shall be done on a quarterly basis (Starting in
January of each year) or as needed as determined by Camden County Code Enforcement
Officer by Camden Yard Materialsand B & M Investments of NC, LLC. Costsinvolved
will be determined by the number of trips conducted by each business for that period of
time. Copies of thetrip log will be provided to the County to determine costs for each
business.

(Please understand that this meeting lasted 2 hours with a considerable amount of heated
give and take conversations, and no final formal agreement was achieved. The note takers
have used editorial discretion to summarize the key issues. The staff recommenaations
have been prepared based on input from al parities as well as staff’s overall evaluation of
the project.)

Attachment: SUP Conditions Mining SUP.docx (1504 : Reconvene Public Hearing - Special Use Permit Application (UDO 2016-08-10) Mining
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UDO 2016-08-10
Special Use Permit
Findings of Facts

Packet Pg. 19

PROJECT INFORMATION
File Reference: UDO 2016-08-10 Application Received: 8/18/2016
Project Name; Mining Operation By: David Parks, Permit Officer
PIN: 01-7082-00-68-8936
Applicant: B & M Investments | Application Fee paid: $400 Check # 6322
OfNC, LLC
Address: 1075 N. Hwy 343 Completeness of Application: Application is
South Mills, NC generally complete
Phone: (252) 771-5634
Email: Documents received upon filing of application
or otherwise included:

Agent for Applicant: A.  Land Use/Development Application

Address: B.  Mine Development Plan

Phone: C.  Aerial/Zoning Map

Email: D.  Copy of expired SUP issued July 16, 2007
Current Owner of Record: Same as applicant. E. NCDENR Mining Permit No. 15-12

F.  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Permit
Meeting Dates:
9/21/2016 Planning Board
Board of Commissioners

PROJECT LOCATION:

Street Address: End of Ponderosa Drive
Location Description: South Mills Township
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icinity/Zoning Map:
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REQUEST:

the Special Use Permit has expired.

Mining Operation (Use #14.300). Owners were granted a Special Use Permit (UDO
2007-05-15) for the mining operation which was approved by the Board of Commissioners on July 16,
2007. With the length of time to obtain NCDENR/Army Corps permits and down turn in the economy

Packet Pg. 21

SITE DATA
Lot size: Approximately 113 acres in size
Flood Zone: X
Zoning District(s): Light Industrial (I-1)
Existing Land Uses:; Woodland
Adjacent Zoning & Uses:
North South East West
Zoning State of Virginia Light Industrial Light Industrial Light Industrial
(1-1) {1-1) i-1
Use & size Woodland Woodland/Farms | Woodland - Single Family
over 23 acres approximately 95 | Dwelling - 10
acres acres

Proposed Use(s): Mining Operation
Description of property:

Property is a wooded parcel located at the VA/NC Boarder

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT
Streams, Creeks, Major Ditches:
Distance & description of nearest outfall:
Nearest outfall is Dismal Swamp Canal
Soils:

Predominant: Hyde (HyA)
Other: Belhaven Muck (BaA)

INFRASTRUCTURE

There are currently no utilities servicing the property.

Rk
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Traffic: There will be a significant increase of traffic flow on Ponderosa Road

Packet Pg. 22

1.

Utilities:

A, Does the application include a letter or certificate from the District Health Department
regarding septic tanks? Applicant requesting use of portable toilet.

B. Does the applicant propose the use of public sewage systems? No

C. Does the applicant propose the use of public water systems? No.

D. Distance from existing public water supply system: Approximately 4.5 miles (Camden ECO
Park).

E. Is the area within a five-year proposal for the provision of public water? No

F. Is the area within a five-year proposal for the provision of public sewage? No

Landscaping

A. Is any buffer required? Yes. Indicated on site plan.
B. Is any landscaping described in application: N/A
Findings Regarding Additional Requirements:

A. Endangering the public health and safetv: 1f ingress/egress is proposed off Ponderosa Road
(Private) staff feels that with the width of Ponderosa Road (30’ easement) and current road
conditions, proposed use will have an impact on the residents that utilize the road if not kept up
to drivable standards.

B. Injure the value of adjoining or abutting propertv: Staff’s opinion is that the proposed use
will not injure the values of adjoining properties.

C. Harmony with the area in which it is located: Yes. The property is zoned for the proposed
use. There was a Special Use Permit issued (attached) by the County for the same use.

D. Conformity with the Plans
(1).Land Use Plan — Area is consistent with County’s Future Land Use Map for proposed use.
(2). Thoroughfare Plan ~ Only access to site is off Ponderosa Road (Private 30° easement).
(3).Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners - N/A

E. Will not exceed the countv’s ability to provide public facilities
(1).Schools — No impact.

(2).Fire and rescue ~ Little impact.
(3).Law Enforcement — Little impacct.
F. Other County Facilities - N/A

Planning Staff is recommending approval to re-issue a new Special Use Permit with the following
conditions (taken from previous Special Use Permit):

1.

[P

Ead

The applicant must strictly abide by all requirements of the Unified Development Ordinance of
Camden County, North Carolina, and must also strictly comply with all other local, state, and federal
ordinances, laws, rules and regulations as one or more ordinances. laws, rules and regulations may
apply to this development.

The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the approved plans
contained in the file titled UDO 2016-08-10.

Applicant shall aid in maintaining the upkeep of Ponderosa Road to current conditions.
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. Applicant shall retain the cut over trees that lay within the buffer area indicated on site plans.

Hours of operations shall be: April 1 — October 31, 7:00 AM-6:00 PM, Monday thru Friday and:
November 1 — March 31, 7:00 AM - 5:00 PM, Monday thru Friday.

. Ifany ofthe conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held invalid or void, then this

approval in its entirety shall be void and have no effect.

n

Packet Pg. 23




5.A.3

asn [e19ads - BuliesH 21|gnd 8USAU0DSY : ¥OST) S19ed Jo sBulpuld 0T-80-9T0Z OAN IUSWYeNY

/N7
;-?05} Land Use/Development Application
K County of Camden, North Carolina
Depending upon the type of proposal, the proposal may require a Zoning Please Do Not Write in this Box

Permit, Conditional Use Permit, or Special Use Permit. This form is
used as the start of application process. All applicants must submit a site
plan (see “Minimum Site Plan Requirements™) and a valid Health
Department permit. Applicants for a Conditional Use Permit or Special
Use Permit should review the “Requirements for Conditional Use Permit
and Special Use Permit Applications”, Date Received: §/18/2016

PIN:
01-7082-00-63-8936

UDO#_2016 - 08 - 10

Applicants for a subdivision must submit this form as their Special Use | Receivedby: __DP__.
Permit application. Zoning District; Lieht Industrial - 11
Please consult the Planning Office (1-252-338-1919) with any questions | Fee Paid $ _ 400.00

about your application.

Packet Pg. 24

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE c

Applicant’s Name: __ B & M Investments of NC LLC N

If the Applicant is acting as agent for another persen (the “principal™), please give that
person’s name on the line below and submit a copy of the agency agreement/letter with this Application,

Applicant’s Mailing Address: 1075 N. Highway 343
South Mills, NC 27976

Daytime Phone Number: {252 } 771-5634
Street Address Location of Property: _ End of Ponderosa Road. South Mills Township

General Description of Proposal: _Mining Operation - Use #14.300 — Sy i’ o

1 swear or affirm that the foregoing information and all antachments hereto (novw or subsequenify provided as part of this
application) are true and corvect to the best of my knowledge.

Signed: _& g dt /7 'jwqu‘;
) =

Dated: S//ff‘)//é

* Information io be filled out by Planning Department

*Is the Property in a Watershed Protection area? _ No P

*Flood Zone (from FIRM Map): X *Taxes paid? -.-..-l..-/ no

Land Use/Development Application
Poage 1 of
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FILED b Camden County. NC

on Aug 20 2007 of DLIBI4D PH
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AN ORDER GRANTING A
SPECIAL USE PERMIT
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAMDEN, NORTH €AROLINA

The Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden, North Carolina, having held a
public hearing on Monday, July 16, 2007 to consider an application for a Special Use
Permit by B & M Investments of NC LLC and having heard all of the evidence presented

at the heanng makes the following FINDINGS OF FACT and draws the following
CONCLUSIONS:

It is the Board’s CONCLUSION that the Special Use Permit be issued subject to certain
conditions listed below.

This CONCLUSION is based upon the following FINDINGS OF FACT:

1. Name of Applicant: B & M Investments of NC LLC
2. Agent for Applicant: Gary Meiggs
3. Address of Agent: 1075 North Highway 343

South Mills, NC 27976

4. PIN: 01-7082-00-68-8936

5. Name(s) of Current Owner(s) of Record: B & M Investments of NC, LLC
6. Street Address of Property: Not addressed

7. Localion of Property: Adjacent to 370 Ponderosa Road

8. Flood Zone: X

9. Zoning Distriet(s): Light Industrial (}-1)

10. Is a Zoning Change Required for the Proposed Use? No

UnQ2007-05-13
Mining Operation
Pape l of 5
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11. General Description of the Proposal: Mining Operation — “Bonney Bright Sand™

12, Table of Permissible Use #: 14.300

13. Date Application Received by County: May &, 2007

14. Did the Applicant participate in a pre-application Conference? Yes

15. Received by: Dave Parks, Permit Officer

16. Application fee paid: $400.00 by check # 1601

17. Completeness of Application: Application is generally complete.

18. Documents received upon {iling application or otherwise included:

A. Land Use/Development Application

B. Deed

C. GIS Map

D. 10 Copies Proposed Commercia)l Site Plan

19. Seil Classifications:

Predominant: Eiyde (HyA) Severe wetness, percs slowly

Other: Belhaven (BaA) Severe wetness, percs slowly
20. Adjacent Property Uses:

A. Predominant: Agriculture

B. Other: Some residential exisis adjacent to property

21. Existing Land Uses: Timber

22, Utilities:

A. Does the application include a letter or certificate from the District Health

Department regarding septic tanks? No.

Does the applicant propose the use of public sewage systems? No.

. Does the applicant propose the use of public water systems? No.

. Distance from existing public water supply system: Area not serviced.

Is the area within a five-year proposal for the provision of public water? No

. Is the area within a five-year proposal for the provision of public sewage? No

23, Landscaping:

A. Is any buffer required? Yes, indicated in site plan.
B. Will trees be required nlong dedicated streets UDO Article 151.156? N/A

24. Findings Regarding Additional Requirements:

A. Endangering the public health and safety: If ingress/egress is proposed off
Ponderosa road, staff feels that with the width of Ponderosa Road and current
road conditions, proposed use will have a severe impact on the public health and
safety. Road is currently utilized by another mining operation (Camden Yard
Materials) and have received several complaints from residential property owners
stating the dump trucks are tearing up the road 1o a point that they claim is not
drivable. Erosion is severe at each culvert pipe crossing the road.

B. Injure the value of adjoining or abutting property: The application does not
appear (0 injure the value of adjoining or sbutting property.

C. Harmony with the area in which it is located: Ycs, property zoned for
commercial development, however staff feels unless an alternative access other
than Ponderosa road is provided the proposed use is affect the harmony of the
residents to utilize their property as residential.

D. Conformity with the Plans:

mpO®

=

UDO2007-05-15
Mining Operalion
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1. Land Use Plan: Area consistent with the county's future land use map.
However, Article 151.034 of the Unified Development Ordinance, states that
“mining operations should be located in very limited locations™.

2. Thoroughfare Plan: Only access to site is off Ponderosa Road (Private

ROW).

3, Other plans cofficially adopted by the Board of Commissioners:

None
E. WIH not exceed the county’s ability to provide public facilities:

1. Schools: Proposed development will have no impact on schaols.

2. Fireand Rescue: During heavy rain events, road condition could prevent
access by Fire and Rescue vehicles.

3. Law Enforcement: During heavy rain events, road condition could prevent
access by Law Enforcement vehicles,

Other County Facilities: None.
F. Other: None.

Approved by the Board of Commisstoners on August 6, 2007 vote with the following
conditions:

1.

The applicant must strictly abide by all requirements of the Unified Development
Ordinance of Camden County, North Carclina, and must also strictly comply with all
other local, state, and federal ordinances, laws, rules and regulations as one or more
ordinances, laws, rules and regulations may apply to this development.

The applicant shall complete the development strictly in accordance with the plans
approved by the Board of Commissioners of Camden County, North Carolina, and
contained in the file titled UDO 2007-05-15.

Applicant shall aid in maintaining the upkeep of Ponderosa Road to current
conditions.

Prior to any land disturbing activity, applicant shall provide an Erosion and
Sedimentation Conirol Plan approved by the North Carolina Department and
Environmental and Natural Resources (DENR).

Prior to any land disturbing activity, applicant shall provide the Planning Ofiice a
copy of the Mining Permit approved by DENR.

Applicant shall retain the cut over trees that lay within the buffer area indicated on
gile plans.

Hours of Operations shall be April 1 - Ociober 31, 7:00 AM - 6:00 PM, Monday thru
Friday; November | = March 31, 7:00 AM - 5:00 PM, Mondzy thru Friday.

If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any part thereof shall be held invalid or
void, then this approval in its entirety shall be void and have no effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County has caused this Special Use Permit to be issued in
its name, and the undersigned, being all of the property owners/applicants of the property
above described, do hereby accept this special use permit together with all iis conditions
as binding on them, their successors and their assigns in interest.

UDO2067-05-15
Mining Operation
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1, Gary Meiggs, owner of the above-identified property do hereby acknowledge receipt of
this Order authorizing the issuance of a Special Use Permit. The undersigned
ownerfapplicant doss further acknowledge that no work may be done pursuant to the
Penmit except in accordance with sll of its conditions and requirements and that all
restrictions shall be binding vpon them, their assigns, and their successors in interest.

Gary Mei g@f\pplim:mpﬂly Owner

Dae:_§~7—& 7

NORTH CAROLINA
CAMDEN COUNTY

I _Dawn W. Forbes , & Notary Public in and for said state and
county, do hereby certify thal Gary Meiggs Applicant/Property owner, personally
appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing
insitrument. \\\\“ ;‘;{{'{W u;%, "a,,’

WITNESS my hand and notorial seal the ‘T,S‘n&{\"

Notey PIRBLIG - ¢

My commission cxpires: ’-—,” (o NS TR
Tolot B

COUNTY OF CAMDEN

ATTEST:

I, David A. Parks, Permit Officer for Camden County, do hereby acknowledpe receipt of
this Order authorizing the issuance of a Special Use Permit. The undersigned individual
does further acknowledge that no work may be done pursuant to the Permit except in
accordance with sll of its conditions and requirements and that all restrictions shal} be
binding vpon them, their assigns and their successors in interest,

Ll b

David A. Parks, Permit Officer

UDO2007-05-15
Mining Operation
Page dof 5
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AGA
NCDENR

North Carolinz Depariment of Environment and Natural Resources
Division of Land Resources
Land Quality Section

James D. Simons, PG, PE Beverly Eaves Perdue, Govemor
Director and State Ceologist Dee Freeman, Secretary

July 15, 2010

Mr. Bonney G. Bright
5513 Buzzard Neck Road
Virginia Beach, Virginia 23457

Re: Meiggs Tract Mine
Camden County
Pasquotank River Basin

Dear Mr. Bright:

The application for a mining permit for the above referenced mine site has been found
to meet the requirements of G.S. 74-51 of The Mining Act of 1971. As we have received the
required security to cover this application, | am enclosing the mining permit.

The conditions of Mining Permit No. 15-12 were based primarily upon information
supplied in the application with conditions added as necessary to insure compliance with The
Mining Act of 1871. This permit expires on July 15. 2020. G.S. 74-85 states that the issuance
of a mining permit does not supersede or otherwise affect or prevent the eniorcement of any
zoning regulation or ordinance duly adopted by an incorporated city or county or by any
agency or depariment of the State of North Carolina.

As a reminder, your permiited acreage at this site is 113.89 acres and the amount of
land you are approved to disturb is 102.0 acres.

Piease review the permit and contact Ms. Judy Wehner, Assistant Staie Mining
Specialist, at (918) 733-4574 of z2ny objection or questions concerning the terms of the permit.

Sincerely,

& L{J"/Uq / 7‘/&)’ /

Francis M. Nevils, Jr., PE
Section Chief
FMN/jpw

Enclosures: Permit No. 15-12
Notice of |ssuance

ce: M. Pet McClain, PE
IVis. Shannon Deaton -WRC, w/permit
Mr. William Gerringer-DOL, Mine and Quarry Bureau, wio enclosures
US Fish and Wildlife Serwoe w/ permit

1542 Mail Service Terter, Releigh Nor'h Can:[mc 27388-1612 « Teleplione 27 9-733-4574 / FAK. 18732
53°2Norls 8 |='u):>.re—‘ Ra'eigh, Norh Cc!’\.“na 27604 + nierret hilp ffwww dir ensigte.nc Le cages’ andquat

A7 Zava Qeoo-uniy | A5 rnatag £o0 o Employet = 53% Raoyeled 1104 Pest Conszmer
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DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT
AND NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF LAND RESOURCES
LAND QUALITY SECTION

PERMIT
for the operation of a mining actlivity

In acordance with the provisions of G.S. 74-46 through 68, "The Mining

Actd 1971," Mining Permit Rule 15A NCAC 5 B. and other applicable
laws,rules and regulations

Permission is hereby granted to:
Bonney G. Bright
Meiggs Tract Mine
Camden County - Permit No. 15-12
for the operation of a
Sand Mine
whict shall provide that the usefulness, productivity and scenic values of

all lards and waters affected by this mining operation will receive the

greakst practical degree of protection and resioration.

MINING PERMIT EXPIRATION DATE  Julvy 15. 2020
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tn accordance with the application for this mining permit, which is hereby approved by the

Department of Environment and Natural Resources, hereinafter referred to as the Department,
and in conformity with the approved Reclamation Plan ettached to and incorporated as part of
this permit, provisions must be made for the protection of the surrounding environment and for
rectamation of the land and water affected by the permitted mining operation. This permit is
expressly conditioned upon compliance with alt the requirements of the approved Reclamation
Plan. However, completed performance of the approved Reclamation Plan is a separable
obligation, secured by the bond or other security on file with the Depariment, and may survive
the expiration, revocation or suspension of this permit.

This permit is not transferable by the permittee with the following exception: If another
operator succeeds to the interest of the permittee in the permitted mining operation, by virtue
of a sale, lease. assignment or otherwise, the Department may release the pemmitiee from the
duties imposed upon him by the conditions of his permit and by the Mining Act with reference
to the permiited operation, and fransfer the permit {o the successor operalor, provided that
both operatlors have complied with the requirements of the Mining Act and that the successor
operator agrees to assume the duties of the permittee with reference to reclamation of the
affected land and posts a suitable bond or other security.

In the event that the Department determines ihat the permittee or permitiee’s successor is not
complying with the Reclamation Plan or other ierms and conditions of this permit. or is failing
to achieve the purposes and requirements of the Mining Act, the Departmeant may give the
operator written notice of its intent to modify. revoke or suspend the permit, or its intent to
modify the Reclamation Plan as incorporated in the permit. The operator shall have right to a
hearing at a designated time and place on any proposed modification, revocation or
suspension by the Depariment. Alternatively and in addition to the above, the Department
may institute other enforcement procedures authorized by law.

Definitions

Wherever used or referred {o in this permit, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise
terms shall have the same meaning as supplied by the Mining Act, N.C.G.S. 74-49.

Expiration Date

Ths permit shall be effective from the date of its issuance until July 15, 2020,
Conditions

This permit shall be subject to the provisicns of the Mining Act, N.C G.S. 74-46, ct. seq , and to
the fcllowing conditions and limitations:

OPERATING CONDITIONS:

1, A. Any wastewaler processing or mine dewatering shall be in accordance wiih the
permitiing requirements and rules promulgated by the N.C. Envirenmental
Vianagement Commission.
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Any stormwater runoff from the affected areas at the site shall be in accordance
with any applicable permit requirements and regulations promulgated by the
Environmental Protection Agency and enforced by the N.C. Environmental
Management Commission. It shall be the permittee's responsibility to contact the
Division of Water Quality to secure any necessary stormwater permits or other
approval documents.

Any mining process producing air contamination emissions shali be subject to the
permitting requirements and rules promulgated by the N.C. Environmental
Management Commission and enforced by the Division of Air Quality.

During mining operations, water trucks or other means that may be necessary
shall be utilized to prevent dust from leaving the permitted area.

Sufficient buffer (minimum 50 foot undisturbed) shall be maintained between any
affected land and any adjoining waterway or wetland to prevent sedimentation of
that waterway or wetland from erosion of the affected land and to preserve the
integrity of the natural watercourse or wetland.

Any mining activity affecting waters of the State, waters of the U. 8., or wetlands
shall be in accordance with the requirements and regulations promulgated and
enforced by the N. C. Environmental Management Commission.

No dewatering activities at the site or discharges from the site shall occur until
proof has been submitted to the Division of Land Resources that an NPDES
permit has been issued from the Division of Water Quality.

Adequate mechanical barriers including but not limited to diversions, earthen
dikes, silt check dams, silt retarding structures, rip rap pits, or ditches shail be
provided in the initial stages of any land disturbance and maintained to prevent
sediment from discharging onto adjacent surface areas or into any lake, wetland
or natural watercourse in proximity to the affected fand.

All drainage from the affected area around the mine excavation shall be diverted
internal to said excavation or into the approved sediment and ercsion control
measures.

Mining activities shall occur as indicated on the Mine Development/Reclamation
Plan Map last revised May 8, 2009 and the supplemental information received by
the Land Quality Section on March 2, 2009, August 28, 2009, December 17,
2009 and March 19, 2010.

Packet Pg. 32
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Groundwater monitoring wells shall be installed and monitored as deemed appropriate
by the Department as follows:

A.

Monitoring wel's, shall be installed as specified in the "Adiacent Well Survey and
Ground Water Monitoring Plan” last revised April 2010 and monitored at least
bimonthly (twice per month) beginning 90 days prior fo initiating any land
disturbing activities at the site (other than the land disturbing activities needed to.
install the monitoring wells and the approved erosion and sedimentation control
measures) to allow for the determination of pre-existing (static) aroundwater
levels and parameter levels. |n addition, neighboring wells shall be monitored at
least monthly 90 days prior to initiating any excavation. The operator shall notify
the Department once all the monitoring wells are installed.

The well depths shall be as proposed in the "Adjacent Well Survey and Ground
Water Monitoring Plan” last revised April 2010 and received on April 26, 2010.

The monitoring welis shall be drilled wells screened at the base depth of the
excavation (the ultimate depth of the mine). The wells shall be secured against
unauthorized entry with a lockable cap. The necessary permits or approvals to
construct these wells shall be obtained from the N.C. Division of Water Quality,
Groundweater Section.

The monitoring wells shall be monitored bimonthly (twice per month) at the same
day and approximate time of day. The static water levels shall be measured with
an accuracy of plus or minus 0.1 foot and shall be referenced to a datum point
and a record of the water levels maintained. The bimonthly precipitation and the
volume of pit water discharge shall also be recorded. Copies of these records
shall be provided to the Department on or about the end of each month. Static
water level monitoring frequency may be increased or decreased as deemed
appropriaie by the Depariment.

Any water supply wells affected by the mining operation shall be replaced by the
operztor.

All permit boundaries (113.89 acres) shall be permanently marked at the site on 100-
foot intervals unless the line of sight allows for larger spacing intervals.

The angle fer graded slopes and fills shall be no greater than the angle, which can be
retained by vegetative cover or other adequaie erosion control measure, structure, or
device. In any event, exposed slopes or any excavated channels, the erosion of which
may cause off-site damage because of siltation, shall be planted or otherwise provided
with ground cover. devices or structures sufficient to restrain such erosion.

The affected land shall be graded so as ‘o prevent collection of pools of water that are,
or likely to become, noxious or foul. Necessary siructures such as drainage ditches or
conduits shall be constructed or instelled when required to prevent such conditions
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Existing vegetation or vegetated earthen berms shall be maintained between the mine
and public thoroughfares whenever practical to screen the operation from the public.

A

Sufficient buffer shall be maintained between any excavation and any mining
permit boundary fo protect adjacent property.

All buffers shall be maintained as indicated on the Mine
Development/Reclamation Plan Map last revised May 8, 2009

No on-site disposal of refuse or other solid waste that is gensrated outside of the
mining permit area shall be allowed within the boundaries of the mining permit
area unless authorization to conduct said disposal has first heen obtained from
both the Division of Waste Management and the Land Quality Section,
Department of Environment and Natural Resources. The method of disposal
shall be consistent with the approved reclamation plan.

Mining refuse as defined by G.S. 74-49 (14) of The Mining Act of 1971 generated
on-site and direcily associated with the mining activity may be disposed of in a
designated refuse area. All other waste products must be disposed of in a
disposal facility approved by the Division of Waste Management. No petroleum
products, acids, solvents or their slorage containers or any other material that
may be considered hazardous shall be disposed of within the permitted area.

For the purposes of this permit, the Division of Land Resources considers the
following materials to be "mining refuse" (in addition to those specifically listed
under G.S. 74-49 (14) of the N.C. Mining Act of 1971):

on-site generated land clearing debris
conveyor belts

wire cables

v-belis

steel reinforced air hoses

dritl steel

2R

If mining refuse is to be permanently disposed within the mining permit boundary,
the following information must be provided to and approved by the Division of
Land Resouices priar to commencement of such disposal:

1. the approximate boundaries and size of the refuse disposal area.

2. a list of refuse items to be disposed,;

3. verification that a minimum of 4 feet of cover will be provided over the
refuse;

4, velil cation that the refuse will be disposed at least 4 feet above the

sezsonally high water table; and.
verfication that a permanent vegetative groundcover will be established.

<o
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12.  An Annual Reclamation Report shall be submitted on a form supplied by the
Depariment by February 1 of each year until reclamation is completed and approved.

13.  The operator shall notify the Department in writing of the desire o delete, modify or
otherwise change any part of the mining, reclamation, or ercsion/sediment control plan
conizined in the approved application for a mining permit or any approved revision to it.
Approval to implement such changes must be obtained from the Department prior {o on-
site implementation of the revisions.

14,  The security, which was posted pursuant to N.C G S. 74-54 in the form of a $79,500.00
Irrevocable Standby Letter of Credit, is sufficient to cover the operation as indicated in
the approved application. This security must remain in force for this permit to be valid.
The total affected land shall not exceed the bonded acreage.

15. A Authorized representatives of {the Division of Archives and History shall be
granted access to the site to determine the presence of significant archaeological
resources.

B. Pursuantto N. C. G. 8. 70 Ariicle 3, "The Unmarked Human Burial and Human
Skeletal Remains Protection Act,” should the operator or any person in his
employ encounter human skeletal remains, immediate notification shall be
provided to the county medical examiner and the chief archaeologist, North
Carolina Division of Archives and History.
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APPROVED RECLAMATION PLAN

The Mining Permit incorporates this Reclamation Plan, the performance of which is a condition
on the continuing validity of that Mining Permit. Additionaily, the Reclamation Plan is a
separable obligation of the permitiee, which continues beyond the terms of the Mining Permit.

The approved plan provides:

Minimum Standards As Provided By G.S. 74-53

1.

The final slopes in all excavations in soil, sand, grave! and other unconsolidated
maierials shall be at such an angle as to minimize the possibility of slides and be
consistent with the future use of the land.

Provisions for safety to persons and to adjoining property must be provided in all
excavations in rock.

All overburden and spoil shall be left in a configuration which is in accordance with
accepted conservation practices and which is suitable for the proposed subsequent use
of the land.

No small pools of water shall be allowed to collect or remain on the mined area that are,
or are likely o become noxious, odious or foul.

The revegetation plan shall conform to accepted and recommended agronomic end
reforestation practices as established by the North Carolina Agriculiural Experiment
Station and the North Carolina Forest Service.

Permittee shall conduct reclamation activities pursuant to the Reclamation Plan herein
incorporated. These activities shall be conducted according to the time schedule
included in the plan, which shall to the extent feasible provide reclamation simultaneous
with mining operations and in any event, provide reclamation at the earliest practicable
time after completion or termination of mining on any segment of the permit area and
shal he completed within two years after completion or termination of mining.

RECLAMATION CONDITIONS:

1.

Provided further, and subject to the Reclamation schedule. the planned reclamation
shall be to restore the mine excavation to a lake area and o grade and revegetaie the
adjacent disturbed areas.

The specifications for surface gradient restoration o a surface suilable for the planned
future use aie as iollows:

A The lake area shall be excavated io maintan a minimun water depth of iour fest
measured from the low water table elevation.
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B. The side slopes to the lake excavation shall be graded to a 3 horizontal to 1
vertical or flatter to the water line and 2 horizontal to 1 vertical or flatier below the
water line.

C. Any areas used for wastepiles, screening, stockpiling or other processing shall
be leveled and smoothed.

D. No contaminants shall be permanently disposed of at the mine site. On-sile
disposal of waste shall be in accordance with Operating Condition Nos. 10A
through 10D.

E. The affected land shall be graded to prevent the collection of noxious or foul
water.

Revegetation Plan:

After site preparation, all disturbed land areas shall be revegetated as per the
Revegetation Plan approved by Mr. Dwane Hinson, District Conservationist with the
Albemarle Soil and Water Conservation District on June 4, 2007,

Whenever possible, disturbed areas should be vegetated with native warm szason
grasses such as switch grass, Indian grass, bluestem and gamma grass.

In addition, the permitiee shall consult with a professional wildlife biologist with the N.C.
Wildlife Resources Commission to enhance post-project wildlife habitat at the site.

Reclamation Plan:

Reclamation shall be conducted simultanecusly with mining to the exient feasible. In
any event, reclamation sheall be initiated as soon as feasible after comipletion or
termination of mining of any mine segment under permit. Final reclamation. including
revegetation. shall be completed within iwo years of completion or termination of
mining.

Permit issued this 15™ day of July, 2010.

Panl

b
By: -Q.Z’?ri:--" 0 e e o
; .
/

Jemes D Simons, Director
Division of Land Resources
By Authcrity of the Secretary
Cf the Department of Environment and Naiural Resources
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NOTICE OF {ISSUANCE OF
MINING PERMIT

You have previously expressed an interest and/or are listed as an adjoining landowner
in the application for a mining permit filed hy Bonney G. Bright to conduct mining activities off

US Highway 17 in Camden County. The mining permit (no. 15-12) was issued on July 15,
2010.

North Carolina law allows persons aggrieved by the issuance of a mining permit to
contest the decision by filing a petition for a contested case in the Office of Administrative
Hearings pursuant to N.C.G.S. 150B-23 of the Administrative Procedure Act (APA).

If you believe that you are an aggrieved party within the meaning of the APA, a petition
for a contested case must be filed in the Office of Administrative Hearings within sixty (60)
davs of he mailing of this notice o you.

If you file a contested case petition, it must be in writing and in the form prescribed by
N.C. General Statutes 150B-23. File the original petition and one copy with the Office of
Administrative Hearings, 6714 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-6714.

Any questions about filing a petition may be directed to the Clerk of the Oifice of
Administrative Hearings by telephoning (919) 733-0926.

You must serve the Department of Environment and Natural Resources by mailing a

copy of the petition to Ms. Mary Penny Thompson, Registered Agent and General Counsel,
Department of Environment and Natural Resources, 1601 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC

27692-1601.
[Zr(f a: f—j,f:’,;ﬂ—_;-,~g

 James D. Simons
~ Director
Division of Land Rescurces
North Carolina Depariment oi
Environment and Natural
Resources

This notice was mailed on 7/[7/9-0/@

&b

Brenda Harris
Mining Program Secretary
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U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS %
WILMINGTON DISTRICT 2
S
o
Action Id. SAW-2011-01138 County: Camden U.S.G.S. Quad: VA-LAKE DRUMMOND SE
GENERAL PERMIT (REGIONAL AND NATIONWIDE) VERIFICATION
Permittee: B&M Investments, LL.C.
Bonney Bright
Address: 5563 Buzzards Neck Road
Virginia Beach, VA, 23457
Telephone Number: (757)721-5823
Size (acres) 113.89 Nearest Town South Mills
Nearest Waterway Dismal Swamp Canal-1ICW River Basin Pasquotank
USGS HUC 03010205 Coordinates  Latitude: 36.548001
Longitude: -76.321851
Location description: The project is located on an approximately 115 acres east of US17 on Ponderosa Drive near the town of

South Mills, in Camden County, North Carolina.

Description of projects area and activity: Project will involve the mining of an undeveloped upland parcel and the installation of
n dewatering outfall structure within the waters of the US.

Applicable Law: [X] Section 404 (Clean Water Act, 33 USC 1344)
[ Section 10 (Rivers and Harbors Act, 33 USC 403)

Authorization: Regional General Permit Number or Nationwide Permit Number: NWP 7, NWF 13
SEE ATTACHED RGP or NWP GENERAL, REGIONAL AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Your work is authorized by the above referenced permit provided it is accomplished in strict accordance with the attached
conditions and your submitted application and attached information dated July 28, 2016. Any violation of the attached
conditions or deviation from your submitted plans may subject the permittee to a stop work order, a restoration order, a Class
I administrative penalty, and/or appropriate legal action.

This verification will remain valid until the expiration date identified below unless the nationwide authorization is modified,
suspended or revoked. If, prior to the expiration date identified below, the nationwide permit authorization is reissued and/or
modified, this verification will remain valid until the expiration date identified below, provided it complies with all requirements of
the modified nationwide permit. If the nationwide permit authorization expires or is suspended, revoked, or is modified, such that the
activity would no longer comply with the terms and conditions of the nationwide permit, activities which have commenced (i.e., are
under construction) or are under contract to commence in reliance upon the nationwide permit, will remain authorized provided the
activity is completed within twelve months of the date of the nationwide permit’s expiration, modification or revocation, unless
discretionary autherity has been exercised on a case-by-case basis to modify, suspend or revoke the authorization.

Activities subject to Section 404 (as indicated above) may also require an individual Section 401 Water Quality Certification. You
should contact the NC Division of Water Quality (telephone 919-807-6300) to determine Section 401 requirements.

For activities occurring within the twenty coastal counties subject to regulation under the Coastal Area Management Act (CAMA),
prior to beginning work you must contact the N.C. Division of Coastal Management in Elizabeth City, NC, at (252) 264-3901.

This Department of the Army verification does not relieve the permittee of the responsibility to obtain any other required Federal,
State or local approvals/permits.

If there are any questions regarding this verification, any of the conditions of the Permit, or the Corps of Engineers regulatory
program, please contact Krystvnka Stvgar at 910-251-4619 or Krvstynka.B.Stvgar@usace.armv.mil.

Corps Regulatory Official: Date: July 28, 2016
Expiration Date of Verification: March 18, 2017
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SAW-2011-01138
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Determination of Jurisdiction:

A. [ Based on preliminary information, there appear to be waters of the US including wetlands within the above described project

area. This preliminary determination is not an appealable action under the Regulatory Program Administrative Appeal Process
( Reference 33 CFR Part 331).

B. [] There are Navigable Waters of the United States within the above described project area subject to the permit requirements of
Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act and Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. Unless there is a change in the law or our

published regulations, this determination may be relied upon for a period not to exceed five years from the date of this
notification.

C. [J There are waters of the US and/or wetlands within the above described project area subject to the permit requirements of
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (CWA)(33 USC § 1344). Unless there is a change in the law or our published regulations,
this determination may be relied upon for a period not to exceed five years from the date of this notification.

D. The jurisdictional areas within the above described project area have been identified under a previous action. Please reference
jurisdictional determination issued August 1, 2011. Action ID: SAW-2011-01138.

Basis for Determination: This site exhibits wetland criteria as defined in the 1987 Corps Wetland Delineation
Manual and appropriate Regional Supplement.
_Remarks:

E. Attention USDA Program Participants

This delineation/determination has been conducted to identify the limits of Corps’ Clean Water Act jurisdiction for the particular site
identified in this request. The delineation/determination may not be valid for the wetland conservation provisions of the Food Security
Act of 1985. If you or your tenant are USDA Program participants, or anticipate participation in USDA programs, you should request
a certified wetland determination from the local office of the Natural Resources Conservation Service, prior to starting work.

F. Appeals Information (This information applies only to approved jurisdictiona! determinations as indicated in B
and C above).

This correspondence constitutes an approved jurisdictional determination for the above described site. If you object to this
determination, you may request an administrative appeal under Corps regulations at 33 CFR Part 331. Enclosed you will find a
Notification of Appeal Process (NAP) fact sheet and request for appeal (RFA) form. If you request to appeal this determination you
must submit a completed RFA form to the following address:

US Army Corps of Engineers

South Atlantic Division

Attn: Jason Steele, Review Officer
60 Forsyth Street SW, Room 10M15
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8301
Phone: (404) 562-5137

In order for an RFA to be accepted by the Corps, the Corps must determine that it is complete, that it meets the criteria for appeal
under 33 CFR part 331.5, and that it has been received by the Division Office within 60 days of the date of the NAP. Should you
decide to submit an RFA form, it must be received at the above address by September 20, 2016.

**[t is not necessary to submit an RFA form to the Division Office if you do not object to the determination in this correspondence.**

Corps Regulatory Official:

Krystynka Stygar

Date of JD: Julv 22. 2016
Expiration Date of JD: Julv 22. 2021
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SAW-2011-01138

The Wilmington District is committed to providing the highest level of support to the public. To help us ensure we
continue to do so, please complete our customer Satisfaction Survey online at http://regulatory.usacesurvey.cony.

Copy furnished:
Agent: Harold Jones

Sigma Environmental Services. Inc.
Address: 1513 Sandbridge Road

Virginia Beach. VA, 23456

Telephone Number: (757)615-9974
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Action ID Number: SAW-2011-01138 County: Camden
Permittee: B&M Investments, LLC.

Bonney Bright
Project Name: Bright-Meiggs Tract/Camden/JD

Date Verification Issued: July 22, 2016

Project Manager: Krystynka Stygar

Upon completion of the activity authorized by this permit and any mitigation required by the permit,
sign this certification and return it to the following address:

US ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS
WILMINGTON DISTRICT
Washington Field Office
2407 West 5 Street
Washington, NC 27889

Attn: Krystynka Stygar

Please note that your permitted activity is subject to a compliance inspection by a U. S. Army Corps of
Engineers representative. Failure to comply with any terms or conditions of this authorization may
result in the Corps suspending, modifying or revoking the authorization and/or issuing a Class [
administrative penalty, or initiating other appropriate legal action.

I hereby certify that the work authorized by the above referenced permit has been completed in

accordance with the terms and condition of the said permit, and required mitigation was completed in
accordance with the permit conditions.

Signature of Permittee Date

Packet Pg. 42
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NOTIFICATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL OPTIONS AND PROCESS AND

REQUEST FOR APPEAL
Applicant: B&M Investments, LLC. File Number: SAW-2011-01138 Date: July 28, 2016
| Bonney Bright
Attached is:

See Section below

| INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission)

PROFFERED PERMIT (Standard Permit or Letter of permission)

PERMIT DENIAL

APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION

PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION

es]lwiig]feedieg

SECTION I - The following identifies your rights and options regarding an administrative appeal of the above decision.
Additional information may be found at or bttp://www.usace.army.mil/Missions/CivilWorks/Re
or the Corps regulations at 33 CFR Part 331,

A: INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT: You may accept or object to the permit.

ACCEPT: If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and retumn it to the district engineer for final
authorization. If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized. Your
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all

rights to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the
permit.

OBIJECT: If you object to the permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein, you may request
that the permit be modified accordingly. You must complete Section I of this form and return the form to the district
engineer. Your objections must be received by the district engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice, or you will
forfeit your right to appeal the permit in the future. Upon receipt of your letter, the district engineer will evaluate your
objections and may: (a) modify the permit to address ail of your concerns, (b) modify the permit to address some of your
objections, or (c) not modify the permit having determined that the permit should be issued as previously written. Afier

evaluating your objections, the district engineer will send you a proffered permit for your reconsideration, as indicated in
Section B below.

B: PROFFERED PERMIT: You may accept or appeal the permit

ACCEPT: If you received a Standard Permit, you may sign the permit document and return it to the district engineer for final
authorization. If you received a Letter of Permission (LOP), you may accept the LOP and your work is authorized. Your
signature on the Standard Permit or acceptance of the LOP means that you accept the permit in its entirety, and waive all

rights to appeal the permit, including its terms and conditions, and approved jurisdictional determinations associated with the
permit.

APPEAL: If you choose to decline the proffered permit (Standard or LOP) because of certain terms and conditions therein,
you may appeal the declined permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by completing Section I of

this form and sending the form to the division engineer. This form must be received by the division engineer within 60 days
of the date of this notice,

C: PERMIT DENIAL: You may appeal the denial of a permit under the Corps of Engineers Administrative Appeal Process by
completing Section I of this form and sending the form to the division engineer. This form must be received by the division
engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice.
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D: APPROVED JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION: You may accept or appeal the approved JD or provide new
information.

Packet Pg. 44

o ACCEPT: You do notneed to notify the Corps to accept an approved JD. Failure to notify the Coms within 60 days of

date of this notice, means that you accept the approved JD in its entirety, and waive all rights to appeal the approved JD.

e APPEAL: If you disagree with the approved JD, you may appeal the approved JD under the Corps of Engineers
Administrative Appeal Process by completing Section [I of this form and sending the form to the district engineer. This form
must be received by the division engineer within 60 days of the date of this notice.

E: PRELIMINARY JURISDICTIONAL DETERMINATION: You do not need to respond to the Corps regarding the
preliminary JD. The Preliminary JD is not appealable. If you wish, you may request an approved JD (which may be appealed),

by contacting the Corps district for further instruction. Also you may provide new information for further consideration by the
Corps to reevaluate the JD.

SECTION II - REQUEST FOR APPEAL or OBJECTIONS TC AN INITIAL PROFFERED PERMIT

REASONS FOR APPEAL OR OBJECTIONS: (Describe your reasons for appealing the decision or your objections to an initial

proffered permit in clear concise statements. You may attach additional information to this form to clarify where your reasons or
objections are addressed in the administrative record.)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The appeal is limited to a review of the administrative record, the Corps memorandum for the
record of the appeal conference or meeting, and any supplemental information that the review officer has determined is needed to
clarify the administrative record. Neither the appellant nor the Corps may add new information or analyses to the record.

However, you may provide additional information to clarify the location of information that is already in the administrative
record.

POINT OF CONTACT FOR QUESTIONS OR INFORMATION:

If you have questions regarding this decision and/or the If you only have questions regarding the appeal process you may
appeal process you may contact: also contact:
District Engineer, Wilmington Regulatory Division, Attn: | Mr. Jason Steele, Administrative Appeal Review Officer
Krystynka Stygar CESAD-PDO

U.S. Ammy Comps of Engineers, South Atlantic Division

60 Forsyth Street, Room 10M135

Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8301

Phone: (404) 562-5137

RIGHT OF ENTRY: Your signature below grants the right of entry to Corps of Engineers personnel, and any government
consultants, to conduct investigations of the project site during the course of the appeal process, You will be provided a 15 day
notice of any site investigation, and will have the opportunity to participate in all site investigations.

Date: Telephene number:

Signature of appellant or agent.

For appeals on Initial Proffered Permits send this form to:
District Engineer, Wilmington Regulatory Division, Attn: Krystynka Stygar, 2407 West 5'* Street, Washington, NC 27889
For Permit denials, Proffered Permits and approved Jurisdictional Determinations send this form to:

Division Engineer, Commander, U.S. Army Engineer Division, South Atlantic, Attu: Mr., Jason Steele, Administrative Appeal
Officer, CESAD-PDO, 60 Forsyth Street, Room t0M15, Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8801
Phone: (404) 562-5137



5.A.3

asn [e19ads - BulieaH 211gnd 8UBAU0IAY : #0GT) SI19ed Jo sBulpuld 0T-80-9T0Z OAN IUSWYIENY

Z SIGMA ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES. Inc.
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July 19, 2016

Ms. Krystynka B. Styger
Regulatory Branch

US Army Corps of Engineers
Washington Regional Office
2407 W. 5™ Street

Washington, North Carolina 27889

Subject: Request for Wetland Determination/Delineation Re-Confirmation and
Jurisdictional Determination

Dear Ms. Styger:

Pursuant to our field discussions and your follow-up email, enclosed please find a
completed Jurisdictional Request Form and a 11 x 17 inch map of the subject site.

If you need any additional information to complete your re-confirmation of wetland
delineation and Notification of Jurisdictional Determination, please do not hesitate to contact by
email at: rharoldjones@aol.com, phone: 757 615-9974, or the letterhead address.

Thank you in advance for your efforts on this request.

Sincerely,

, LL
T A

R. Harold Jones, PWS, ]
President

Bonney G Bright, Co-Owner
Enclosures

1513 SANDBRIDGE ROAD. VIRGINIA BEACH. VIRGINIA 23456
Business Cell (757) 615-9974. FAX (757) 426-5145. Email: Rharoldjonesi@acl.com
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Jurisdictional Determination Request

A. PARCEL INFORMATION

Street Address: 'TPQ NOEROSH- 32,3 e

City, State: %Qm-__m_\g.s T INE
County: AW DEMN

Packet Pg. 46

Directions: _ FlRem LMTERS E,G,HE;’M cF US RT | # HzADINe

T oM E(R osH DMUE
BN TRAUEBL ZAmles ~ site LocATED

Parcel Index Number(s) (PIN): N LEFET { NORTH s IQE_) oF Hav

El-F0§) —©0 —EB-BT>6 - €860
B. REQUESTOR INFORMATION

Name: . 74%}{2&]3 \rj?’.‘?/\-l@f) LS, EmzeTus

Telephone Number: 25~ CIS—FTEY 234SE

Mailing Address:

Electronic Mail Address': R HARODTONES & Aol COW

Select one:

D I am the current property owner.

IE. 1 am an Authorized Agent or Environmental Consultant®
l___] Interesied Buyer or Under Contract o Purchase

D Other, please explain.

C. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

Name: RonMEY & DBReHT

Mailing Address: 5513 PBUz2ARD Mecik RD,
YR I BEACH, VIr 23457

Telephone Number: 257~ PR ~SBA3

Electronic Mail Address™: —_—

@ Proof of Ownership Atiached (e.g. a copy of Deed, County GIS/Parcel/Tax Record data)
Db 247, Pe.35 ) pp~- ¢ ,5L-28
Seooth Micls TONSHHP

' If available
® Must attach completed Agent Authorization Form
*If available

Version: December 2013 o ] . | - Page 3

VA
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Jurisdictional Determination Request

D. PROPERTY OWNER CERTIFICATION*

1, the undersigned, a duly authorized owner of record of the property/properties identified herein,
do authorize representatives of the Wilmington District, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps)
to enter upon the property herein described for the purpose of conducting on-site investigations
and issuing a determination associated with Waters of the U.S. subject to Federal jurisdiction

under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act and/or Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of
1899,

Beripsy € BirieHT R-(&~- zOlL

Property Owner (please prjnt) Date
% /l:dé%
/

Ifoperty Owner Sjenature
E. JURISIFICTIONAL DETERMINATION TYPE

Select One:

D I am requesting that the Corps provide a preliminary JD for the property identified herein.
This request does include a delineation.

D I am requesting that the Corps provide a preliminary JD for the property identified herein.
This request does NOT include a delineation.

D I 'am requesting that the Corps investigate the property/project area {or the presence or
absence of WoUS’ and provide an approved JD for the property identified herein. This
request does NOT inciude a request for a verified delineation.

D I 'am requesting that the Corps delineate the boundaries of all WoUS on a property/project
area and provide an approved JD (this may or may not include a survey plat).

‘E 1 am requesting that the Corps evaluate and approve a delineation of WoUS (conducted

by others) on a property/project area and provide an approved JD (may or may not
include a survey plat).

‘ For NCDOT requests following the current NCDOT/USACE protocols, skip to Part E.
* Waters of the United States

Version: December 2013

" Page 4
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donalDetermination Request

ALL REQUESTS

Map of Property or Project Area (attached). This Map must clearly depict the boundaries
of the area of evaluation.

Size of Property or Project Area / / 3. g; acres

BHE B’

I verify that the property (or project) boundaries have recently been surveyed and marked
by a licensed land surveyor OR are otherwise clearly marked or distinguishable.

2

JD REQUESTS FROM CONSULTANTS OR AGENCIES
(1) Preliminary JD Requests:

D Completed and signed Preliminary Jurisdictional Determination Form®,

D Project Coordinates: Latitude Longitude

Maps (no larger than 11x17) with Project Boundary Overlay:

Large and small scale maps that depict, at minimum: sireets, intersections, towns
Acrial Photography of the project area
USGS Topographic Map

Soil Survey Map

O O 0 OO0

Other Maps, as appropriate (e.g. National Wetland Inventory Map, Proposed Site
Plan, previous delineation maps, LIDAR maps, FEMA floodplain maps)

® See Appendix A of this Form. From Regulatory Guidance Letter No. 08-02, dated June 26, 2008

Version: December 2013 Page 5
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Jurisdictional Determination Reguest

Delineation Information (when applicable)’:

Wetlands: Tributaries:
Wetland Data Sheets® [] USACE Assessment Forms
D Upland Data Sheets I___l Other Assessment Forms

(when appropriate)

D Landscape Photos, if taken

D Field Sketch overlain on legible Map that includes:

All aquatic resources (for sites with multiple resources, label and identify)
Locations of wetland data points and/or tributary assessment reaches
Locations of photo stations

Approximate acreage/linear footage of aquatic resources

(2) Approved JDs including Verification of a Delineation:

— b7 2
I:l Project Coordinates: 3 &+ 5 45 GbLatitude 722 %ongimdc

Maps (no larger than 11x17) with Project Boundary Overlay:

ﬂ Large and small scale maps that depict, at minimum: streets, intersections, towns

Iz_él Aerial Photography of the project area

IE USGS Topographic Map
4  soil Survey Map

@ Other Maps, as appropriate (e.g. National Wetland Inventory Map, Proposed Site Plan,
previous delineation maps)

7 1987 Manusal Regional Supplements and Data forms can be found at:

bt fwww usace army.mil/Missions/CivilWorks/RepulatorvProgramandPermits /reg_supp.aspx

Wetland and Stream Assessment Methodologies can be found at:

http: ffportal.nedenr.org/c/document library/get file Puuid=76f3c58b-dabR-4560-bad 3-45h7{af06fac&grounld=38364 and,
http/ feoww saw usace.army.mil/ Portals/59/docs//regulatory/oublicnotices/2013/NCSAM Draft Uiser Manusl 130318 pdf

® Delineation information must include, at minimum, one wetland data sheet for each wetland/community type.

P e e e e e e e s oot i o S oo sl

Version: December 2013

Page 6
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Jurisdictional Determination Request

Delineation Information (when applicable):

Wetlands; Tributaries:
Wetland Data Sheets’ |:| USACE Assessment Forms
@ Upland Data Sheets l:l Other Assessment Forms

(when appropriate)

E Landscape Photos, if 1aken

E Field Sketch overlain on legible Map that includes:

All aquatic resources (for sites with multiple resources, label and identify)
Locations of wetland data points and/or tributary assessment reaches
Locations of photo stations

e Approximate acreage/linear footage of aquatic resources

Supporting Jurisdictional Information (for Approved IDs only)
Approved Jurisdictional Determination Form(s) (also known as “Rapanos

Form(s)™)

E Map(s}) depicting the potential (or lack of potential) hydrologic connection(s),
adjacency, etc. to navigable waters.

* Delineation information must include, at minimum, one wetland data sheet for each wetland/community type.

Version: D 2613

- Pa ge'/’
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Jurisdictional Determination Request

L REQUESTS FOR CORPS APPROVAL OF SURVEY PLAT

Prior to final production of a Plat, the Wilmington District recommends that the Land

Surveyor electronically submit a drafi of a Survey Plat to the Corps project manager for
Teview.

Due to storage limitations of our administrative records, the Corps requires that all hard-
copy submittals include at least one original Plat (10 scale) that is no larger than 11"x17”
(the use of match lines for larger tracts acceptable). Additional copies of a plat, including
those larger than 117x17”, may also be submitted for Corps signature as needed. The
Corps also accepts electronic submittals of plats, such as those transmitted as a Portable

Document Format (PDF) file. Upon verification, the Corps can electronically sign these
plats and return them via e-mail to the requestor.

(1) PLATS SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL

K Must be sealed and signed by a licensed professional land surveyor

Must be to scale (all maps must include both a graphic scale and a verbal scale)

Must be legible

K B’ K

Must include a North Arrow, Scale(s), Title, Property Information

Must include a legible WoUS Delineation Table of distances and bearings/metes
and bounds/GPS coordinates of all surveyed delineation points

]

Must clearly depict surveyed property or project boundaries

Must clearly identify the known surveyed point(s) used as reference (e.g. property
commer, USGS monument)

B B X

When wetlands are depicted:

s  Must include acreage (or square footage) of wetland polygons
¢ Must identify each wetland polygon using an alphanumeric system

Version: December 2013 Page 8
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Jurisdictional Determination Request

@ When tributaries are depicted:

¢ Must include either a surveyed, approximate centerline of tributary with

approximate width of tributary OR surveyed Ordinary High Water Marks
(OHWM) of tributary

¢ Must identify each tributary using an alphanumeric system

¢ Must include linear footage of tributaries and calculated area (using approximate
widths or surveyed OHWM)

*  Must include name of tributary (based on the most recent USGS topographic
map) or, when no USGS name exists, identify as “unnamed tributary”

@ all depicted WoUS (wetland polygons and tributary lines) must intersect or tie-to
surveyed project/property boundaries

@ Must include the Jocation of wetland data points and/or tributary assessment
reaches

I;Zl\ Must include, label accordingly, and depict acreage of all waters not currently
subject to the requirements of the CWA (e.g. “isolated wetlands™, “non-
Jjurisdictional waters”). NOTE: An approved JD must be conducted in order to

make an official Corps determination that a particular waterbody or wetland is not
jurisdictional.

M Must include and survey all existing conveyances (pipes, culverts, etc.) that
transport WolUS

Vers—ecember201 = e —pg
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Jurisdictional Determination Request

{2) CERTIFICATION LANGUAGE

E When the entire actual Jurisdictional Boundary is depicied:

include the foliowing Corps Certification language:

“This certifies that this copy of this plat accurately depicts the boundary of the jurisdiction
of Section 404 of the Clean Water Act as determined by the undersigned on this date.
Unless there is o change in the law or our published regulations, the determination of
Section 404 jurisdiction may be relied upon for a period not to exceed five (5) years from
this date. The undersigned completed this determination utilizing the appropriate Regional
Supplement to the 1987 U.5. Army Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual.”

Regulatory Official:

Title:

Date:

USACE Action 1D No.:

D When uplands may be present within a depicted Jurisdictional Boundary:

include the following Corps Certification language:

"This certifies that this copy of this plat identifies oll areas of waters of the United States
regulated pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act as determined by the
undersigned on this date. Unless there is change in the law or our published regulations,
this determination of Section 404 jurisdiction may be relied upon for a period not to exceed
five years from this date. The undersigned completed this determination utilizing the

appropriate Regional Supplement to the 1987 U.5. Army Corps of Engineers Wetlands
Delineation Manual.”

Regulatory Official:

Title:

Date:

USACE Action 1D No.:

e e —

Version: December 2013 Page 10
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Jurisdictional Determination Request

(3) GPS SURVEYS

For Surveys prepared using a Global Positioning System (GPS), the Survey must include
all of the above, as well as:

|:| be at sub-meter accuracy at each survey point.

D include an accuracy verification:

One or more known points (property comer, monument) shall be located with the

GPS and cross-referenced with the existing traditional property survey (metes and
bounds).

l:] include a brief description of the GPS equipment utilized.

Versi}n: Dé-c_:ee 2013
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NOTES:

1, DEVELOPER/MANAGER: B & M INVESTMENTS OF NORTH CAROLINA, LLC
5513 BUZZARD NECK RD,
VIRGINIA BEACH, VA 23457
757-721~5823 (Dffice)
2. SUBJECT PROPERTY: A 113,80 AC. TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ALONG THE NORTH SIDE OF PONDEROSA DR.,
APPROX. 2.7 MILES EAST OF US HWY 17 AT THE VIRGINIA/NORTH CARGLINA BORDER

PINg: 01—7082-00~68-8936—-0000 AS RECORDED: D.B.247, PG.35; PB.6, SL. 28
SOUTH MILLS TOWNSHIP, CAMDEN COUNTY, NCRTH CAROLINA

SUBJECT PARCEL, BOUNDARIES BASED ON “RECOMBINATICN PLAT DRAWN FOR W.E. MEIGGS & SON LOGGING COMPANY, INC.*
PREFPARED BY SCOTT L. TEMPLE, L-3768, DATED 3—15—07, PROJECT # 2007047, P.B. 6, SL 28, CAMDEN COUNTY.

ADJOINING PARCEL, BOUNDARIES BASED THE FOLLOWING REFERENCES RECORDED W/ CAMDEN COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS:
"SAWYER STATE LINE FARM", PREPARED BY ANDREW W. PEARCE, L—729, DATED 10-22-1979, PB. 72, PG. 6=A
"CHARLES A. & MARY L. ROBERTS", PREPARED BY S. ELMO WitLIAMS, L—609, DATED 3-31—-1993, PC. 2, SL. 46-B

REMGTE PARCEL BOUNDARIES BASED ON THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

"CAMDEN YARD MATERIALS, L.L.C.", PREPARED BY J. GARY CULP, L-2950, DATED 9-27-2001, PC. 3, SL. 100-8

CAMDEN COUNTY, NC — GIS/MAPPING SYSTEM (FOR REFERENCE OMLY, ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED)

TOPOGRAPHIC INFORMATION BASED ON N.C.D.C.T. CONTOURS & SURVEY 8Y BISSELL PROFESSIONAL GROUP ON 4-—18-2007.

3. TOTAL PARCEL AREA : 4,961,104 SO. FT. (113.89 AC.)
4. SITE ZONING : I-1, LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (TO BE REZONED W/ MINING OVERLAY DISTRICT)
5. LAND USE — EXISTING USE: AGRICULTURAL (14.100)

PROPOSED USE: MINING QUARY OPERATIONS (14.300)
B, TRAGT DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY :
ENTRANCE; PARKING, & OFFICE AREA = 13,000 SQ. FT, {0.30 AC.)
STOCKPILE /PROCESSING AREA — 175,981 SQ. FT. (4.04 AC.)
PROPOSED HAUL ROAD = 218,768 SQ. FT. {5.02 AC.)
PROPOSED SETTLING POND AREA = 9,464 SO. FT. {0.22 AC.)
PROPOSED EXCAVATED AREA = 3,921,133 SQ. FT. (90.02 AC.)
PROPOSED MISC. DISTURBED AREA = 210,454 SQ. FT. (4.83 AC.)
EXISTING GRAVEL ROAD AREA = 68,560 SQ.FT. (1.57 AC.)
TOTAL AFFECTED AREA = 4,617,360 S.F. (106 AC.)
% MINING COVERAGE OF PARCEL {EXCAVATION ONLY) = 79.0%

7. TOTAL PERMITTED AREA : 5,070,621 SQ. FT. (116.4 AC.)
B. BUFFER YARD REQUIREMENTS:

PROPOSED LAND USE: MINING & QUARY OPERATIONS (14.300)
ADJOINER ADJACENT USE BUFFER
NORTH AGRICULTURAL TYPE "8"
EAST AGRICULTURAL (14.100) TYPE "B"
SOUTH PRIVATE R/W TYPE "A"
WEST SINGLE FAMILY (1100} TYPE "A"

TYPE "A" BUFFER — OPAQUE — LANDSCAPING THAT iS OPAQUE FROM THE GROUND TO A HEIGHT OF €', W/

INTERMITTENT VISUAL OBSTRUCTION FROM ABOVE THE OPAQUE PORTION TO A HEIGHT OF AT LEAST 20°. AN
OPAQUE LANDSCAPING IS INTENDED TO EXCLUDE COMPLETELY ALL VISUAL CONTACT BETWEEN USES AND TO
CREATE A STRONG IMPRESSION OF SPATIAL SEPARATION.

TYPE "B" BUFFER — SEMI-OPAQUE — LANDSCAPING THAT IS 50% OPAQUE FROM THE GROUND TO A HEIGHT OF
3, W/ INTERMITTENT VISUAL OBSTRUCTION FROM ABOVE THE OPAQUE PORTION TC A HEIGHT OF AT LEAST 20.
THE SEMi—OPAQUE LANDSCAPING IS INTENDED TO PARTIALLY BLOCK VISUAL CONTACT BETWEEN USES AND TO

CREATE A STRONG IMPRESSION OF THE SEPARATION OF SPACES.

9. BASED UPON AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY, TOPOGRAPHY, SURROUNDING DRAINAGE MEASURES, AND THE HISTORICAL
USE OF THE LAND IT HAS BEEN ASSUMER THAT THERE ARE NO WETLANDS LOCATED ON SITE.

10. FEMA DATA: F.LR.M. PANEL 370042 7082 K, CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CARCLINA, ADOPTED 12/16/05
ALL PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WITHIN ZONE X (FLOOD ZONES SUBJECT TO CHANGE BY FEMA}
USE OF LAND WITHIN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA IS SUBSTANTIALLY RESTRICTED BY
SECTIONS 151.380 ~ 151.387 OF THE CAMDEN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT QRDINANCE.
11, WHERE TWO OR MORE ACCESSES TO THE MINING OPERATION EXIST, TRAFFIC SHALL BE ROUTED TO THE
ACCESS HAVING THE LEAST NEGATIVE IMPACT ON ADJOINING PROPERTIES.

12, MINED MATERIALS SHALL NOT BE STORED IN EXCESS OF TWENTY-—FIVE (25) FEET IN HEIGHT.
13, ALL TRUCKS HAULING MINED MATERIAL, (L.E. SAND, CLAY, TOPSOIL) SHALL BE COVERED WITH A TARPAULIN.

14, NO BULK WASTE, HAZARDOQUS WASTE, COMMERCIAL WASTE, GARBAGE, CONSTRUCTION OR DEMOLITION WASTE
SHALE BE PLACED ON SITE,

15, NO TRESPASSING SIGNS SHALL BE POSTED AROUND THE SITE BEING MINED AT A MINIMUM DISTANCE OF
250° APART INDICATING THAT A MINING OPERATION IS BEING CONDUCTED ON THE PROPERTY.

16. DRAINAGE PATTERNS SHALL NOT BE ALTERED AS TO CAUSE FLCODING OFF—SITE WHILE THE PERMIT IS
VALID AND AFTER RECLAMATION.

17. NO MINING ACTIVITIES SHALL ADVERSELY AFFECT SURROUNDING IN USE WELLS, ANY PERSON OWNING OR
OPERATING A MINING SITE IN A MANNER THAT ADVERSELY AFFECTS AN IN USE WELL THROUGH
CONTAMINATION OR DIMINUTION OF GROUNDWATER SHALEL PROVIDE THE WELL OWNER WITH A REPLACEMENT
WATER SUPPLY OF EQUAL QUANTITY & QUALITY.

1B. APPLICANT WILL MAKE AVAILABLE ANY POND AREAS TO THE LOCAL VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR
INSTALLATION OF A DRY HYDRANT, IF REQUESTED BY THE LOCAL VFD. ALL ASSOCIATED COSTS FOR
INSTALLATION WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LOCAL VFD.

MINING DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR

NORTH CAROLINA
VICINITY MAP

SCALE; 1"=5000"

VIRGINIA STATE LINE
NORTH CAROCLINA STATE LINE

THE MINING OPERATION CONSISTS OF A 102 ACRE MINE FOR THE EXCAVATION AND DISTRIBUTICN OF SAND.
THE SITE 1S LOCATED OFF OF (US HWY. 17) WITHIN THE SOUTH MILS TOWNSHI® OF CAMDEN COUNTY,
NORTH CAROLINA. THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBES THE CPERATIONAL SUMMARY OF THE PROPOSED OPERATION;

CPERATICN SUMMARY:

1} THE ANTICIPATED AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC LOAD COUNT IS 100 LOADS, WiITH ONE TRUCK LEAVING
APPROXIMATELY EVERY SIX MINUTES. AN OCCASIONAL LARGE JOB WILL INCREASE THE TRAFFIC LOAD
TO APPROXIMATELY 200 LOADS PER DAY, WiITH ONE TRUCK LEAMING EVERY THREE MINUTES.

2)THE EXCAVATOR WL EITHER TEMPORARILY STOCKPILE MATERIAL IN THOSE AREAS SPECIFIED OR PLACE
THE MATERIAL DIRECTLY INTO DUMP TRUCKS WHICH WILL HAUL MATERIAL TO OTHER LOCATIONS WITHIN
THE PROPOSED MINING AREA.

3) LOADING OF SAND ON DELIVERY DUMP TRUCKS WILL BE DONE BY A RUBBER TIRE FRONT—END LOADER
AND A EXCAVATCR DPERATING AT THE MINING AREA ENTRANCE.

4) TRUCKS ENTERING THE MINING AREA WILL BE REQUIRED TO STOP AT THE OFFICE TRAILER TO RECEIVE
LOAD TICKETS AND INSTRUCTIONS UPOM ENTERING AND EXITING THE MINING AREA. SPEED LIMITS WLL
BE POSTED ALONG THE ACCESS ROAD TO THE MINING AREA AND WILL BE STRICTLY ENFORCED. ALL
TRUCKS EXITING THE SITE WITH MINED MATERIAL SHALL BE COVERED WITH A TARPAULIN.

) A DEWATERING PUMP WILL BE PROVIDED TO LOWER THE STATIC GROUND WATER TABLE AS MINING
PROGRESSES. DISCHARGE FROM THE PUMP WiLL BE DIRECTED TO A PROPOSED SETTLING BASIN
LOCATED ADJACENT TG THE ENTRANCE OF THE MINE. THIS SETTLING BASIN IS PROVIDED TO REDUCE
THE AMCUNT OF SUSPENDED SOLIDS [N THE DISCHARGED GROUNDWATER PRICR TO BEING RELEASED
INTO THE ADJOINING CANAL LOCATED ALONG THE SQUTH SIDE OF PONDEROSA DR. THIS CANAL IS
LINKED TO SEVERAL OTHER EXISTING DRAINAGE CANALS IN THE AREA AND IS DIRECTLY CONNECTED TO
THE DISMAL SWAMP CANAL LOCATED ALONG THE WEST SIDE OF US. HWY. 17. THE DISMAL SWAMP
CANAL SERVES AS A PORTION OF THE INTERCOASTAL WATERWAY AND IS CLASSIFIED AS C; SW.

6) A MOTOR GRADER WiLL BE PROVIDED AND OPERATED TO MAINTAIN THE MINE'S ENTRANCE ROAD AND
PORTIONS OF THE EXISTING PONDEROSA DR. GRAVEL ROAD AS DEEMED NECESSARY.

7) IT IS PROJECTED THAT THE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES OPERATING AT THIS FACILITY WILi. BE 15.
8) THE HOURS OF CPERATION OF ALL MINING RELATED FACIITES AND ACTIVITIES ON THE MINING SITE

SHALL BE ESTABLISHED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, N NO CASE SHALL THE
HOURS OF OPERATION BE BEYOND DAWN TO DUSK NOR SHALL MINING ACTIVITY CCCUR ON SUNDAYS.

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE:

THE MINING CPERATION WILL CONSIST QOF ENTANCE, MAUL ROAD, & SETTUNG BASIN CONSTRUCTION,
STRIPPING OF OVERBURDEN, EXCAVATION, AND DEWATERING OF THE MINING AREA. EXCESS MINE MATERIAL
WL BE STOCKPILED IN THE DESIGNATED SITE AREA FOR TRANSPORT FOR OFF—SITE USE. DiSTURBED
AREAS UNAFFECTED BY THE DAILY MINING OPERATION WILL BE ESTABUSHED WITH A VEGETATIVE COVER
WITHIN 21 DAYS OF DISTURBANCE. THE DURATION OF THE MINING OPERATION IS ANTICIPATED TO LAST
FOR APPROXIMATELY 10 YEARS AT WHICH TIME RECLAMATION WILL TAKE PLACE.

RECLAMATION" SUMMARY:

WHEN POSSIBLE, RECLAMATION SHALL BE CONDUCTED SIMULTANEOUSLY WITH THE MINING OPERATIONS.
ANNUAL RECLAMATION REPORTS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE PLANKING & INSPECTIONS DEPARTMENT
WITHIN 10 DAYS OF STATE SUBMISSION.

THE BULK OF THE RECLAMATION WILL. COMMENCE UPON THE COMPLEVION OF THE MINING OPERATION, OR
AT THE END OF A 10-YR PERIOD. THE EXCAVATED MINING AREA WILL BE UTILIZED AS A FUTURE LAKE FOR
AGRICULTURAL AND RECREATONAL PURPOSES. ALL STOCKPILE, OVERBURDEN, & SETTLING BASIN AREAS
Wit BE GRADED LEVEL AND STABILIZED W/ PERMANENT VEGETATION. THE HAUL ROAD WILL BE KEPT
INTACT TG PROVIDE FUTURE LAKE ACCESS, RECLAMATION WILL PROCEED AT THE COMPLETION OF THE
OPERATHON WITHOUT ANY PROVISIONS FOR STAGING OF RECLAMATION.

AT COMPLETION OF RECLAMATION, IT IS ANTICIPATED THAT THE PROPERTY WILL REMAIN UNDER CURRENT
OWNERSHIP ASSUMING RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY ON-SITE ENVIRONMENTAL POLLUTECN THAT MAY OCCUR
AFTER EXCAVATION ACTIVITIES ARE COMPLETE.

LEGEND These standard symbols will
be found in the drawing.
o POWER POLE
——— RIGHT—QOF—-WAY
— — — — —14— — — EXISTING GRADE CONTOUR
— C/L OF ROAD
EDGE OF PAVEMENT/GRAVEL
o — PROPOSED TOP OF SLOPE/TOE OF SLOPE
———crre=cermmmees e DPROPOSED WATER SURFACE
- ¢+ == ==s MINE OVERLAY DISTRICT/DISTURBANCE LIMITS
MASAALIS SIS S A S S sdSd0dn EXISTING TREELINE 5
Ty EXISTING DRAINAGE
Loooo= PROPOSED CULVERT (SIZE AS DENOTED)
PERMIT BOUNDARY LIMITS
PROPOSED SERIMENT FENCE
EXISTING PRIVATE WATER SUPPLY WELL
PRCPOSED GRAVEL ENTRANCE
PROPQOSED HAUL RD.
PROPOSED STOCKPILE AREA
EXISTING GRAVEL RD. (PONDERQSA DR.)
EXISTING CANAL/LAKE WATER SURFACE
EXISTING VEGETATIVE SCREEN
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SOUTH MILLS TOWNSHIP  CAMDEN COUNTY

NORTH CAROLINA

OWNER BONNEY G. BRIGHT ENGINEER:  Bissell Professional Group

MANAGER 5513 BUZZARD NECK RD. Mark S. Bissell, P.E.
DEVELOPER: VIRGINIA BEACH, VA 23457 P.0. Box 1068
757-721-5823 (Office) Kitty Hawk, N.C, 27948

(252) 261-3266
fax: (252) 261—1760

email: _mark@bissellprofessionalgroup, com :
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NOTES:

1) THOSE AREAS, AS DENOTED ON THE PLAN, INDICATE THE PROPOSED REGIOM TO BE RECLAIMED. THE
RECLAMATION PROCESS WILL BE AS FOLLOWS;

2) STOCKPILE AND PROCESSING AREA, SETTLING BASIN, AND BERMS TO BE LEVELED, GRADED AND
STABILIZED W/ PERMANENT VEGETATION. ALL SLOPES ASSOCIATED WITH THE EXCAVATED AREA OF THE
MINE SHALL BE STABILIZED AND VEGETATED W/ PERMANENT VEGETATION WTHIN 21 DAYS OF COMPLETION

3} ANY DISTURBED LAND NOT ASSOCIATED WITH THE DAILY OPERATION OF THE MINE SHALL BE STABILIZED
AND VEGETATED W/ PERMANENT VEGETATION WITHIN 21 DAYS OF DISTURBANCE.

SEEDING NOTES:

The minimum requirement for rectamaotion is that olf disturbed orecs must be stobilized with a permonent
ground cover. It i3 recommended thot due to the close proximity of the proposed mine to the Wildiife
Management Area close altention should be token in the seeding of disturbed land. Plonts should provide
erosion control, forage, and cover for o variety of wildiife os well as allow enable native grassed to
ragenerate over time.

Stoged seeding is generally the most economicol ond efficient reclomation proctice.

The following table provides seeding specificotions for the Coastol Ploin Region;
Seading Mixture

30° HAUL ROAD AVG. EX. GRADE: 14.0° MSL

%ﬁﬁecée: or Kobe Lespedezo (%ag./ac.) MINIMUM

Common Bermudagrass o ~—— 50" UNDISTRURBED BUFFER

o ¥ HERAASEAIERA
\sﬁ?? g;: }i?oetxc;: earonce is desired, omit Koreon of Kobe Lespedeza /&//\B><\\(/\é/\//\>\/<\\//\/‘é\\

Use Common 3e|?rnudcxgruss only In ‘Isolated areas where it cur'?not become a pest. Bermudagrass may be \\/\’\//\\///\\\//’\\\/ \

reploced with 5 Centipedegross (5 Ibs. fac.).

Nurse Plonts:
Prior to Moy 1 or ofter August 15, {temporary winter seeding)
Seeding of Rys {grain) @ 40 Ibs./ac.

Seeding Dotes:
Aug 15—May 1,
(see nurse plants cbove)

Apr t—Aug 15,
Seeding of German Millet @ 10 ibs./oc.

‘Year Round,
Seeding of Korean or Kobe Lespedeza & 30 Ibs, foc.

Soll Amendments:

Apply fime and fertilizer according to soli tests, or apply 3,000 ib/ac. ground agriculiural limestone ond
560 Ib/oc.

10-10—10 fertilizer,

Muleh:

Apply 4,000—5,000 Ib./ac. grain straw or equivalent cover of another suiteble mulching materiol. Anchor
mulch b

tacking with aspholt, roving, or netting, or by crimping with o mulch—onchoring tool. A disk with blades
set nearly

stroight con be used os o mulch-anchoring tool,

Malntenance:
Refertilize the following April with 50 ib/ac. nitrogen. Repeat, os growth requires. Moy be mowed only once

a year,
Where o neot appearonce Is desired, omit Sericea Lespedeza ond mow as often s needed.

EXTRA STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC
WITHOUT WIRE MESH SUPPORT

STEEL POST

FABRIC HEIGHT: 18"-24"
ABOVE GROUND

ATTACH FILTER FABRIC
SECURELY TO UPSTREAMg
SIDE OF POST

S—p— —
VP T W Y, T O L 0. 00 L

R

v gy

8' MAXIMUM SPACING WITH STANDARD
FABRIC & WIRE SUPPORT FENCE.

6' MAXIMUM SPACING EXTRA STRENGTH
FABRIC WITHOUT WIRE SUPPORT FENCE.
4' MAXIMUM SPACING STANDARD FABRIC
WITHCOUT WIRE SUPPORT FENCE.

N

NGNS

o, e ARl B A s B

%

SRR R

SETTLING BASIN
(SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET)

NN T

2N
SANNRZ

e

- /\\\// gy \\ :
S

" MAX, MINE_BOTTOM ELEV.: —48,0' MSL.

2NN
NI e

P

RN
SRR S e

Pt

TYPICAL MINE SECTION

NOT TO SCALE

STEEL POST A
/_ 36" HIGH MAXIMUM
d ”»
PONDING HEIGHT 12
SEE PLAN
24" FLOW l
MAX g
MECHANICALLY 12"
COMPACTED EARTH p
MO j
R
24" MIN. 5\}\/
2R
S L
. : 4" WIDE TRENCH WITH

COMPACTED BACKFILL

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION

NOT TO SCALE SECTION VIEW

SECTION A—A
FILTER CLOTH

N

1.5’

KEY IN 6"-8"; RECOMMENDED FOR ENTIRE PERIMETER

DEWATERING DISCHARGE OUTLET APRON

1. APRON LINING MATERIAL IS RIP-RAP
2. La = THE LENGTH OF THE RIPRAFP APRON

NOT TQO SCALE (LOCATIONS AND SIZE AS

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION SPECIFICATIONS:

1. USE SYNTHETIC FILTER FABRIC OF AT LEAST 95% BY WEIGHT OF POLYQLEFINS OR
POLYESTER, WHICH IS CERTFIED BY THE MANUFACTURER AS CONFORMING TO THE
REQUIREMENTS IN ASTM D £461. FILTER FABRIC SHALL CONTAIN ULTRAVIOLET RAY
INHIBITORS AND STABILIZERS TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 6 MONTHS OF EXPECTED
USABLE CONSTRUCTION LIFE AT A TEMPERATURE RANGE OF © TO 120F.

2. FENCE POSTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 1.33 LB/UINEAR FT STEEL AND A MINIMUM
LENGTH OF 5 FT. WITH PROJECTIONS TO FACILITATE FASTENING THE FABRIC. WOOD
POSTS ARE NO LONGER ACCEPTABLE. POSTS SHALL BE DRIVEN A MINIMUM OF 24°
INTO THE GROUND.

3. CONSTRUCT THE SEDIMENT BARRIER OF EXTRA STRENGTH SYNTHETIC FILTER
FABRIC. ENSURE THAT THE HEIGHT OF THE SEDIMENT FENCE DOES NOT EXCEED
24 INCHES ABOVE THE GROUND SURFACE.

4. CONSTRUCT THE FILTER FABRIC FROM A CONTINUQUS ROU CUT TO THE LENGTH
OF THE BARRIER TO AVOID JOINTS. WHEN JOINTS ARE NECESSARY, SECURELY
FASTEN THE FILTER CLOTH ONLY AT A SUPPORT POST WiTH 4 FT MINIMUM
OVERLAP TO THE NEXT POST.

5. SYNTHETIC FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE FASTENED SECURELY TO EACH FENCE POST
WITH MIN, S0 LB, TENSILE STRENGTH WIRE OR ZIP TIES AT TOP, MID—SECTION AND
BOTTOM. FABRIC HEIGHT SHALL BE BETWEEN 187 MIN. TO 24" MAX. ABOVE
GROUND LEVEL ON THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF THE POSTS. EXTRA STRENGTH FILTER
FABRIC W/6" POST SPACING AND SHALL SECURELY FASTENED DIRECTLY TO POSTS.
WRE OR PLASTIC ZiP TIES SHOULD HAVE MINIMUM 50# TENSILE STRENGTH.

6. 12 INCHES OF FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE BURIED IN AN EXCAVATED TRENCH
APPROXIMATELY 4 INCHES WIDE AND 8 INCHES DEEP ALONG THE PROPOSED LINE
OF POSTS AND UPSLOPE FROM THE BARRIER, BACKFILL TRENCH WTH
MECHANICALLY COMPACTED SOl PLACED OVER THE FILTER FABRIC, DO NOT
ATTACH FILTER FABRIC TO TREES.

7. SLT FENCE SHALL BE INSPECTED AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK & AFTER EACH
RAINFALL EVENT. MAKE ANY REPAIRS IMMEDIATELY. SHOUD THE FABRIC COLLAPSE,
TEAR, DECOMPOSE OR BECOME INEFFECTIVE, REPLACE IT PROMPTLY.

B. REMOVE SEDIMENT DEPOSITS AS NECESSARY RO PROVIDE ADEQUATE STORAGE
VOLUME FOR THE NEXT RAIN AND TO REDUCE PRESSURE ON THE FENCE. TAKE
CARE TO AVOID UNDERMINING THE FENCE DURING CEEANOUT.

9. REMOVE ALL FENCING MATERIALS AND UNSTABLE SEDIMENT DEPOSITS AND BRING
THE AREA TO GRADE AND STABILIZE |7 AFTER THE CONTRIBUTING DRAINAGE AREA
HAS BEEN PROPERLY STABILEZED.

3. Wa = THE WIDTH OF THE RIPRAP APRON
3.

DENOTED ON PLAN SHEET) d = THE STONE DIAMETER IS &*

APPROXIMATE EXISTING
GROUND ELEVATION = 14.5' MSL |

STATIONARY CENTRIFUGAL
PUMP STATION WITH
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6.A

CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

New Business

Item Number: 6.A

Meeting Date: March 06, 2017

Submitted By: Stephanie Humphries, Finance Director
Finance
Prepared by: Stephanie Humphries

Item Title FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott,
Adams, & Co., PA

Attachments: Presentation - Camden County - 2016 ~ (PPTX)
2015-2016 Camden County Audit (PDF)
15-16 Balance Sheet (PDF)

Presentation by:  Greg Allison
Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co, PA

Summary: FY 2015-2016 Audit presentation
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Audit Presentation
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

3
:
O
ISy
2
=
J




County of Camden

Board Meeting

* Presentation of Audit Results

o I. General Comments

« [I. Required Communications

Audit Results

Questions and Comment

Close
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County of Camden

Required Communications

Area

Comments

Responsibilities Under Generally Accepted Auditing

Standards, Government Auditing Standards, OMB )

glrtcular A-T33, and the State Single Audit Implementation
ct.

Express opinions on these financial statements in conformity with
eneral}ly accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
tandards. ; ;
Accomplished. No material error noted.

Plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, Completed. Our work was not limited in
assurance that the financial statements are free of material '
misstatement and in compliance with government regulations. any way.

Evaluate internal control over financial reporting.

Determine the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures based on
risk assessments and our evaluation of internal control.

Perform all planned procedures and have complete access to both
management and required information.

Communicate significant deficiencies in the internal control.

Attachment: Presentation - Camden County - 2016 (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson,
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County of Camden

Required Communications (continued)

Area Comments

Adoption or Change in Accounting Policies

Communicate the initial adoption of or a change in an None noted.
accounting principle which had or is expected to have a
significant effect on the financial statements.

Management Judgment and Accounting Estimates Methods used and evidence considered
appear to have led to reasonable amounts

being included in the financial statements.

Assess methodologies used and basis of evidence for matters
requiring judgments and estimates.

. . ! The financial statement disclosures are
Financial statement disclosures neutral, consistent, and clear.

Significant Audit Adjustments or Unrecorded Certain year-end reclassifications and
Differences adjustments based on subsequent
information and/or audit testing. None out
of the normal course.

Communicate significant recorded and unrecorded differences.
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County of Camden

Required Communications (continued)

Area
Disagreements with Management

Communicate any disagreements on financial or reporting
matters that, if not satisfactorily resolved, would cause a
modification of our report.

Management Representations
Consultation with Other Accountants

Communicate consultation that took place with other
accountants.

Prior to Retention Issues

Communicate any major issues that management discussed
with the auditor in connection with the retention of the
auditor, including the application of accounting principles
and auditing standards.

Comments

Management provided a managem
representation letter dated October

None to our knowledge.

ent
25, 2016.
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County of Camden

Required Communications (continued)

Area Comments

10 Difficulties Encountered Performing the Audit

Any serious difficulties the auditor encountered in dealing with None noted.

management such as unreasonable delays in providing needed
information, unreasonable timetable set by management, or
unavailability of client personnel.

11 Irregularities and Illegal Acts None noted.

Communicate the existence of any material irregularities and/or
illegal acts determined during the audit.

i No other findings or issues were
12 Other Findings or Issues discussed with, or communicated to
management.

Attachment: Presentation - Camden County - 2016 (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson,
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County of Camden

General Fund
Dear Board Members. ||

Below isa summarization of some of the key itemsin the audit report. 2016

Cash and cash equivalents 13,844,084

Total General Fund Revenues 11,885,397

Total General Fund Expenditures 12,183,876

Other Financing Sources (857,680)

Net Change for year (1,156,159)

Net position, beginning of year 8,309,353

Net position, end of year 7,153,194

Unassigned Fund Balance as a Percentage of General Fund Expenditures 53.9%

Attachment: Presentation - Camden County - 2016 (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson,
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County of Camden

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents by year

Attachment: Presentation - Camden County - 2016 (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson,
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County of Camden

Analysis of Total General Fund Balance to General
Fund Expenditures

80.00%
75 00% 72.34%

70.00%

65.00%

- 2016 (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson,

64.49%

55.00%
50.00%
45.00%

Attachment: Presentation - Camden County
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County of Camden
Ad Valorem Tax Collections

Excluding Motor
Motor Vehicle
Vehicle Only

- 2016 (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson,

Current Year 97.49% 97.24% 100.00%

Statewide 96.47%

Attachment: Presentation - Camden County
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CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Year Ended June 30, 2016
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

P. Michael McLain, Chairman

Sandy Duckwall, Vice Chairman

Garry Meiggs
Tom White

Clayton Riggs

OFFICIALS

County Manager
Michael Renshaw
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3

Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Camden County, North Carolina, as of and for the
year then ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise Camden County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of Camden County ABC Board. Those statements
were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Camden County ABC Board is based
solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of Camden County ABC
Board and the Camden County TDA were not audited in accordance with Governmental
Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’

Members

American [nsticute of CPAs - N.C. Association of CPAs — AICPA Division of Firms
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judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinions, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Camden County, North Carolina as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison
for the General Fund, Courthouse and Shiloh FD, and Special Capital Fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Other Postemployment Benefits” Schedules
of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions, and the Local Government Employees’
Retirement System Schedules of the County’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
and County Contributions, and the Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund Schedule
of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset and Schedule of County
Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the basic financial statements of Camden County, North Carolina.
The combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules as
well as the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards, Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other
schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit,
the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the
combining and individual fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules,
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 20, 2016 on our consideration of Camden County’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Camden County’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

%Mvpacﬂ-, Fhice, Zeott, Tdams & o, FJ.

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A
Wilmington, North Carolina
December 20,2016
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Camden County, we offer readers of Camden County’s (the "County") financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage
readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the
County’s financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e On the government-wide statements, the assets and deferred outflows of resources of the County's governmental
activities exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $36,385,666 (net
position). The County's net assets are impacted considerably by qualified zone academy bonds (QZAB) that the
County has issued on behalf of the Camden County Board of Education. The assets are not reflected in the County's
financial statements, but the full amount of the long-term debt related to school construction is reflected in the
County's financial statements.

e At the end of the fiscal year, fund balance (before any reserves or designations) for the General Fund was $7,153,194
or 59% total General Fund expenditures for the current fiscal year. Approximately $6,563,885 remains as unassigned
fund balance.

e The County's combined governmental funds reported ending fund balances of $11,803,303, a decrease of $1,709,162
related to $1.5 million investment in two water and sewer infrastructure projects and a new Fire Response Vehicle.

e The County's Net Position increased by $777,368 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.

e The County's total debt decreased during the fiscal year by $770,114 from normal principal payments made timely
and partial forgiveness of a QZAB loan.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Camden County’s basic financial statements. The
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views
of the County through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic
financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the
financial condition of the Camden County.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Camden County
Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1

Management’s Basic
Discussion and Financial

Analysis Statements

Government-wide Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial Statements
Statements Statements
Summary > Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements (Exhibits1&2) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits 3-8) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the
individual parts of the County’s government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements.
There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the government fund statements; 2) the budgetary comparison
statements; 3) the proprietary governmental funds statements; 4) the agency fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some
of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to show details about the
County's major and non-major governmental funds, all of which are added together in one column on the basic financial
statements. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Following the Notes is the required supplemental information. This section contains funding information about the County's
Other Post Employment Benefit Plan and Pension Plans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Camden County

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide
short and long-term information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how it has changed. Net position is the
difference between the County’s total assets and total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Measuring net position is
one way to gauge the County’s financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) business-type activities;
and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as general
administration, taxation and records, human services, education, and public safety. Property taxes, other taxes, and state
and federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those where services are provided
and customers are charged for those services. These include the water & sewer services offered by the County. The final
category is the component units. The Camden ABC Board and Camden TDA are such units.

The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities. A
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Camden County, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to
ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the North Carolina
General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary fund.

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. Most of the County's basic services are accounted for in the governmental funds.
These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end
that will be available for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial
statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial
resources available to finance the County’s programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a
part of the fund financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The budget is a legally
adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the decisions
of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from
identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund
demonstrates how well the County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in
providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary
basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The
statement shows four columns: 1) the original budget as adopted by the Board; 2) the final budget as amended by the
Board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or
variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Camden County

Proprietary Funds - The County has one kind of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The County uses enterprise funds to
account for the South Camden Water & Sewer District operations. This fund is the same as those functions shown in the
business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
The County has four agency funds. These are the funds for Social Services clients, School Tax Fund, Motor Vehicle Tax
Fund, and the Nancy M. and H. Clay Ferebee III Camden County Courthouse Trust.

data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information - In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain
required supplementary information concerning Camden County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension
benefits to it's employees.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Camden County’s Net Position

Figure 2
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Current and other assets $12,377,909 $ 14,701,612 $ 2,633,236 $ 1,173,629 $ 15,011,145 §15,875,241
Restricted Cash 249,772 - - - 249,772 -
Capital assets 14,181,373 13,640,403 21,949,188 22,178,480 36,130,561 35,818,883
Deferred outflows of resources 239,261 247,713 20,532 22,054 259,793 269,767
Total assets 27,048,315 28,589,728 24,602,956 23,374,163 51,651,271 51,963,891
Long-term liabilities outstanding 10,958,904 11,325,809 2,190,844 2,371,288 13,149,748 13,697,097
Other liabilities 1,585,189 1,552,957 404,370 399,277 1,989,559 1,952,234
Deferred inflows of resources 119,788 640,844 6,510 65,418 126,298 706,262
Total liabilities 12,663,881 13,519,610 2,601,724 2,835,983 15,265,605 16,355,593
Net Position:
Net investment
in capital assets 13,004,914 9,198,455 19,577,901 19,583,769 32,582,815 28,782,224
Restricted 1,632,873 2,235,135 - - 1,632,873 2,235,135
Unrestricted (253,353) 3,636,528 2,423,331 954 411 2,169,978 4,590,939
Total net position $14384434 $ 15,070,118 $22,001,232 $20,538,180 § 36,385,666 § 35,608,298

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition. The assets
and deferred outflows of resources of the County exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $36,385,666 as
of June 30, 2016. The County's Net Position increased by $777,368 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. At June 30,
2016, the increase in this category of net position is due to repayment of long-term debt and the purchase of capital assets
from funds provided by grants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Camden County

Net position is reported in three net categories: Net investment in capital assets of $32,582,815, Restricted assets of
$1,632,873, and Unrestricted net position of $2,169,978. The amount Net investment in capital assets category is defined
as the County's investment in County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other
equipment, and infrastructure) less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The County
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to
repay that debt must be provided by other sources since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The second category of net position is restricted net position. Restricted resources decreased by $602,262 for a total of
$1,632,873 at June 30, 2016. Constraints on use are externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or can be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or legislation.

The final category of net position is unrestricted net position. This balance may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2016, the total unrestricted net position decreased to $2,420,961. The
decrease is primarily attributable the retirement of qualified zone academy bonds that were issued on behalf of the school
system. Under North Carolina law, the County is responsible for providing capital funding for the school system. The
County has chosen to meet its legal obligation to provide the school system capital funding by using a mixture of County
funds, earmarked Local Sales Tax collections, loans, and Qualified Zone Academy Bonds. The assets are funded by the
County; however, they are utilized by the school system. Since the County, as the issuing government, acquires no capital
assets, the County has incurred a liability without a corresponding increase in assets. At the end of the fiscal year,
approximately $14 million of the outstanding debt on the County's financial statements was related to assets included in the
school system's financial statements. The school debt is collateralized by a deed of trust granting, among other things, a
first lien of record on the Project, including the land constituting a part of the Project, all other buildings, structures,
improvement and fixtures thereon, and all appurtenances thereto of any nature whatsoever, excluding mobile or modular
classrooms located on the site at any time, subject to permitted encumbrances. Accordingly, the County makes installment
payments under the Installment Financing Agreement for payment of the debt. The County's obligation to make payments
under the Installment Financing Agreement constitutes a pledge of the County's faith and credit within the meaning of any
constitutional provision. Principal and interest requirements will be provided by an appropriation in the year in which they
become due.

The impact of the inclusion of the school system debt without the corresponding assets was offset by the following positive
operational initiatives and results:

. Camden County has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which instructs management to
conduct the business of the County in such a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater than
25% of budgeted expenditures.

o Continued diligence in the collection of property taxes (excluding motor vehicles) resulted in maintaining a collection
percentage in excess of 97.24%.
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Camden County
Camden County
Changes in Net Position
Figure 3 <
o
Governmental Business-Type o
Activities Activities Total o
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 s
0
e
Revenues: G
ke
Program Revenues <
Charges for Services $ 1,632,395 $ 1,120,881 $§ 1,948,548 1,222,116 § 3,580,943 $§ 2,342,997 -
Operating grants and contributions 1,279,575 1,799,845 - - 1,279,575 1,799,845 8
Capital grants and contributions - - - 867,823 - 867,823 N
General revenues: )
Property taxes 7,384,757 7,536,187 - - 7,384,757 7,536,187 g
Other taxes 4,045,616 4,293,940 - - 4,045,616 4,293,940 o
Investment earnings 70,606 76,880 6,096 7,378 76,702 84,258 c
Other - 45,118 - - - 45,118 2
Total revenues 14,412,949 14,872,851 1,954,644 2,097,317 16,367,593 16,970,168 g‘
o
Expenses: |'E
General government 3,144,256 2,586,080 - - 3,144,256 2,586,080 )
Public Safety 3,897,993 3,553,202 - - 3,897,993 3,553,202 c
Economic and physical development 1,277,327 923,131 - - 1,277,327 923,131 8
Human services 1,430,698 1,319,313 - - 1,430,698 1,319,313 =
Cultural and recreation 513,157 1,019,327 - - 513,157 1,019,327 ?:3)
Education 2,670,474 2,311,348 - - 2,670,474 2,311,348 o
Interest on long-term debt 419,527 429225 - - 419,527 429225 Q)
Environmental protection 588,201 541,863 - - 588,201 541,863 _é\
Water - - 1,648,592 1,525,819 - 1,525,819 -
Total expenses 13,941,633 12,683,489 1,648,592 1,525,819 13,941,633 14,209,308 S
>
. <
Increase (decrease) in net position before ©
transfers and special items 471,316 2,189,362 306,052 571,498 2,425,960 2,760,860 E
Transfers (1,157,000) (135,018) 1,157,000 135,018 - - :
L.
Increase (decrease) in net position (685,684) 2,054,344 1,463,052 706,516 777,368 2,760,860 q-
[e))
S
Net position, beginning 15,070,118 13,015,774 20,538,180 19,831,664 35,608,298 32,847,438 ~
Net position, June 30, ending $ 14384434 $ 15,070,118 § 22,001,232 20,538,180 $ 36,385,666 $ 35,608,298 %
>
<
2>
Governmental activities: Governmental activities decreased the County's net position by $685,684. S
@]
- - - - .-, . - .-, O
Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the County's net position by $1,463,052. =
©
S
©
O
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Camden County

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Camden County's financing
requirements. Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a government's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County's fund balance
available in the General Fund was $6,563,885 while total fund balance reached $7,153,194. The County currently has an
unassigned fund balance of 54% of GF expenditures while total fund balance represents 59% of the same amount.

At June 30, 2016, the governmental funds of the County reported a combined fund balance of $11,803,303, a 13% decrease
over last year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of
three categories: 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once
exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as
Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. The total
amendments to the General Fund increased revenues by $197,250 (2%) of the original budget. None of the appropriated
Fund Balance was needed to offset the expenditures.

Proprietary Funds: The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
statements but in more detail. The total increase in net position was $1,463,052.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Camden County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2016, totals $36,130,561 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include land, buildings, automotive
equipment, office and other equipment, and water and sewer lines.

Major capital assets transactions during the year include:
e Construction and equipment in the water district.
e Construction and equipment in the governmental funds.
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6.A.b

Management Discussion and Analysis

Camden County
Camden County’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
Figure 4
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Land $ 5015871 $ 5,015871 $ 1,050,394 $ 768,380 $ 6,066,265 $ 5,784,251
Buildings 3,555,924 3,709,139 - - 3,555,924 3,709,139
Furniture, fixtures and 1,833,344 1,046,366 43,789 54,985 1,877,133 1,101,351
equipment, vehicles

Other improvements 3,776,234 3,421,237 20,824,405 21,355,115 24,600,639 24,776,352
Construction in Progress - 447,790 30,600 - 30,600 447,790
Total $14,181,373 $ 13,640,403 $21,949,188 $22,178,480 $ 36,130,561 §35,818,883

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in Note III(a)5 of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-term Debt: As of June 30, 2016, the South Camden Water & Sewer District had total bonded debt outstanding of
$2,371,287. Other outstanding loans include: Drinking Water State Revolving Loan, $244,074; State Clean Water Bond
Loan, $505,960. Camden County has $11,198,273 in outstanding debt that is related to the capital improvement and
additional schools built on behalf of the Camden County School Board. The County has several installment notes
outstanding as well. A summary of total long-term debt as of June 30, 2016 is shown below:

Camden County's Outstanding Debt

Figure S
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
General Obligation Debt $ - 8 - $ 2371,287 $ 2,594,711 $ 2,371,287 § 2,594,711
Installment Purchases 11,198,273 11,744,963 - - 11,198,273 11,744,963
Total $11,198,273 $ 11,744,963 $ 2371287 § 2,594,711 § 13,569,560 §$ 14,339,674

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue to 8 percent of
the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The debt margin required by local
Resolution is 2%. The current debt margin for Camden County (as calculated on assessed real property only) is 1.5% or
$13,569,559. Well below the allowable debt limit for the County. Additional information regarding the County's long-term
debt can be found in Note 6 of this report.

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)
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6.A.b

Management Discussion and Analysis
Camden County

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
. The unemployment rate in the County was at 5.6% on June 30, 2016, compared with a federal rates 0f 4.9% and a
State rate of 4.9%. The rate for Camden County was 6.2% at the end of the prior fiscal year.

. New residential unit construction permits were 37 units this year. Total new residential construction permits
increased to $9,384,900 for this fiscal year.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

Governmental Activities

The County has approved an $12.6 general budget for the fiscal year 2017. This will be accomplished with an expected
increase in Sales Tax Revenues, county ad valorem tax growth, and a portion of Appropriated Fund Balance to increase the
funding appropriated to the Camden County Board of Education. Budgeted expenditures for education in the General Fund
for 2017 increased to $2.3 million through a General Fund appropriation. Capital outlay for the schools is budgeted at
$298,758 through General Fund appropriation and the debt service payments, related to school construction and renovation,
are budgeted at $692,844 and will be funded from the School Capital Reserve Fund which gets its revenue from an
earmarked portion of the sales tax, and General Fund appropriations as needed.

Several factors will positively affect the economic outlook of the county over the next several fiscal years. Economic
forecasts indicate growth in coming years which, while modest, are positive indicators for prospective commercial growth in
the county. The County has applied for grants for a $2.3 million Water Treatment Plant. The federal Economic
Development Commission grant request along with a Golden LEAF grant and matching County funds will provide funding
for a new plant that will allow for commercial expansion along Hwy 158. We have already seen an increase in interest from
the retail sectors to locate in Camden County with the recent construction of a Dollar General and a Hardee's as well as the
planned Towne Center project; all of which will expand the tax base and provide employment

Factors that may negatively affect the economic position of the county include the unexpected change to the sales tax
restructuring. While the change provides additional funds for school capital and economic development, an unrestricted
allocation would have been more promising. Another limiting factor is changes that may occur in the state and federal
political arena. These changes could create local impacts which causes a large amount of uncertainly for Local Government
and Camden County.

Business-type Activities

The South Camden Water District is currently completing a Fresh Water Well project that required $400,000 in County
contributions in 2015-2016. The County has allocated an additional $1.1 million in funds for engineering, design and
construction of a second wastewater treatment plant to be located in the Courthouse Township. As both of these projects are
completed, the SCWD expects to be in a better position to provide adequate water and sewer with Camden County. The
return on this investment is expected to come from the ability to market adequate capacity for commercial development.

12
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Camden County

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County's finances for those with an interest in this area. Questions
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the
Finance Officer, Camden County, 330 East Hwy. 158, P.O. Box 190, Camden, NC 27921. You can also call 1-252-338-

6363 for more information.

6.A.b
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Taxes receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accrued interest on taxes receivable
Net pension asset
Capital assets:
Land, non-depreciable
improvements, and construction in
progress
Other capital assets, net of
depreciation
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences payable
Other postemployment benefits

Current-portion of long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Net pension liability - LGERS
Compensated absences payable
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
Pension deferrals
Prepaid taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Stabilization by State Statute
Register of Deeds

Fire Protection

School Capital

Capital Improvement
Unrestricted

Total net position

$

$

6.A.b

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 1
Camden County, North Carolina <
Statement of Net Position o
June 30, 2016 S
(&)
3
Primary Government Component Units g
Governmental Business-type Camden County Camden %
Activities Activities Total ABC Board County TDA <
11,110,413 $ 2,483,899 $ 13,594,312 $ 102,865 $ 94,340 S
249,772 - 249,772 - - n
273,398 . 273,398 - . o
881,802 149,337 1,031,139 - 2,086 =
- - - 126,048 - Q.
- - - 7,782 - 5
90,223 - 90,223 - - o
22,073 - 22,073 - - =3
o
e
|_
5,015,871 1,080,994 6,096,865 25,405 - 2
o
9,165,502 20,868,194 30,033,696 113,737 - 2
26,809,054 24,582,424 51,391,478 375,837 96,426 <
T
©)
239,261 20,532 259,793 11,597 - -
O
i
5
426,256 63,461 489,717 120,859 8 <
93,420 - 93,420 - - ©
79,662 11,389 91,051 - - B
431,861 83,300 515,161 . - N
553,990 225,324 779,314 - - 2
196,545 21,838 218,383 4,398 - >
118,076 23,043 141,119 - - i
10,644,283 2,145,963 12,790,246 - - ~
12,544,093 2,574,318 15,118,411 125,257 8 5
<
2
c
107,360 6,510 113,870 2,286 - 3
12,428 - 12,428 - - S)
119,788 6,510 126,298 2,286 - c
5
S
13,004,914 19,577,901 32,582,815 139,142 - 8
884,339 - 884,339 - 2,086 ©
11,363 - 11,363 - - 3
487,962 - 487,962 - - q
249,209 - 249,209 - - =t
: - : : S
(253,353) 2,423,331 2,169,978 120,749 94,332 e
14,384,434 $_ 22,001,232 $_ 36,385,666 $ 259,891 $ 96,418 S
€
e
s
<
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Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended june 30,2016

oo PTOgTamM Revenues

6.A.b

Exhibit 2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Unit
Operating Grants Capital Grants Camden
Charges for and and Gover 1 il typ County ABC Camden
Functions/Programs enses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Board County TDA
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
General government 3,144,256 $ 304,765 $ - % - (2,839,491} $ -8 (2,839,491)
Public safety 3,897,993 553,501 134,155 - (3,210,337) - (3,210,337}
Cultural and recreation 513,157 - 142,857 - (370,300) - (370,300}
ic and physical devels 1,277,327 227,492 - - (1,049,835) - (1,049,835}
Human services 1,430,698 - 965,506 - (465,192) - (465,192}
Education 2,670,474 448,783 - - (2,221,691) - (2,221,691}
Environmental protection 588,201 97,854 37,057 - (453,290) - (453,290}
Interest on long-term debt 419,527 - - - (419,527} - (419,527}
Total governmental activities 13,941,633 1,632,395 1,279,575 - (11,029,663} - (11,029,663}
Business-type activities:
Water 1,648 /948,548 - - - 299,956 299,956
Total business-type activities 1,648,592 ,948,548 - - - 299,956 299,956
$ 15590, $ ,580,943_$ 1,279,575 § - (11,029,663) $ 299,956 $ (10,729,707}
Component units:
28,670 $ - 3 - % - $ - % (28,670)
ABC Board 1.360.640 1,362,653 - - 2,013 -
Total component units 1,360,640 $ 1,362,653 $ - $ - $ 2,013 $ (28,670)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 7,384,757 - 7,384,757 - -
Local option sales tax 1,047,860 - 1,047,860 - -
Other taxes and licenses 2,997,756 - 2,997,756 - 35,741
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs - - - - -
Investment earnings, unrestricted 70,606 6,096 76,702 20 488
Miscellaneous, unrestricted - - - - 41
Transfer to component unit - - - - -
Transfers (1,157,000} 1,157,000 - - -
Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 10,343,979 1,163,096 11,507,075 20 36,270
Change in net position (685,684) 1,463,052 777,368 2,033 7,600
Net position, beginning 15,070,118 20,538,180 35,608,298 257,858 88,818

Net position-ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

14,384,434 §

22,001,232 $

36.385,666 §

259,891
——

S—
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ASSETS

Cash, including time deposits
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Due from other funds

Total assets $

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid taxes
Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balances:
Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute
Register of Deeds
Fire Protection
School Capital
Committed
Capital Reserve
Tax Revaluation
Economic Development
Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred intlows of

resources and fund balances $

Net pension asset.

Net Position.

Camden County, North Carolina

Liabilities for earned revenues considered deferred inflows of resources in fund statements.

funds.

Pension related deferrals.

during the year.)

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30,2016
Major NonMajor
Other Total
Courthouse Special Capital  Governmental Governmental
General Fund and Shiloh FD Fund Funds Funds
6,858,036 $ 233,670 § 2,580,996 $ 1437711 $ 11,110,413
- - - 249,772 249,772
858,593 11,635 - 284,972 1,155,200
119,500 - - - 119,500
7,836,129 § 245,305 § 2,580,996 § 1,972,455 § 12,634,885
401,223 731 - 24,302 426,256
- 119,500 - - 119,500
401,223 120,231 - 24,302 545,756
269,284 2,537 - 1,577 273,398
12,428 - - - 12,428
281,712 2,537 - 1,577 285,826
589,309 11,635 - 283,395 884,339
- - - 11,363 11,363
- 110,902 - 377,060 487,962
- - - 249,209 249,209
- - 2,580,996 - 2,580,996
- - - 359,890 359,890
- - - 665,659 665,659
6,563,885 - - - 6,563,885
7,153,194 122,537 2,580,996 1,946,576 11,803,303
7,836,129 _$ 245,305 $ 2,580,996 $ 1,972,455
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit 1) are different because:
22,073
Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of
239,261
273,398
Other assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are not accrued as income in the
' 90,223
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 14,181,373
(107,360)
Long-term debt included as net position below (includes the addition of long-term debt and principal payments
(11,921,292)
196,545

Net pension liability.

Net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$___ 14384431

6.A.b

Exhibit 3
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REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
Restricted intergovernmental
Local Contributions
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Environmental protection
Economic and physical development
Culture and recreation
Human services
Intergovernmental:
Education
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Proceeds of long-term debt
Transfer to component unit
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other funds

Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances-beginning
Fund balances-ending

Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Major Non Major
Other Total
Courthouse Special Capital Gover tal Gover tal
General Fund and Shiloh FD Fund Funds Funds
7,325,931 66,572 - $ 61,052 $ 7,453,555
2,489,181 261,765 428,919 730,149 3,910,014
81,630 - - - 81,630
1,129,080 2,000 - 400,349 1,531,429
- - - 488,783 488,783
672,557 9,373 - 103,351 785,281
95,271 - - 30,722 125,993
44,386 1,361 14,957 9,902 70,606
47,361 50 - 859 48,270
11,885,397 341,121 443,876 1,825,167 14,495,561
1,918,590 - 970,846 220,294 3,109,730
3,683,203 688,048 - 132,620 4,503,871
568,034 - - 9,685 577,719
795,946 - - 439,558 1,235,504
594,078 - - - 594,078
1,387,965 - - 1,387,965
2,371,725 - - 298,748 2,670,473
469,649 - - 77,042 546,691
394,686 - - 27,006 421,692
12,183,876 688,048 970,846 1,204,953 15,047,723
(298,479) (346,927) (526,970) 620,214 (552,162)
(857,680) - - (624,320) (1,482,000}
- - 325,000 - 325,000
(857,680) - 325,000 (624,320) (1,157,000)
(1.156,159) (346,927) (201,970) (4,106) (1,709,162)
8,309,353 469,464 2,782,966 1,950,682 13,512,465
7,153,194 $ 122,537 $ 2,580,996 $ 1946576 % 11,803,303

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6.A.b

Exhibit 4
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Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30,2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balance - total government funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as
expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is
the amount by which capital outlays increases exceeded
the book value of capital outlay decreases in fiscal year.

Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized

Depreciation expense for governmental assets

Cost of asset disposed of during the year

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal
year are not included on the Statement of Activities

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds:

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of
the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. This amount is
the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-
term debt and related items.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do
not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Accrued interest

Compensated absences
Pension expense

Other postemployment benefits

Total changes in net position of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6.A.b

$ (1,709,162)

1,198,963
(644,179)
554,784
30,890
190,683
(117,106)
546,691
2,165
11,047
(127,269)
(68,407)
(182,464)
$_ (685,684)
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Camden County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues

Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Local contributions
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Human Services
Cultural and recreational

Intergovernmental:
Education

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (Uses)
Proceeds from installment purchases
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Fund Balance Appropriated

Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

General Fund

Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
7,133,570 $ 7,226,231 $  7,325931 $ 99,700
2,486,000 2,486,000 2,489,181 3,181
76,800 81,216 81,630 414
1,162,250 1,188,686 1,129,080 (59,606)
642,290 699,726 672,557 (27,169)
82,600 89,850 95,271 5421
47,178 47,178 44,386 (2,792)
19,000 28,051 47,361 19,310
11,649,688 11,846,938 11,885,397 38,459
2,022,510 2,144,775 1,918,590 226,185
3,604,577 3,703,945 3,683,203 20,742
704,797 708,712 568,034 140,678
770,520 816,817 795,946 20,871
1,468,122 1,567,215 1,387,965 179,250
626,958 628,034 594,078 33,956
2,396,725 2,371,725 2,371,725 -
469,649 469,649 469,649 -
394,686 394,686 394,686 -
12,458,544 12,805,558 12,183,876 621,682
(808,856) (958,620) (298,479) 660,141
- 1,723,393 715,949 (1,007,444)
- (1,573,629) (1,573,629) -
808,856 808,856 - (808,856)
808,856 958,620 (857,680} (1,816,300)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(1,156,159) $__ (1,156,159)

8,309,353

7,153,194

6.A.b

Exhibit 5
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Camden County, North Carolina

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Local contributions
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Human Services
Cultural and recreational

Intergovernmental:
Education

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (Uses)
Proceeds from installment purchases
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Fund Balance Appropriated
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Courthouse and Shiloh FD
Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
60,863 $ 60,863 §$ 66,572 $ 5,709
243,453 243,453 261,765 18,312
30,000 30,000 2,000 (28,000)
9,000 9,000 9,373 373
219,500 219,500 - (219,500)
3,000 3,000 1,361 (1,639)
- - 50 50
565,816 565,816 341,121 (224,695)
785,778 829,775 688,048 141,727
785,778 829,775 688,048 141,727
(219,962) (263,959) (346,927) (82,968)
219,962 263,959 - (263,959)
219,962 263,959 - (263,959)
- $ - (346,927) $__ (346,927)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

469,464

$ 122,537
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Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Other taxes and licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues
Restricted intergovernmental revenues
Permits and fees
Sales and services
Local contributions
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures

Current:
General government
Public safety
Economic and physical development
Environmental protection
Human Services
Cultural and recreational

Intergovernmental:
Education

Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (Uses)
Proceeds from installment purchases
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Fund Balance Appropriated
Total other financing sources and uses

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balances - Beginning

Fund Balances - Ending

Special Capital Fund
Variance
With Final
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
- -8 - -
300,000 300,000 428,919 128,919
20,000 20,000 14,957 (5,043)
320,000 320,000 443,876 123,876
1,722,083 1,722,083 970,846 751,237
1,722,083 1,722,083 970,846 751,237
(1,402,083) (1,402,083) (526,970) 875,113
325,000 325,000 325,000 -
1,077,083 1,077,083 - (1,077,083)
1,402,083 1,402,083 325,000 (1,077,083)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(201,970) $__ (201,970)

2,782,966

$ 2,580,996

6.A.b

Exhibit 5

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)

21

Packet Pg. 98




Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2016

Assets

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land and non-depreciable assets
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Capital assets (net)
Total noncurrent assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year
Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable & accrued liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Compensated absences
Accrued Interest
Due to other funds
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
Net pension liability
Long term obligations payable
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension deferrals
Total deferred inflows of resources
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Major
South Camden
Water & Sewer

District

$ 2,483,899
149,337
2,633,236

1,080,994
20,868,194
21,949,188
21,949,188

24,582,424

20,532
20,532

63,461
225,324
11,389
20,896

321,070

23,043
83,300
21,838
2,145,963
2,274,144

2,595,214

6,510
6,510

19,577,901

2,423,331

§__22,001232
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Camden County, North Carolina Exhibit 7
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016
Major
South Camden
Water & Sewer
District
Operating revenues:
Charges for Services - Water $ 1,049,348
Charges for Services - Sewer 373,752
Hook-up connection fees and taps 42,350
Penalties 40,800
Miscellaneous 442,298
Total Operating Revenues 1,948,548
Operating expenses:
Reverse osmosis plant 394,928
Water distribution 399,463
Wastewater operations 249,289
Depreciation 541,905
Total operating expenses 1,585,585
Total Operating Income (Loss) 362,963
Nonoperating Revenues(Expenses):
Interest income 6,096
Interest expense (63,007)
Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses) (56,911
Capital Contributions -
Transfers from other funds 1,157,000
Changes in net position 1,463,052
Net Position - Beginning of Year 20,538,180
Total net position, Ending $ 22,001,232
23

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina Exhibit 8
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund
For The Year Ended June 30, 2016

<
o
Major o:
South @)
Camden o3
Water & "
Sewer %
District o
<
Cash Flows From Operating Activities: =
Cash Received from Customers/others $ 1,947,724 (%
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (514,874) R
Cash paid to employees for services (509,291) 8
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 923,559 E
Cash Flows from (use by) capital and related g
financing activities: 8
Capital contributions £
Federal and State grants - _g
Principal repayments on long-term debt (223,424) =
Acquisition of capital assets (312,614) ©
Interest income 6,096 c
Interest expense (63,007) 8
Net cash flows provided (used) by capital financing activities (592,949) <:;
Cash Flows from (used for) noncapital financing 8
activities: (3
Transfers in/out (net) 1,157,000 _é\
Net cash flows provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 1,157,000 -
e =
S
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash f:o
equivalents 1,487,610 -
Lo
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 996,289 :
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,483,899 L
<
3
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) o)
to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating -
Activities: o
Operating Income (Loss) $ 362,963 2
Adjustments to reconcile operating >
income to net cash provided (used) g
by operating activities: 8
Depreciation expense 541,905 g
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: ©
(Increase) decrease in accounts %
receivable (824) O
(Increase) decrease in net pension asset 28,827 S
Increase (decrease) in accounts 8
payable and accrued liabilities 18,809 5
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 21,838 b,
: o
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows N
of resources for pensions 1,523 S
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows %
of resources for pensions (58,908) £
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation pay 7,426 '(C_;
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 923,559 g
<

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 24

Packet Pg. 101




Camden County, North Carolina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30,2016

Agency
Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,418
Liabilities and Net Position
Miscellaneous liabilities 10,418
Total liabilities 10,418

Net Position $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 9
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CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

f Signifi c ti icie

The accounting policies of Camden County and its component units conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The County, which is governed by a five-member board of commissioners, is one of the 100 counties established in North
Carolina under North Carolina General Statute 153A-10. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial
statements present the County and its component units, legally separate entities for which the County is financially accountable.
South Camden Water and Sewer District (the District) exists to provide and maintain a water system for the County residents
within the District. The District is reported as an enterprise fund in the County's financial statements. The Camden County ABC
Board (the Board) and Camden County TDA, which has a June 30 year-end, are presented as if they are separate proprietary
funds of the County (discrete presentation). The blended presentation methods presents component units as a department or
unit of the County, and offers no separate presentation as with the discrete method.

6.A.b

Reporting
Component Unit Method Criteria for Inclusion Separate Financial Statement

South Camden Water Blended Under State law [NCGS 162A-89], the County's None issued.
and Sewer District board of commissioners also serve as the

governing board for the District
Camden County TDA Discrete The members of the TDA Board's governing Camden County Finance

board are appointed by the County. P.0.Box 190

Camden, NC 27921

Camden County ABC Board Discrete The members of the ABC Board's governing Camden County ABC Board

board are appointed by the County. The ABC P.0.Box 22
Board is required by State statute to distribute its Camden, NC 27921
surpluses to the General Fund of the County

B. Basis of Presentation — Basis of Accounting

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus - Basis of Accounting

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the
primary government (the County) and its component units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities
are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the different business-type
activities of the County and for each function of the County’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense
allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a)
fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s funds, including its fiduciary
funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary -
are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.
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6.A.b

Notes to the Financial Statements

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the
principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values.
Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. Other non-operating items such as
investment earnings are ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Courthouse and Shiloh FD - This fund is used to account for the fire needs.
Special Capital Fund - This fund is used to account for the land, building, and infrastructure acquisitions.
The County reports the following major enterprise fund:

South Camden Water and Sewer District Fund: This fund is used to account for the operations of the water and sewer district
within the County.

The County's non- major governmental funds are the Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund, the Watershed Fund, the
Dismal Swamp Visitor Center Fund, the South Mills VFD Fund, the Joyce Creek Drainage Fund, the Community Park Trust Fund,
the Eco Dev Fund, the School Fund, the Revaluation Fund, and the Scattered Housing Grant Fund. These funds are used to report
specific special revenues and capital projects.

The County reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds: Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of operating results. Agency funds are
used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. The County maintains the following Agency Funds: the Social
Services Fund, which accounts for moneys deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain individuals;
the Nancy M and H. Clay Ferebee III Fund which holds donated monies by Mr. and Mrs. Ferebee to be used for the restoration of
the Camden County Courthouse.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the County are maintained during the year on the modified
accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund
financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus, except for agency funds which have no
measurement focus. The government-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an
accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and
services. The County also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the water and sewer system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported
as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
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6.A.b

Notes to the Financial Statements

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt,
claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, except for property taxes. Ad
valorem property taxes are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes
receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materijally past due and are not considered to be an available resource to
finance the operations of the current year. As of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and
collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective with this change in the law, the State of
North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all
municipalities and special tax districts. Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to
the fiscal year in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for
limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of resources.

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the beer and wine tax, collected and held by the State at year-end on
behalf of the County, are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to
accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific
purposes are reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue
when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been satisfied.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus when program expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and
unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant
resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

D. Budgetary Data

The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for the
General Fund, Fire Districts, and Special Capital Fund, and the Enterprise Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-
end. Project ordinances are adopted for Capital Projects Fund and the Enterprise Capital Projects Funds, which are consolidated
with the enterprise operating fund for reporting purposes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the
project level for multi-year funds. Amendments are required for revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund or that
change functional appropriations by more than $5,000. The governing board must approve all amendments. During the year,
several material amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the
fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflow/Inflows of Resources and Fund Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the County, Camden County TDA, and Camden County ABC Board are made in board-designated official
depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 159-31. The County, the TDA, and the ABC Board may designate, as an official
depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County, the TDA, and the
ABC Board may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates
of deposit.

State Law [G.S. 159-30(c)] authorizes the County, Camden County TDA, and the ABC Board to invest in obligations of the United
States or obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North
Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed
federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers' acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital
Management Trust (NCCMT).

The County, Camden County TDA, and the ABC Board's investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-
money market investments are reported at fair values as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT Cash
Portfolio, an SEC registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT's share price. The
NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The County and the TDA pool moneys from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize investment
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. The
ABC Board considers demand deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
not limited as to use, to be cash and cash equivalents.

3. Restricted Assets

Money in the School Capital Projects Fund is classified as restricted assets because its use is restricted per North Carolina General
Statue 159-18 through 22.

Valorem Taxes Receiva

In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor
vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest
do not accrue until the following January 6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2015. As allowed by
State law, the County has established a schedule of discounts that apply to taxes, which are paid prior to the due date. In the
County's General Fund, ad valorem tax revenues are reported net of such discounts.

5. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This
amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.

6. Inventories and Prepaid [tems

The inventories of the ABC Board are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), which approximates market. The inventory of the ABC
Board consists of materials and supplies held for consumption or resale. The cost of the inventory carried by the ABC Board is
recorded as an expense as it is consumed or sold.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both
government-wide and fund financial statements.

7. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Minimum capitalization cost is $3,000 for all capital assets. Donated capital
assets received prior to June 15, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets
received after June 15, 2015 are recorded at acquisition value. All other purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at
cost or estimated historical cost.The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized.

The County holds title to certain Camden County Board of Education properties that have not been included in the County's
capital assets. The properties have been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase financing of acquisition and
construction costs and to permit the County to receive refunds of sales tax paid for construction costs. Agreements between the
County and the Board of Education give the Board of Education full use of the facilities, full responsibility for maintenance of the
facilities, and provide that the County will convey title to the property back to the Board of Education, once all restrictions of the
financing agreements and all sales tax reimbursement requirements have been met. The properties are reflected as capital assets
in the financial statements of the Camden County Board of Education.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Years
Buildings 30
Improvements 25
Plant and Distribution 40
Furniture and equipment 10
Vehicles 5-10
Computer equipment 10

29
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Capital assets of the ABC Board are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Asset Class Years
Buildings 25
Furniture & Equipment 5-10

8. Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflow of
resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The County has one item
that meets this criterion, contributions made to the pension plan in the current fiscal year.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position can also report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to
a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The County has only two items that meet the criterion for
this category - prepaid taxes and deferrals of pension expense that result from the implementation of GASB Statement 68.

9. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position.

In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, the face amount of debt issued is reported as an other financing
source.

10. Compensated Absences

The vacation policies of the County, and the ABC Board, generally provides for the accumulation of up to 240 hours earned
vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the County's government-wide and proprietary funds, and
the ABC Board, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as leave as
earned. The TDA has no employees,

The sick leave policies of the County and the ABC Board provide for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave
does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length of
service for retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entities have any obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is
taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made by the County or its component unit.

11. Restricted Assets
Money in the School Capital Projects Fund is classified as restricted assets because its use is restricted per North Carolina General
Statue 159-18 through 22.

School Capital Projects Fund
Monies S 249772
Total $ 249,772

12. Net Position/Fund Balances
Net Positi
Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as net investment in capital assets;

restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are either a) externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through state statute.
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Fund Balances

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to disclose the hierarchy
of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally imposed by
creditors or imposed by law.

Restricted for Stabilization by State statute - portion of fund balance that is restricted by State Statute [G.S. 159-
8(a)]

Restricted for School Capital- portion of fund balance that can only be used for School Capital per G.S. [159-18-22].

Committed Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by majority vote by
quorum of Camden County’s governing body (highest level of decision-making authority). The governing body can, by adoption
of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance
remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation.

Committed for Tax Revaluation- portion of fund balance that can only be used for Tax Revaluation.

Assigned Fund Balance - portion of fund balance that the County intends to use for specific purposes.

Unassigned Fund Balance - the portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes
or other funds.

Camden County has also adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the general fund which instructs management to conduct
the business of the County in such a manner that available fund balance is at least equal to or greater than 20% of budgeted
expenditures. Any portion of the general fund balance in excess of 25% of budgeted expenditures may be appropriated for one-
time expenditures and may not be used for any purpose that would obligate the County in a future budget.

The County of Camden has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple revenue sources. The
Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-county funds,
county funds. For purposes of fund balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first,
followed in-order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance Officer has
the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the County.

13. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The County participates in three cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plans that are administered by the
State; the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) and the Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund
(RODSPF) (collectively, the “state-administered defined benefit pension plans”). For purposes of measuring the net pension asset,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about
the fiduciary net positions of the state-administered defined benefit pension plans and additions to/deductions from the state-
administered defined benefit pension plans’ fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by the state-administered defined benefit pension plans. For this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the
period in which the contributions are due. The County’s employer contributions are recognized when due and the County has a
legal requirement to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the state-administered defined benefit pension plans. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Reconciliation of Government-wide & Fund Financial Statements

lanation of certain differ n th vernmental fun lance sheet and th vernment-wide
statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental funds and net position-
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position. The net adjustment of $2,581,131

e consists of the following elements as follows:
Description Amount

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore not
- reported in the funds (total capital assets on government-wide statement in governmental

activities column) $ 21,025,526

Less accumulated depreciation (6,844,153)
- Net capital assets 14,181,373

Net pension asset. 22,073

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources
on the Statement of Net Position. 239,261

Liabilities for deferred inflows of resources reported in the fund statements but not the
government-wide 273,398

Accrued interest receivable less the amount claimed as unearned revenue in the government-

wide statements as these funds are unavailable in the fund statements 90,223
e Other assets not available for current expenditures -

Pension related deferrals. (107,360)

Liabilities that, because they are not due and payable in the current period, do not require
current resources to pay and are therefore not recorded in the fund statements:

Long-term debts, including bonds and notes payable (11,198,273)
Accrued interest payable (93,420)
Net pension liability (196,545)
- OPEB payable (431,861)
Compensated absences (197,738)
Total adjustment $ 2,581,131
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1L

2. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation between net
changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the
government-wide statement of activities. There are several elements of that total adjustment of $1,023,478 as follows:

Description Amount

Capital outlay expenditures recorded in the fund statements but capitalized as assets in the
Statement of Activities $ 1,198,963

Depreciation expense, the allocation of those assets over their useful lives, that is recorded on
the Statement of Activities but not in the fund statements (644,179)

Cost of asset disposed of during the year 30,620

Principal payments on debt owed are recorded as a use of funds on the fund statements but
again affect only the statement of net position in the government-wide statements 546,691

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal
year are not included on the Statement of Activities 190,683
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not

reported as revenues in fund statements
Increase/Decrease in deferred inflows of resources- taxes receivable- at year end (116,836)

Expenses reported in the Statement of Activities that do not require the use of current
resources to pay are not recorded as expenditures in the fund statements. This includes

accrued interest payable, compensated absences, pension expense and OPEB. (182,464)
Total adjustment $ 1,023,478
Stewardshi mpliance, and Accountabili

A. Significant Violations of Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

Noncompliance with North Carolina General Statutes
None.

B. Deficit Fund Balance or Net Position of Individual Funds

None.
C. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations .

None.
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[II. Detail Notes on All Funds
A. Assets
1. Deposits

All of the County's, TDA's, and the ABC Board's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under
the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities
held by the County's, TDA's, or the ABC Board's agents in these units’ names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral
pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the State
Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the County, TDA, and the ABC Board, these deposits are
considered to be held by their agent in the entities’ name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved
averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories
using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The
State Treasurer does not confirm this information with the County or the ABC Board, or with the escrow agent. Because of the
inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the County, TD4, or the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the
potential exists for the under collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State
Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits
under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions. The County relies
on the State Treasurer to monitor those financial institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness of any other financial
institution used by the County. The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories
and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The TDA and ABC Board have no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk
for deposits.

At June 30, 2016, the County's deposits had a carrying amount of $13,186,832 and a bank balance of $13,462,388. Of the bank
balance, $1,376,577 was covered by federal depository insurance, the remainder was covered by the pooling method.
At June 30, 2016, Camden County had a carrying and bank balance amount of $10,418 in the fiduciary fund.

At June 30, 2016, Camden County had $705 of cash on hand.

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of deposits for Camden County ABC Board was $102,865. All of these amounts were
covered by federal depository insurance.

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of deposits for Camden County TDA was $94,340. All of these amounts were covered by
federal depository insurance.

2. Investments

As of June 30, 2016, the County’s investments consisted of $656,547 in the North Carolina Capital Management Trust’s Cash
Portfolio which carried a credit rating of ABAm by Standard and Poor’s. The County has no formal policy on credit risk. The ABC
Board held no investments at June 30, 2016.
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3. Property Tax - Use-Value Assessment on Certain Lands

In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the County at the present-use
value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for use-value taxation, the property tax is recomputed
at market value for the current year and the two preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the original due
date. This tax is immediately due and payable. The following are property taxes that could become due if present-use value

eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2013 $ 1,332,752 $ 196,581 $ 1,529,333
2014 1,291,174 - 1,291,174
2015 - -

Total $ 2623926 $ 196,581 $ 2,820,507

4. Receivables

Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Taxes &

Related Due From

Accrued Other

Accounts Interest Governments Total

Governmental Activities:
General $ 56,347 483,507 §$ 165,227 $ 705,081
Other Governmental - 4,114 296,607 300,721
Total Receivables 56,347 487,621 - 543,968
Allowance for Doubtful - (124,000) - (124,000)
Total Governmental $ 56,347 363,621 $ 461,834 $ 881,802
Business-Type Activities:
Water/Sewer receivables $ 149,337 - $ - $ 149,337
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - - - -
Total Business-Type $ 149,337 - $ - 3 149,337
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5. Capital Assets
Primary Government

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Balances
July 1,2015 Increases Decreases June 30, 2016

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 5015871 $ - 3 - $ 5015871

Construction in Progress 447,790 - (447,790) -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,463,661 - (447,790} 5,015,871
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings 5,712,475 53,161 - 5,765,636

Other improvements 4,526,821 498,887 - 5,025,708

Equipment 1,608,681 355,039 - 1,963,720

Vehicles and motor equipment 2,657,703 739,666 (142,778) 3,254,591
Total capital assets being depreciated 14,505,680 1,646,753 (142,778) 16,009,655
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 2,003,336 206,376 - 2,209,712

Other improvements 1,105,584 143,890 - 1,249,474

Equipment 998,969 69,309 - 1,068,278

Vehicles and motor equipment 2,221,049 224,604 (128,964) 2,316,689
Total accumulated depreciation 6,328,938 $ 644,179 $ (128,964) 6,844,153
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,176,742 9,165,502
Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 13,640,403 $ 14,181,373
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government
Public Safety
Environmental Protection
Economic and Physical Development
Human Services
Cultural and Recreational
Total Depreciation Expense

Business-type Activities

Water & Sewer District

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Plant and distribution systems
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles and motor equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Plant and distribution systems
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles and motor equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Total Water and Sewer Fund District, Net

Discretely presented component unit
ABC Board:

Land

Buildings

Equipment

Construction in progress
Less A/D

Property and Equipment, net

$ 140,639
309,170
7,397
42,187
43,580
101,206
§ 644179
Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
$ 768,380 282,014 - $ 1,050,394
- 30,600 - 30,600
768,380 312,614 - 1,080,994
26,198,364 - - 26,198,364
88,095 - - 88,095
129,228 - - 129,228
26,415,687 - - 26,415,687
4,843,249 530,710 - 5,373,959
62,710 2,843 - 65,553
99,630 8,351 - 107,981
5,005,589 541,904 - 5,547,493
21,410,098 20,868,194
$ 22,178,478 $§ 21,949,188
$ 25,405
161,798
55,158
48,446
(151,665)
$ 139,142
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B. Liabiliti
1. Payables
Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Accrued
Vendors Interest Total

Governmental Activities $ 426,256 $ 93,420 $ 519,676

Business-type Activities $ 63,461 $ 20,896 $ 84,357

2. Pension Plan and Other Post Employment Obligations

a. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description. Camden County and the ABC Board are participating employers in the statewide Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of
participating local governmental entities. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which
consists of 13 members — nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the state House of
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Governmental
Employees’ Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.
The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained
by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919)
981-5454, or at Www.0sC.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as 1.85% of the
member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of creditable service. A member’s average final compensation is
calculated as the average of a member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with
full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age
with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of
creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor benefits are available to
eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who have
either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad
members who are killed in the line of duty) or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible
beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions. The
plan does not provide for automatic postretirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan.

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five years of creditable
service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan members are eligible to retire with partial
retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible
beneficiaries of LEQO members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have
either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have
reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years
of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate
Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only by the North
Carolina General Assembly. County employees are required to contribute 6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are
actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees. The County’s contractually required contribution rate
for the year ended June 30, 2016, was 7.41% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 7.07% for general employees and
firefighters, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were $208,510 for the
year ended June 30, 2016.
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Refunds of Contributions — County employees who have terminated service as a contributing member of LGERS, may file an
application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4%
interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a
refund payment cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the County reported a liability of $218,383 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2015 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s
proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the County’s long-term share of future payroll covered by the
pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2015, the County’s proportion was .04866%, which was an decrease of .00022% from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the County recognized pension expense of $141,410. At June 30, 2016, the County reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of
Resources Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 51,332
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - 62,173
Changes in proportion and differences between County
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 45,183 -
County contributions subsequent to the measurement date 208,510 -
Total $ 253,693 $ 113,505

$208,510 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension asset in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts
reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30
2017 $ (57,978)
2018 (57,978)
2019 (58,021)
2020 105,655
2021 -
Thereafter -
Total $ (68,322)

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary Increases 4.25 to 8.55 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (ie. general, law enforcement officer) and
health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that
cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009.
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Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in the
measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current and historical
capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies.
Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward
yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections are
established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and
strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage
and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class as of June 30, 2015 are summarized in the following table: ‘

Target Long-Term Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Fixed Income 29.0% 2.2%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.8%
Real Estate 8.0% 5.2%
Alternatives 8.0% 9.8%
Credit 7.0% 6.8%
Inflation 6.0% 3.4%

Total 100%

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2014 asset liability and
investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return
underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates
by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and
that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the
County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25 percent) than the current rate:

19% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) {7.25%) (8.25%)

County's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $1,522,815 $218,383 ($880,572)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.
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b. Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance

(1) Plan Description - Camden County administers a public employee retirement system (the "Separation Allowance"), a single-
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the County's qualified sworn law enforcement
officers. The Separation allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently
applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or
retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.

All full-time County law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation Allowance. At the December 31, 2015, the
Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees Receiving Benefits -
Terminated Plan Members Entitled to,

But Not Yet Receiving Benefits -
Active Plan Members 15
Total 15

A separate report was not issued for the plan.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting - The County has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. Pension expenditures are
made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Method Used to Value Investments - No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures are paid
as they come due. No liability is reported on the Statement of Net Assets due to the amount not being material.

(3) Contributions

The County is required by article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen to fund the benefit
payments on a pay as you go basis through appropriations made in the General Fund operating budget. The County's obligation
to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. There were no
contributions made by employees.

[ e tal Retireme W ice

Plan Description - The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension
plan administered by the Department of the State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to
law enforcement officers employed by the County. Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements
for the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement
Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North
Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy - Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 requires the County to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent of
each officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make
voluntary contributions to the plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2016 were $235,254, which consisted of $160,240
from the County and $75,014 from the law enforcement officers.
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d. Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund

Plan Description. Camden County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF), a
noncontributory, defined benefit plan administered by the North Carolina Department of State Treasurer. RODSPF provides
supplemental pension benefits to any eligible county register of deeds who is retired under the Local Government Employees'’
Retirement System (LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS
Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members - nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one
appointed by the state House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio
members. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
Resisters of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at www.osc.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided. An individual’s benefits for the year are calculated as a share of accumulated contributions available for
benefits for that year, subject to certain statutory limits. An individual’s eligibility is based on at least 10 years of service as a
register of deeds with the individual’s share increasing with years of service. Because of the statutory limits noted above, not all
contributions available for benefits are distributed.

Contributions. Benefits and administrative expenses are funded by investment income and 1.5% of the receipts collected by each
County Commission under Article 1 of Chapter 161 of the North Carolina General Statutes. The statutory contribution currently

s has no relationship to the actuary’s required contribution. The actuarially determined contribution this year and for the
foreseeable future is zero. Registers of Deeds do not contribute. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 161-
50 and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were
$3,024 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the County reported an asset of $22,073 for its proportionate share of the net pension asset. The net pension
asset was measured as of June 30, 2015. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2014. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2015 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s proportion of the net pension asset
was based on the County’s share of contributions to the pension plan, relative to contributions to the pension plan of all
participating RODSPF employers. At June 30, 2015, the County’s proportion was .09522%, which was a decrease of .00582%
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the County recognized pension expense of $741. At June 30, 2016, the County reported
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of
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$3,024 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net pension asset in the year ended june 30, 2017. Other amounts
reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30
2017 $ 904
2018 904
2019 903
2020 -
2021 -
Total $ 2,711

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary Increases 4.25 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 5.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law enforcement officer) and
health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that
cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included in the
measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current and historical
capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies.
Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward
yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. These projections are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The adopted asset allocation policy for the RODSPF is 100% in the fixed income
asset class. The best estimate of arithmetic real rate of return for the fixed income asset class as of June 30, 2014 is 2.5%.

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2014 asset, liability, and
investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return
underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates
by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.19%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates. Based on
these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the
County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate of 5.75 percent, as well as what the
County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower (4.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.75 percent) than the current rate:
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1 % Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(4.75%) (5.75%) (6.75%)

County's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) ($20,571) ($22,909) ($24,918)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.

e. Other Post Employment Benefits

Healthcare Benefits

Plan Description - Under the terms of the County resolution, the County administers a single-employer defined benefit
Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan). As of July 1, 2006, this plan provides postemployment healthcare benefits to retirees of
the County, provided they participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (System) and
have at least twenty years of creditable service with the County. The County pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits
through private insurers. The County Board may amend the benefit provisions. A separate report was notissued for the plan. If
hired after January 8, 2013 no health benefits will be paid for retirees.

Membership of the HCB Plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2015, the date of latest actuarial valuation:

General Law Enforcement

Employees Officers
Retirees and dependents receiving benefits - -
Terminated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits - -
Active plan members 38 15
Total 38 15

Funding Policy - The County pays the full cost of coverage for the healthcare benefits paid to qualified retirees under a County
resolution that can be amended by the County Board. The County has chosen to fund the healthcare benefits on a pay as you go
basis.

The current ARC rate is 4.01% of annual covered payroll. For the current year, the County contributed $0. The County obtains
healthcare coverage through private insurers. There were no contributions made by employees. The County's obligation to
contribute to HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the County Board.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies . Postemployment expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained
on the modified accrual basis of accounting. No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration costs. These expenditures
are paid as they come due.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The County's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The following table shows the components of the County's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed
to the plan, and changes on the County's net OPEB obligation for the post employment healthcare benefits:

Annual required contribution $ 87,943
Interest on net OPEB obligation 14,008
Adjustment to annual required contribution (19,473)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 82,478
Contributions made -
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 82,478
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 432,683
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 515,161
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The County's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for June
30, 2016 were as follows:

For Year Ended Annual Percentage of Annual Net OPEB

June 30 OPEB Cost OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2014 $ 70,429 0.00% $ 350,205
2015 $ 82,478 0.00% $ 432,683
2016 $ 82,478 0.00% $ 515,161

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2016 the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits
and, thus, the unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) was $663,838. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $2,067,678, and the ratio of UAAL to the covered payroll was 32.11%. easing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents information about the actuarial value of plan assets and the actuarially accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the December 31, 2015 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term
investment returns on the employer's own investments calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and
an annual medical cost trend increase of 7.50% to 5.00% annually. The investment rate included a 3.00% inflation assumption.
The actuarial value of assets, if any, was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a five year period. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on
an open basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2015, was 30 years.

f. Other Employment Benefits

The County has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members of the Local
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan
funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least
one year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum death
benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to
the employee's death, but the benefit will be a minimum of $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. Because all death benefit
payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible
participants. The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the Death Benefit
Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. Contributions are
determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates established annually by the State, Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. The County considers these contributions to be
immaterial.
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4. Risk Management

o The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions,
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates in three self-funded risk financing pools administered by
the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners. Through these pools, the County obtains property coverage equal to
replacement cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $125.5 million for any one occurrence, general, auto, professional

- and employment practices liability coverage of $2 million per occurrence, auto physical damage coverage for owned autos, at
actual cash value, crime coverage of $250,000 per occurrence, workers' compensation coverage up to the statutory limits and
health and dental insurance for County employees. The pools are audited annually by Certified Public Accountants, and the
audited financial statements are available to the County upon request. Two of the pools are reinsured through a multi-state

b public entity captive for single occurrence losses in excess of $500,000 up to a $2 million limit for liability coverage, $600,000 of
aggregate annual losses in excess of $50,000 per occurrence for property, auto physical damage and crime coverage, and single
occurrence losses of $350,000 for workers' compensation. For health and dental insurance, the County is insured through Blue
Cross Blue Shield of North Carolina, a private insurance company.

The County carries flood insurance on the renovated courthouse. Other buildings are not insured for flood.

o In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the County’s funds
are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Officer is bonded for $550,000, the tax collector is
bonded for $50,000 and the sheriff is bonded for $25,000. The remaining employees that have access to funds are bonded under
a blanket bond for $15,000.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and no claims have been made in the
past three years.

Camden County ABC Board is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Board has commercial property, general liability, auto liability, workers'
compensation, and employee health coverage. The Board does have liquor legal liability coverage. In accordance with G.S. 18B-
803, the ABC Board's employees that have access to the Board's funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety
bond. Employees are bonded under an employment practices bond for up to $5,000 per claim. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years.

e At June 30, 2016, the County was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the County’s management and the County
attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial position.
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6. Long-Term Obligations

a. llment C]

As authorized by State law [G.S. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County has financed various property acquisitions for use by
Camden County Board of Education by installment purchase. The installment purchases were issued pursuant to a deed of trust
that requires that legal title remain with the County as long as the debt is outstanding. The County has entered into a lease with
Camden County Board of Education that transfers the right and responsibilities for maintenance and insurance of the property to
the Board of Education. The lease calls for nominal annual lease payments and also contains a bargain purchase option. The
lease term is the same as that of the installment purchase obligation. Due to the economic substance of the transaction, the
capital assets associated with the installment purchase obligation are recorded by the Board of Education. These loans are

included in the loans described below.

The installment purchases of the County, including the Qualified Zone Academy Bonds, are outlined below:

$1,000,000 loan from Bank of America, N.A. for renovation and modernization of Camden High School and
Camden Middle School. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls for an annual
payments of $50,000 plus 4.4%. This note was paid off and refinanced with a principal amount of $572,000 and
calls for annual payments of $52,150 plus interest at 2.29%. Matures in 2024.

$2,000,000 loan from Bank of America, N.A. (QZAB) for renovation and modernization of Camden High School
and Camden Middle School. The note is secured by a deed of trust on the two schools and calls for annual
payments of $112,334 and no interest is charged. Matures in 2023.

$264,000 loan from Rural Housing Service to finance courthouse renovations. The loan is secured by the
courthouse. The note calls for annual payments of $20,297 including interest at 4.5%. Matures in 2026.

$453,000 loan from BB&T for the re-finance of a two pumper trucks. The loan calls for annual payments of
$48,072 including interest at 2.09%. Matures in 2021.

$725,000 loan from BB&T dated August 16, 2010 for the construction of a Fire Station Building. The loan calls

for annual payments of $36,250 plus interest at 3.89%. Matures in 2027.

$1,350,000 loan from Thomas M. Noblitt for the purchase of land. The loan is secured with the property. The
loan calls for annual payments of $150,000 for 9 years. There is no interest stated in the loan. Matures in 2018.

$10,000,000 loan from US Department of Agriculture for the construction of an intermediate school. The note
calls for annual payments of $520,000 for 40 years which includes interest at 4.125%. Matures in 2049.

$ 365,054

651,992

160,571

171,868

543,750

300,000

9,005,038

$ 11198273
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b. General Obligation Indebtedness

All general obligation bonds serviced by the County's general fund are collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of
the County. South Camden Water and Sewer District issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major water and sewer capital improvements. These bonds, which are recorded in the Water District Fund, are
collateralized by the full faith, credit, and taxing power of the District. Principal and interest payments are appropriated when
due.

The County's general obligation bonds are payable at June 30, 2016, are comprised of the following individual issues:
Serviced by South Camden Water and Sewer District:

$1,600,000 - 1996 Water District bonds with annual installments of $17,000 to $66,000 through June 1, 2036;
interest at 4.875%. These Bonds were refinanced with a principal amount of $1,274,000 with annual
installments of $99,493 plus interest at 3.89%. $ 1,098,306

Other Loans:

Drinking Water State Revolving Loan: A loan of $813,581 calling for 20 annual principal payments of $40,679
plus interest at 2.87% (payable semiannually). This Note was refinanced during 2013 with a principal amount of
$406,791 with varying annual installments plus interest at 2.19%. Matures in 2032. 244,074

State DWSRF Revolving Loan: A loan of $1,367,122 calling for 20 annual principal payments of $68,356 plus
interest at 2.50%. At year end $1,307,360 has been drawn down on the loan amount. This associated project was
completed during the year and half of the outstanding principal was forgiven. The new payments will be for 20
years at $32,684 with no stated interest rate. Matures in 2032. 522,947

State Clean Water Bond Loan: A loan of $1,922,657 calling for 19 annual principal payments of $101,192 plus
interest at 4.02%. This Note was refinanced during 2013 with a principal amount of $910,732 with varying
annual installments plus interest at 2.09%. Matures in 2023. 505,960

Total $ 2,371,287

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the County's and District’s general obligation bonds and loans are as follows:

Governmental Business Type
Year Ending Activities Activities
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2017 553,990 411,788 225,324 58,644

2018 561,577 401,597 227,299 53,663

2019 419,459 390,710 229,351 48,605

2020 427,652 380,683 231,483 43,468

2021 390,932 369,193 233,697 38,247
2022-2026 1,452,104 1,685,542 536,163 136,296
2027-2031 1,389,628 1,412,816 565,293 65,595
2032-2036 1,478,983 1,121,017 122,677 3,501
2037-2041 1,810,248 789,752 - -
2042-2046 2,215,712 384,288 - -
2047-2051 497,988 20,481 - -

Total $ 11,198273 $ 7,367,867 $ 2,371,287 $ 448,019

At June 30, 2016 Camden County had a legal debt margin of $13,569,559.

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)

48

Packet Pg. 126




Notes to the Financial Statements

c. Long-Term Obligation Activity

The following is a summary of changes in the County's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016:

Balance Balance Current
6/30/2015 Increases Decreases 6/30/2016 Portion
Governmental Activities:
e Installment Purchases $ 11,744,964 $ - $ (546,691) $ 11,198,273 $ 553,990
OPEB 363,454 68,407 - 431,861 -
Net pension liability (LGERS) - 196,545 - 196,545 -
Compensated absences 208,785 79,662 (90,709) 197,738 79,662
e Total governmental
activities $ 12,317,203 $ 344,614 $ (637,400) $ 12,024,417 $ 633,652
Balance Balance Current
o 6/30/2015 Additions Retirements 6/30/2016 Portion
Business Type Activities:
General obligation debt $ 2,594,711 $ - $ (223424) $ 2,371,287 $§ 225,324
OPEB 69,229 14,071 - 83,300 -
- Net pension liability (LGERS) - 21,838 - 21,838 -
Compensated Absences 27,006 11,389 (3,963) 34,432 11,389
Total business type activities $ 2,690,946 $ 47,298 $ (227,387) $ 2,510,857 $ 236,713

Compensated absences for governmental activities typically have been liquidated in the general fund and are accounted for on a

LIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking leave time as it is earned.

— Debt Related to Capital Activities - Of the total Governmental Activities debt listed only $1,176,189 relates to assets the County

holds title.

Inter-fund Balances and Activity

Transfers From/To Other Funds at June 30, 2016 consists of the following:

o From the General fund to:

Water and Sewer Fund (Expenditures) $ 1,157,000
Community Park Trust Fund (Expenditures) 91,629
Special Capital Fund (Expenditures) 325,000

From School Capital Fund to:
General Fund (school debt) (715,949)
Totals $ 857,680

- Inter ivi

The composition of interfund balance activity as of June 30, 2016 is as follows:

From the Courthouse and Shiloh FD Fund to the General Fund.

All of the above were for operating expenditures.

Total

§__Tos0
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C. Fund Balance

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General fund balance that is
available for appropriation:

Total fund balance - General Fund $ 7,153,194

Less:

Stabilization by State Statute 589,309

Remaining Fund Balance $ 6,563,885
Il Joint Ventures

Deve ental Disabiliti tance abuse Service:

The County participates in a joint venture to provide mental health services. East Carolina Behavioral Health (ECBH)coordinates
these services through third party providers. The County is one of nineteen county governments participating as a joint venture.
Camden County appointed one board member (commissioner) to the ECBH's finance committee. The venture was established as
a joint venture among the participating counties to coordinate funding from federal and State agencies and also to realize
economies of scale in the providing of mental health services. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the
participating governments and ECBH, the County appropriated $20,000 to the ECBH to supplement its activities. None of the
participating governments have any equity interest in the ECBH, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial
statements at June 30, 2016. Complete financial statements can be obtained from the ECBH's office at 112 Health Drive,
Greenville, North Carolina 27834-7704.

Central Communications/Emergency Management System

The Emergency Management System was established as a joint venture between Camden County, Pasquotank County, and the
City of Elizabeth City to coordinate grant funds and realize economies of scale. Each entity appoints one member to the
governing board. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County
appropriated $251,213 to the System to supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity
interest in the System, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2016. Complete financial
statements for the System can be obtained from the System's office at 103 S. Road Street, Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27909.

Albemarle District [ail

The operation of the Jail is shared with two other counties in the surrounding area. Each county’s contributions are based on a
per capita assessment based on the most recent census figures available, and each county appoints one or more members to the
Board. In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated
$405,920 to the Jail to supplement its activities. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Jail, so no
equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2016. Complete financial statements for the Jail can be
obtained from the Jail's office at 320 S. Hughes Blvd., Elizabeth City, North Carolina 27907.

Albemarle Commission

The County is a member of the Albemarle Commission, which is a voluntary association of county governments. The Commission
was established as a joint venture among the participating counties to coordinate funding from federal and State agencies. - the
makeup is 1 elected official from each of the 10 counties with a term that does not expire unless the individual is no longer an
elected official or another appointment is made by the county. Four at-large members that rotate off the AC Board every 2 years.
Currently, the members until the end of the month, are from Currituck, Dare, Gates and Hyde. Starting in January, the members
will be from Pasquotank, Perquimans, Tyrrell and Washington until December 31st 2018. On January 1, 2019 the members will
be from Camden Chowan Currituck and Dare. The County paid membership fees of $6,613 to the Commission during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016.

Regional Confi Facili
The County is a member of the Regional Jail Facility, which is an agreement of three county governments to provide financing,
construction and operation of a regional jail. The Facility was established as a joint venture among the participating counties to
coordinate funding from local, federal, and State agencies. The County contributed $185,899 to the Facility during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016.
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v.

VL

Ibemarle Regi e ices (A

Albemarle Regional Health Services is a voluntary association of seven county governments. ARHS was established as a joint
venture among the participating counties to coordinate funding from federal and State agencies and to realize economies of scale
in providing health care services. The County contributed $118,166 to ARHS during the year ended June 30, 2016. None of the
participating governments have any equity interest in ARHS, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements
at June 30, 2016. Complete financial statements can be obtained at ARHS's office on 711 Roanoke Avenue, Elizabeth City, North
Carolina 27909.

fit Payment: u he State

The amounts listed below were paid directly to individual recipients by the State from federal and State moneys. County
personnel are involved with certain functions, primarily eligibility determinations, which cause benefit payments to be issued by
the State. These amounts disclose this additional aid to the County recipients that do not appear in the basic financial statements
because they are not revenues and expenditures of the County.

Federal State
Adoption Assistance $ 19,286 $ 4,936
Low Income Energy Assistance 23,200 -
Medicaid 4,245,225 2,347,451
NC Health Choice 171,026 8,019
Foster Care 4,451 7,739
wIC 15,286 -

Federal and State Assisted Programs

The County has received proceeds from federal and State grants. Periodic audits of these grants are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of
grant moneys to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. no provision has been
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys.

Significant Effects of Subsequent Events

There are no subsequent events that would have a material affect on the financial statements. Subsequent events have been
analyzed through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.

51

6.A.b

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)

Packet Pg. 129




REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

This section contains additional information required by generally
accepted accounting principles.

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits
Schedule of Employer Contributions for Other Postemployment Benefits

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset - Local
Governemnt Employees' Retirement System

Schedule of Contributions - Local Government Employees' Retirement
System

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset - Register of
Deeds

Schedule of Contributions - Register of Deeds
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Camden County, North Carolina
Other Post Employment Benefits
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Funding Progress
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Camden County, North Carolina
Other Post Employment Benefits

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

6.A.b

Year Ended
June 30,

2013
2014
2015
2016

Annual Required
Contribution

70,438
70,190
87,493
87,493

Percentage
—Contributed

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations
at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Investment Rate of Return

Medical Cost Trend

Includes Inflation at

December 31, 2015
Projected Unit Credit
Level Percent of Pay Open

30 Years
Market Value

4.00%
7.5% - 5.00%
3.00%
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Camden County, North Carolina
Camden County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Required Supplementary Information
Last Three Fiscal Years

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

2016 2015 2014
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.0487% 0.0489% 0.0452%
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) $ 218383 $ (288268) $ 544,834
County's covered-employee payroll $ 2,915,721 $ 2,883,647 §$ 2,788,528
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 7.49% (10.00%) 19.54%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability** 98.09% 102.64% 94.35%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

** This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Camden County's Contributions

Required Supplementary Information
Last Three Fiscal Years

Local Government Employees’ Retirement System

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

County's covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll

2016 2015 2014

$ 208510 $ 220,612 $ 219,096
208,510 220,612 219,096

$ - $ - $ -
$3,034,188 $ 2915721 $ 2,883,647
6.87% 7.57% 7.60%
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Camden County, North Carolina
Camden County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Required Supplementary Information
Last Three Fiscal Years

Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

2016 2015 2014
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.0952% 0.1010% 0.1130%
County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) $ (22,066) $§ (22909) $§ (24,145)
County's covered-employee payroll $ 54,047 $ 70,695 §$ 50,049
County's proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll (40.83%) (32.41%) (44.67%)
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability** 197.29% 193.88% 190.50%

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

** This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the ROD plan.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Camden County’s Contributions
Required Supplementary Information
Last Three Fiscal Years

Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund

2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 3,024 $ 3631 $ 3,821
Contributions in relation to the contractually

required contribution 3,024 3,631 3,821
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ N
County's covered-employee payroll $ 51364 $ 54,047 $ 70,695
Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll 5.89% 6.72% 5.40%
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GENERAL FUND

6.A.b

The General Fund accounts for resources traditionally associated with government that
are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in
other funds.
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes
Penalties and Interest
Total

Other Taxes and Licenses:
Local option sales tax
Utilities sales tax
Telecommunications tax
Scrap tire disposal tax
Video franchise fee
White goods tax
Medicaid hold harmless

Total

Unrestricted Intergovernmental revenues:

Beer and wine tax

Payments in lieu of taxes

ABC profit distribution
Total

Restricted Intergovernmental:
State and Federal Grants
ABC profits for law enforcement
Solid waste disposal tax
Court facilities fees
Total

Permits and Fees:
Petlicenses
Gun permits
Fines and forfeitures
Register of Deeds
Business registration fee
Other fees

Building permits and inspections, including land use fees

Total

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

7,255,895
70,036

7,226,231

7,325,931

99,700

1,047,860
652,335
93,728
20,234
72,314
3,487
599,223

2,486,000

2,489,181

3,181

44,896
720
36,014

81,216

81,630

414

1,092,204
4,361
8,153

24,362

1,188,686

1,129,080

(59,606)

285
20,022
62,354

144,448

335

30,240
414,873

699,726

672,557

(27,169)
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Sales and Services:
Rent and Concessions
Jail fees
Officer fees
Total

Investment Earnings: Interest

Miscellaneous:
Sale of fixed assets
Insurance proceeds
Sale of recyclables
Other
Total

TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures:
General Government:
Governing body
Administration
Finance
Tax administration
Personnel
Legal
Register of deeds
Elections
Public buildings
Court facilities

Total general government

Final
Budget Actual

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

42,031
3,211
50,029

89,850 95,271

5421

47,178 44,386

(2,792)

16,541
11,515

7,699
11,606

28,051 47,361

19,310

11,846,938 11,885,397

38,459

73,801
384,786
192,317
401,901

65,254

39,072
204,811
117,200
398,718

40,730

2,144,775 1,918,590

226,185
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Public Safety:
Sheriff 1,667,408
Jail 185,899
Regional jail 405,920
Juvenile justice and delinquency program 66,596
School resource officer 69,691
Inspections 117,683
Contribution to fire districts 419,995
Emergency management 498,798
Central communications 251,213
Total 3,703,945 3,683,203 20,742
Economic and physical development:
Economic development 145,980
Agricultural extension 75,145
Planning 277,290
Albemarle commission 6,613
Resource conservation and development 750
Soil/water conservation 62,256
Total 708,712 568,034 140,678
Human services:
Health:
Albemarle hopeline 2,000
Camden food pantry 2,000
Regional health 118,166
Other health programs 1,643
Total human services 213,222 123,809 89,413
Transportation: Traffic 3,560 1,701 1,859
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Social services:
Administration
Day care
Medical travel
County provided assistance
Adoptions
Aid to the blind program
Foster care
Crisis intervention
Work first program
LIEAP expenses
Other assistance

Total social services

Total Human Services

Cultural and Recreational:
Recreation
Library
Museum
College of the Albemarle
Senior citizens services
Total Cultural and Recreational

Environmental protection:
Public works administration
Forestry program
Sanitation
Total environmental protection

Education:

Public Schools:
Current Expense
Capital Outlay

Total Education

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fees
Total Debt Service
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Revenues over Expenditures

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

944,796
133,187
16,481
53,179
6,679
852
21,589
22,919
37,166
23,700
1,907

1,350,433

1,262,455

87,978

1,567,215

1,387,965

179,250

254,591
177,008
1,036
40,000
121,443

628,034

594,078

33,956

121,321
51,889
622,736

816,817

795,946

20,871

2,072,942
298,783

2,371,725

2,371,725

469,649
394,686

864,335

864,335

12,805,558

12,183,876

621,682

(958,620)

(298,479)

660,141
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Camden County, North Carolina
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Other financing sources (uses):
Fund Balance Appropriated -
Transfers (to)/from Other Funds:
Special revenue - school capital fund 715,949
Water and sewer district (1,573,629)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 958,620 (857,680) (1,816,300)
Net change in fund balance $ - (1,156,159) $_ ({1,156,159)
Fund balances:
Beginning of year, July 1 8,309,353
End of year, June 30 $ 7,153,194
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OTHER MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Major Governmental Funds - Fire Districts Fund- Courthouse & Shiloh
Major Governmental Funds - Special Capital Fund

6.A.b
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Camden County, North Carolina
Fire District Funds - Courthouse and Shiloh
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes $ $ 66,572 $
Restricted intergovernmental 2,000
Other taxes 261,765
Investment earnings 1,361
Other fees 9,373
Miscellaneous 50
Total Revenues 565,816 341,121 (224.695)
Expenditures:
Public safety:
Salaries and benefits 4,415
Operating expenses 180,927
Capital outlay 502,706
Debt service: Principal and Interest -
Total Expenditures 829,775 688,048 141,727
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (263,959) (346,927) (82,968)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Installment Loan - - -
Transfer to General Fund - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - -
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses (263,959) (346,927) (82,968)
Fund Balance Appropriated 263,959 - (263,959)
Net change in fund balance $ - (346,927) $ (346,927)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 469,464
End of Year, June 30 $ 122,537
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Camden County, North Carolina
Special Capital Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

Revenues
Other taxes
Land sale
Investment earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds
Proceeds from Lease Purchase
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1

End of Year, June 30

2016
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 428,919 $
14,957
320,000 443,876 123,876
970,846
1,722,083 970,846 751,237
(1,402,083) (526,970) 875,113
325,000 325,000 -
325,000 325,000 -
(1,077,083) (201,970) 875,113
1,077,083 - (1,077,083)

- (201,970) $ __ (201,970)

2,782,966

§ _ 2,580,096
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30,2016
S Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
Automation Total Nonmajor
Enhancement Dismal Special Scattered  Total Nonmajor Total Nonmajor
and Preserva-  Watershed Swamp School Cap South Joyce Creek Community Eco Dev Schoal  Revaluation Revenue Housing  Capital Project  Governmental
tion Fund Fund Visitor Center Fund Mills VED DrainageFund _Park Trust Fund Fund Fund Funds Grant Funds Funds
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 11,363 § 88,668 $ 89,978 $ - $ 377640 § 233875 §$ 80642 $ 175313 $ 13812 $ 359890 $ 1431181 § 6,530 $ 6,530 §$ 1,437,711
Restricted Cash - - - 249,772 - - - - - - 249,772 - - 249,772
Accounts receivable - - 371 100,641 4369 - 178,014 - - - 283,395 - - 283,395
Taxes receivable (net) - - - - 746 831 - - - - 1577 - - 1,577
Total Assets $ 11363 § 88,668 $ $_350413 $ 382755 § 234,706 $_ 258656 3 175313 $ 13812 $ 359890 § 1.965925 $ 6,530 $ 6,530 $ 1,972,455
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 8158 § 14375 § 580 $ - $ 1,189 $ -8 - % -8 24302 § -8 -3 24,302
Due from other funds - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
. Total liabilities - - 8,158 14.375 580 - 1,189 - - - 24,302 - - 24302
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes recei - - - - 746 831 - - - - 1,577 - - 1577
‘Total deferred inflows of resources, - - - - 746 831 - - - - 1577 - - 1577
Fund Balances:
P Restricted
Stabilization by State Statute - - 371 100,641 4,369 - 178,014 - - - 283,395 - - 283,395
Register of Deeds 11,363 - - - - - - - - - 11,363 - - 11,363
Fire Protection - - - - 377,060 - - - - - 377060 - - 377,060
Committed
‘Tax Revaluation - - - - - - - 359,890 - - 359,890
School capital - - - 235397 - - - 249,209 - - 249,209
o i - 88,668 81,820 - - 79453 659,129 6,530 665,659
Total fund balances 11363 88,668 82,191 336,038 257,467 1,940,046 6,530 1,946,576
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources, and
fund balances $ 11363 $ 88,668 § 90,349 $ 350413 $_ 382755 $ 234,706 § 258656 $ 175313 $ 13812 $ 359890 $ 1965925 $ 6530 § 6,530 $ 1,972,455
s iy, ety e e Wty mesirenen | mmmm— ——— | i S | S——— T SR ——
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Camden County, North Carolina
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

6.A.b

C of P and
Changes in Fund Balances
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016
Auto
Enhancement Dismal Total Total
and Preserva- Watershed Swamp School Cap South Joyce Creek  Community Eco Dev School Revaluation  Special Revenue Capital Project ~ Governmental
tion Fund Fund Visitor Center Fund Mills VFD = Drainage Fund _Park Trust Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
Revenues:; - T T —_— e e — ——— —
Ad Valorem Taxes - - - - § 40129 § 20923 § - 8 - - $ - 61,052 - § 61,052
Other taxes - - - 565,239 158,230 - - - 6,680 - 730,149 - 730,149
Local contributions - - - 448,783 - - - 40,000 - - 488,783 - 488,783
Donations - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Investment earnings a7 591 - 2,359 1,994 1,232 687 805 62 2,085 9,902 - 9,902
Sales - - 30,722 - - - - - - - 30,722 - 30,722
Miscellaneous - - 508 351 - - - - - - 859 - 859
Federal and State grants - - 142,857 - 30,000 - 227,492 - - - 400,349 - 400,349
Fees 5497 97,854 - - - - - - - - 103.351 - 103.351
Total revenues 5,584 98,445 174.087 1,016,732 230,353 22,155 228,179 40805 6,742 1,825,167 - 1,825,167
Expenditures:
General government 9,000 - 174,499 - - - - - - 36,795 220,294 - 220,294
Public safety - - - - 132,620 - - - - - 132,620 - 132,620
Environmental protection - - - - - 9,685 - - - - 9,685 - 9,685
icand physical - 98,461 - - - - 322,097 19,000 - - 439,558 - 439,558
Cultural and recreation - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Education - - - 298,748 - - - - - - 298,748 - 298,748
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - - 77,042 - - - - - 77,042 - 77,042
Interest and fees - - - - 27,006 - - - - - 27,006 - 27.006
Total Expenditures 9,000 98,461 174499 298,748 236,668 9,685 322,097 19,000 - 36,795 1,204,953 - 1,204,953
Over {Under) (3416) (16) (412) 717,984 (6:315) 12,470 {93918) 21805 6,742 {34,710) 620214 - 620,214
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers from (to) other sources - - - - - - - - - 91,629 - 91,629
Transfers from (to) CU - - - - - - - - - - - -
Transfers from (to) other sources - - - (715,949) - - - - - 624,320 - 624,320
Total other financing sources (uses) N - - (715,949) - p N - - (532,691) - (532,691)
Net change in Fund Balance {3.416) {16} (“12) 2,035 (6,315} 12470 89,340 21,805 6,742 (34,710) 87,523 - 87,523
Fund balances:
Beginning of Year, July 1 14,779 88,684 82,603 334,003 387,744 221405 259,756 153.59§= 7,070 394,600 1,944,152 6,530 1,950,682
End of year, June 30 11363 $ 88668 § 82191 § 336038 $ 381429 $ 233875 § 349,096 $ 175313 $ 13812 $ 359.890 $ 2,031,675 § 6530 $ 2038205
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

6.A.b

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted
to expenditure for particular purposes.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fees $ $ 5497 $
Investment Earnings 87
Other income -
Total revenues 4,100 5,584 1,484
Expenditures:
Operating expenses 9,000
Total Expenditures 9,100 9,000 100
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (5,000) (3,416) 1,584
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from Other Funds -
Transfers to Other Funds -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - -
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses (5,000) (3,416) 1,584
Fund Balance Appropriated 5,000 - (5,000)
Net change in fund balance $ - (3,416) $ (3,416)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 14,779
End of Year, June 30 $ 11,363
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Camden County, North Carolina
Watershed Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Fees $ $ 97,854 $
Investment earnings 591
Total revenues 116,325 98,445 17,880
Expenditures:
Operating expenses 98,461
Total Expenditures 162,631 98,461 64,170
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (46,306) (16) 46,290
Net change in fund balance (46,306) (16) 46,290
Fund Balance Appropriated 46,306 - (46,306)
Net change in fund balance $ - (16) $ (16)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 88,684
End of Year, June 30 $ 88,668
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Camden County, North Carolina
Dismal Swamp Visitor Center
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental $ $ 142,857 $
Sales 30,722
Miscellaneous 508
Total Revenue 176,800 174,087 (2,713)
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 141,496
Operating expenses 33,003
Total Expenditures 181,900 174,499 7,401
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (5,100) (412) 4,688
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds - - -
Proceeds from Lease Purchase - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - -
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (5,100) (412) 4,688
Fund Balance Appropriated 5,100 - (5,100)
Net change in fund balance $ - (412) $ (412)
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 82,603
End of Year, June 30 $ 82,191

6.A.b

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)

69

Packet Pg. 151




Camden County, North Carolina
School Capital Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

2016
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Other taxes $ $ 565,239 $
Local contributions 448,783
Miscellaneous 351
Investment earnings 2,359
Total Revenues 1,285,255 1,016,732 (268,523)
Expenditures:
Education:
Operating expenses 298,748
Debt service: Principal -
Debt service: Interest -
Total Expenditures 541,217 298,748 242,469
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 744,038 717,984 (26,054)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds - - -
Transfer to other funds (744,038) (715,949) 28,089
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) (744,038) (715,949) 28,089
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses - 2,035 2,035
Fund Balance Appropriated - - -
Net change in fund balance $ - 2,035 $ 2,035
Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1 334,003
End of Year, June 30 $ 336,038
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
Fire District Fund - South Mills
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

<

o

o)

@)

o3

2016 e

Variance T

- Final Favorable <
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) =

Revenues: 8

Ad valorem taxes $ $ 40,129 $ n

- Other taxes 158,230 .g
Investment earnings 1,994 a

Other grants 30,000 c

. Other fees - 2
Total Revenues 256,522 230,353 (26,169) g

o

Expenditures: =

- Public safety: ©
Salaries and benefits 6,460 g

Operating expenses 126,161 K%

. Capital outlay - prs
Debt service: Principal and Interest 104,047 >

Total Expenditures 256,522 236,668 19,854 5

>

- Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - (6,315) (6,315) ©
=

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 2

» Proceeds from Installment Loan - - - ©
Transfer to General Fund - - - E

Total Other Financing —

Sources (Uses) - - - E

Revenues and Other Financing §

Sources Over (Under) Uses - (6,315) (6,315) =

B Fund Balance Appropriated - - - 'g
<

2

. c
=

Net change in fund balance $ - (6,315) $ (6,315) 8

g

- Fund Balance: 'E
Beginning of Year, July 1 387,744 I

@)

End of Year, June 30 $ 381429 =

o

To)

o

o

~

1=

a0

S

e

3

8

<
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Camden County, North Carolina
Drainage Fund - Joyce Creek

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Investment earnings
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Environmental Protection:
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Installment Loan
Transfer to General Fund
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Uses

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1

End of Year, June 30

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
20,923 $
1,232
50,712 22,155 (28,557)
9,685
50,712 9,685 41,027
- 12,470 12,470
- 12,470 12,470
- 12,470 $ 12,470
221,405

233,875
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Camden County, North Carolina
Community Park Trust Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental $ $ 227,492 $
Local Contributions -
Investment earnings 687
Total Revenue 281,098 228,179 (52,919)
Expenditures
Operating expenses -
Capital outlay 322,097
Total Expenditures 322,172 322,097 75
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (41,074) (93,918) (52,844)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds - 91,629 91,629
Proceeds from Lease Purchase - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - 91,629 91,629
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (41,074) (2,289) 38,785
Fund Balance Appropriated 41,074 - (41,074)
Net change in fund balance $ - (2,289) $ (2,289)
Fund Balance: .
Beginning of Year, July 1 259,756
End of Year, June 30 $ 257,467
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Camden County, North Carolina
Eco Dev Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues
Local contributions
Investment earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds
Proceeds from Lease Purchase
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1

End of Year, June 30

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
b 40,000 $
805
40,500 40,805 305
19,000
40,500 19,000 21,500
- 21,805 21,805
- 21,805 21,805
- 21,805 § 21,805
153,508
s ___ 175313

6.A.b
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Camden County, North Carolina
School Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues
Tax penalties and interest
Investment earnings
Total Revenue

Expenditures
Operating expenses
Capital outlay
Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers from other funds
Proceeds from Lease Purchase
Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance Appropriated

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance:
Beginning of Year, July 1

End of Year, June 30

2016
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
6,680 $
62
3,850 6,742 2,892
3,850 - 3,850
- 6,742 6,742
- 6,742 6,742
- 6,742 $ 6,742
7,070
13,812
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
Revaluation Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and T

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual a

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016 o:

@)

o3

%

S

2016 s

Variance <

Final Favorable =

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) (%

Revenues .g
Ad Valorem taxes $ $ - $ a
Investment earnings 2,085 c
Total Revenue 240,230 2,085 (238,145) z

S

Expenditures 2
Operating expenses 36,795 t
Capital outlay - o
Total Expenditures 240,230 36,795 203,435 S

[%2]

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - (34,710) (34,710) <
(@)

o

Other Financing Sources (Uses): o)
Transfers from other funds - - 2
Proceeds from Lease Purchase - - .
Total Other Financing S
Sources (Uses) - - - <

©

-

Revenues and Other Financing Sources 9
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses - (34,710) (34,710) E
Fund Balance Appropriated - - - S
<

—

Net change in fund balance $ - (34,710) $ (34,710) -
— = =

=)}

Fund Balance: <
Beginning of Year, July 1 394,600 E‘

)

End of Year, June 30 $ 359,890 8

o

§=

S

@

@)

©

—

o

N

To)

—

o

Y

1=

@

S

e

Q

8

<
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6.A.b

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds

|
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
Scattered Housing Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 2
o
o
Project Actual Variance ©
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable °25
ization Years Year Date (Unfavorable) g
Revenues: _cg
Restricted - infrastructure hook-up 08-C-1844 $ 37,289 $ - $ $ - $ <
Restricted - CDBG grant 11-C-2305 900,000 99,190 - 99,190 =
Restricted - SRSF grant 350,000 - - - S
Total Revenues 1,287,289 1,521,761 - 1,521,761 234,472 U)
3
Expenditures: =
Current: D_
Economic and physical s
development: 1,287,289 1,517,363 - 1,517,363 (230,074) a
e
Revenues over expenditures - 4,398 - 4,398 4,398 E
|_
Other Financing Sources (Uses): g
Transfers in (out) - - - - - 2
Local contribution - 2,132 - 2,132 (2,132) <=;
Total Other Financing >
Sources (Uses) - 2,132 - 2,132 (2,132) 5
>
o
Net change in fund balance $ - $ 6,530 $ - $ 6,530 % 6,530 'g
<
©
N
Fund Balance: 6,530 9
Beginning of Year, July 1 >
i
End of Year, June 30 $ 6,530 g
<
N
%
>
<
2
c
S
/o)
(@)
c
)
°
€
©
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©
-
o
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or where the governing body has
decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for accountability purposes.

6.A.b
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
Enterprise Fund - Water & Sewer District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures
Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP)

- For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016 g
o

@)

2016 o3

o Variance s
Final Positive e

Budget Actual (Negative) g

o Revenues: <
Operating Revenues g

Water sales $ $ 1,049348 §$ A

Tap on Fees 42,350 G

- Penalties 40,800 o
Miscellaneous - a

Total water sales 1,136,669 1,132,498 4,171) c

o

— (%2}
Waste water sales 373,752 ==

Miscellaneous - g

Total waste water sales 582,906 373,752 (209,154) |-E

Total Operating Revenues 1,719,575 1,506,250 (213,325) g

o

Nonoperating Revenues 2

a Interest on Investments 3,300 4,386 1,086 fm
@

Total Revenues 1,722,875 1,510,636 (212,239) (3

>

- Expenditures: f
Reverse osmosis plant ©

Salaries and employee benefits 163,846 2

— Repairs and maintenance 25,420 ©
Chemicals 32,420 E

Utilities i 76,738 —

Operating expenses 84,163 E

R Total 415,395 382,587 32,808 ..
S

S

Water distribution: ~

o Salaries and employee benefits 215,760 5
Repairs and maintenance 66,539 2

Supplies 13,614 -

_ Contracted services 29,023 =
Operating expenses 74,527 3

Total 423,824 399,463 24,361 O

o

— °
Waste Water treatment: %

Salaries and employee benefits 129,685 O

Repairs and maintenance 22,104 9

Utilities 29,347 &
Contracted services 6,943 ﬂl

Supplies 16,214 S

Operating expenses 44,996 =

Total 281,676 249,289 32,387 S
£

e

3

<

78

Packet Pg. 162




Camden County, North Carolina

Enterprise Fund - Water & Sewer District
Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures

Budget and Actual - (Non-GAAP)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

6.A.b

2016
Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Budgetary Appropriations:
Capital Outlay 312,614
Interest Paid 63,007
Debt Principal 223,424
Total 601,980 599,045 2,935
Total Expenditures 1,722,875 1,630,384 92,491
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures - (119,748) (119,748)
Other Financing Sources and (Uses):
Debt Proceeds - - -
Capital Contributions - - -
Transfer from other funds - 1,157,000 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 1,157,000 1,157,000
Revenues and Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenses and Other Uses - 1,037,252 1,037,252
Appropriated Fund Balance - - -
Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated
Fund Balance Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses $ - $ 1,037,252 $ 1,037,252

Reconciliation from Budgetary Basis (Modified Accrual) to Full Accrual:

Revenues, Other Sources and Appropriated
Fund Balance Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Uses $ 1,037,252
Reconciling items:
Capital Outlay 312,614
Principal Payments 223,424
Change in accrued vacation pay (7,426)
Increase (decrease) in net pension asset (28,827)
(Increase) decrease in net pension liability (21,838)
Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows
of resources for pensions (1,523)
(Increase) decrease in deferred inflows
of resources for pensions 58,908
Other revenues from capital projects 445,900
Change in accrued OPEB (14,071)
Change in accrued interest 544
Depreciation (541,905)
Total reconciling items ‘ 425,800
Change in net position $ 1,463,052
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Camden County, North Carolina
Water and Sewer District Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

6.A.b

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 2
o
Project Actual Variance 8
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable 3
ization Years Year Date (Unfavorable) 5
Revenues: =
Restricted intergovernmental - Rural Center $ 3,400,000 $ 3,489,950 § - $ 3,489,950 $ 89,950 _fg
Restricted intergovernmental - CWMTF Funds 3,564,011 3,096,007 - 3,096,007 (468,004) <
Restricted intergovernmental - CDBG 600,000 600,000 - 600,000 - -
Other 75,905 263,062 445,900 708,962 633,057 °
Interest Income - 9,377 1,710 11,087 11,087 &’)
Total Revenues 7,639,916 7,458,396 447,610 7,906,006 266,090 <
o
Expenditures: a
Sewer Construction: c
Legal fees 94,189 51,292 - 51,292 42,897 8
Land 422,900 70,360 - 70,360 352,540 o
Engineering 753,855 323,855 - 323,855 430,000 g
Collection system 1,506,029 1,443,078 20,000 1,463,078 42,951 -
Construction 6,818,822 6,818,231 - 6,818,231 591 t
Spray fields 1,133,161 302,362 - 302,362 830,799 o
Fund reserves 360,943 73,448 - 73,448 287,495 g
Total 11,089,899 9,082,626 20,000 9,102,626 1,987,273 K%
Revenues over expenditures (3,449,983) (1,624,230) 427,610 (1,196,620) 2,253,363 f;)
0]
Other Financing Sources (Uses): O
Fund balance appropriated 1,132,861 - - - 1,132,861 _é"
Revolving loan funds 1,367,122 1,307,809 - 1,307,809 59,313 =
Transfers In 950,000 582,291 - 582,291 367,709 -g
Total Other Financing g
Sources (Uses) 3,449,983 1,890,100 - 1,890,100 1,559,883 A
9
Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under) E
Expenditures and Other Uses $ - $ 265,870 427,610 $ 693480 $ 693,480 ‘e
>
<t
Z
©
>
<
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
Water and Sewer District Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

From Inception and For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016 2
o
o
Project Actual Variance ©
Author - Prior Current Total to Favorable 025_
ization Years Year Date (Unfavorable) g
Revenues: _fg
Restricted intergovernmental - CWMTF $ 1,464,100 $ 1217666 % - $ 1,217,666 $ (246,434) <
Restricted intergovernmental - RC Grant 649,875 693,600 - 693,600 43,725 =]
Restricted intergovernmental - DOT Grant 269,810 276,868 - 276,868 7,058 8
Other ' - 18,367 - 18,367 18,367 U)
Interest Income - - 537 537 537 8
Total Revenues 2,383,785 2,206,501 537 2,207,038 (176,747) E
Expenditures: 5
Sewer improvements 2,419,510 2,288,746 - 2,288,746 130,764 3
Professional services 115,000 16,764 - 16,764 98,236 e
Fund reserves - - - - - E
Total 2,534,510 2,305,510 - 2,305,510 229,000 t
o
Revenues over expenditures (150,725) (99,009) 537 (98,472) 52,253 S
%)
Other Financing Sources (Uses): <
Fund balance appropriated 35,725 - - - (35,725) g)
Transfers In 115,000 150,725 1,157,000 1,307,725 1,192,725 (i
Total Other Financing o
Sources (Uses) 150,725 150,725 1,157,000 1,307,725 1,157,000 %
>
<
Revenues, Other Sources Over (Under) ©
Expenditures and Other Uses $ - $ 51,716 1,157,537  $ 1,209,253 $  (1,104,747) ﬂl
>_
i
-
o))
<
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AGENCY FUNDS
Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Agency Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Balance Net Balance
July 1, 2015 Change June 30, 2016

Social Services Fund:

Cash and Investments $ 10,699 $ (1,819) $ 8,880

Liabilities $ 10,699 $ (1,819 $ 8,880
Nancy M. and H. Clay Ferebee Fund

Cash and Investments $ 1,534 $ 43 1,538

Liabilities $ 1,534 § 493 1,538
Total - All Agency Funds:

Cash and Investments $ 12,233 §$ (1,815) $ 10,418

Liabilities $ 12,233 § (1,815 § 10,418

6.A.b
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OTHER SCHEDULES

This section includes additional information on property taxes.

- Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

e - Analysis of Current Tax Levy
- Secondary Market Disclosures

- Ten Largest Taxpayers

6.A.b
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Camden County, North Carolina

General Fund

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

Reconcilement with revenues:

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund
Ad valorem taxes - Revaluation Fund
Reconciling items:
Penalties and Interest
Collection of Old Taxes
Release
Total Reconciling Items

Total Collections and Credits

June 30,2016
Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance
Fiscal Year July 1, 2015 Additions And Credits June 30, 2016
2015-2016 $ $ 7,192,446 $ 7,011,827 $ 180,619
2014-2015 223,799 2,077 156,885 68,991
2013-2014 84,862 2,401 51,831 35,432
2012-2013 42,226 - 15,865 26,361
2011-2012 25,520 - 7,399 18,121
2010-2011 23,818 - 9,942 13,876
2009-2010 13,063 - 1,368 11,695
2008-2009 12,191 - 1,193 10,998
2007-2008 15,379 - 2,630 12,749
2006-2007 15,618 - 1,172 14,446
2005-2006 26,535 - 26,535 -
TOTALS $ 483,011 $ 7,196,924 $ 7,286,647 $ 393,288
Less: Allowance for uncollectable taxes (124,000)
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund $ 269,288

$ 7,325,931

(70,036)
(873)
31,625

(39,28%)

S __ 7286647

6.A.b
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Camden County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
County - Wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

6.A.b

Original levy:
Property Taxes at Current Year Rate
Total Original Levy

Discoveries:
Current year taxes
Total Discoveries
Abatements

Current Year Taxes
Total Abatements

Total for Year

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2016

Current year's taxes collected

Current levy collection percentage

<
o
Total Levy S
Property o3
excluding %
County - wide Registered ~ Registered %
Property Amount Motor Motor 2
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles =
3
n
$  1,057,712,647 0.6800% § 7,192,446 $ 6,542,010 $ 650,436 005
1,057,712,647 7,192,446 6,542,010 650,436 D:_
c
o
(%2}
- 0.6800% - - - g'
- - - - o
e
|_
©
- 0.6800% - - - S
- - - - Rz
<
$ 1,057,712,647 7,192,446 6,542,010 650,436 >
5
180,619 180,619 - >
O
$ 7011827  $_6361,391 § 650,436 5
<
97.49% 97.24% 100.00% ©
O
—
>_
o
<
o
<
o
=
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Camden County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy
County - wide Levy
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment Ratio! 100
Real Property $ 901,454,076
Personal Property3 132,110,309
Public Service Companies® 24,148,274
Total Assessed Valuation 1,057,712,659
Tax Rate per $100 0.68
Levy (includes discoveries, releases and abatements)? $ 7,192,446

In addition to the County-wide rate, the following table lists the levies by the County on
behalf and fire protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30:

Fire Protection Districts $ 111,986

! Percentage of appraised value has been established by statute.

2 Valuation of railroads, telephone companies and other utilities as
determined by the North Carolina Property Tax Commission.

3 The levy includes penalties and multi-rate for motor vehicles.

%
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Ten Largest Taxpayers
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

6.A.b

<
o
2015 Percentage of 8
Assessed Total Assessed o3
Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation g
[
E & J Holding LLC Training Facility $ 44,686,618 4.22% 2
George Wood Farms, Inc. Farm 14,489,853 1.37% =
Albemarle Elec Membership Corp ~ Utility 9,865,000 0.93% S
Dominion North Carolina Power Utility 6,706,471 0.63% U’
Blue Sky Development, LLC Apartment Complex 6,109,853 0.58% g
Academi Training Center, Inc. Training Facility 3,769,412 0.36% D:_
Carolina Telephone & Telegraph Utility 2,681,029 0.25% =
Abner Wayne Staples Farm 2,617,059 0.25% 2
John E Ferbee Farming, Inc. Farm 2,427,206 0.23% g—
Cherry Hill Farms Farm 2,345,882 0.22% o
Total $ 95,698,383 9.05% =
©
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COMPLIANCE SECTION
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

6.A.b

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance and Other
Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the
accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Camden County, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the
Camden County’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 20, 2016. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the
financial statements of the Camden County ABC Board, as described in our report on
Camden County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the
other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and
other matters that are reported separately by those auditors. The financial statements of
Camden County ABC Board and Camden County TDA were not audited in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Camden
County’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Camden County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is areasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be

Members

American insticute of CPAs - N.C. Association of CPAs - AIUPA Division of Firms
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prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist thathave not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Camden County’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

%mpwn, Fhice, Seott, Adame & o, 4.

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
Wilmington, North Carolina
December 20, 2016
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910) 395-4872

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over
Compliance; With OMB Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Camden County, compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina,
issued by the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Camden County’ major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. Camden County’ major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Camden County’ major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Camden County’ compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Camden County’
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Camden County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Camden County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Camden County’ internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

%mpwn, Fhice, Seett, Tdamr & Qo F4a.

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
Wilmington, North Carolina
December 20, 2016
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Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 3
Wilmington, North Carolina 28403
Telephone (910) 791-4872

Fax (910} 395-4872

Report On Compliance For Each Major State Program; Report on Internal Control Over
Compliance; In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance; and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of County Commissioners
Camden County, North Carolina

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited Camden County, North Carolina, compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Caroling, issued by
the Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Camden
County’s major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. Camden County’s major state
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’'s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Camden County’s major state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and applicable sections
of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as described in the Audit
Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Caroling, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Those standards, Uniform Guidance, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Camden
County’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures, as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Camden County
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, Camden County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Camden County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Camden County’ internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

%upwn, "'F‘liw, Keott, dams & o, <1=>.CL.

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
Wilmington, North Carolina
December 20, 2016
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

6.A.b

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial statements audited were prepared in accordance to GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No
Significant Deficiency(s) identified? Yes X None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Significant Deficiency(s) identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No
Identification of major federal programs:
CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster
93.778 Medical Assistance Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B Programs $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

State Awards
Internal control over major State programs:

Material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Significant Deficiency(s) identified? Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unmodified.

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with the State Single Audit Implementation Act? Yes X _ No

Identification of major State programs:
Program Name
The Medical Assistance Program which is a State match on a federal program also meets the criteria

for a major state program, but this program has been included in the list of major federal programs
above.

6.A.b

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)

94

Packet Pg. 181




Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

6.A.b

Section II. Financial Statement Findings

None Reported.
Section I11. Federal Award Findings and Question Costs
None Reported.
Section IV. State Award Findings and Question Costs
None Reported.
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Camden County, North Carolina
Corrective Action Plan
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2016

6.A.b

Section II. Financial Statement Findings

None Reported.
Section ITI. Federal Award Findings and Question Costs
None Reported.
Section IV. State Award Findings and Question Costs
None Reported.
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None Reported.

Camden County, North Carolina
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
For the Year Ended June 30,2016

6.A.b
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

6.A.b

Federal  Fed. (Direct & Passed-through —
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through} State to Local <
Grantor/Program Title Number  Expenditures Expenditures Subrecipients Expenditures D‘_
o)
Federal Awards: @)
. o3
U.S. Dept. of Agriculture -
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services: g
Division of Social Services: G
Administration: S
State Administrative Matching Grants for <
the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10561 §$ 90,501 $ - $ - $ 90,501 =]
(@)
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services: &’)
Division of Public Health: -
Direct Benefit Payments: 8
Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for =
Women, Infants, & Children 10.557 15,286 - - - o
c
Total U.S. Dept. of Agriculture 105,787 - - 90,501 (o)
n
(e
U.S. Dept. of Justice =
Direct Program: o
Passed-through N.C. Dept. Public Safety =
JAG Program Cluster t
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 8,051 - - - =)
Total U.S. Dept. of Justice c
o
2
_U.S. Dept. of Health & Human Services ) =
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services: o
. - . o
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster (3
Work First Administration 93.558 24,768 - - 25,269 >
Work First Service 93.558 60,685 - - 64,781 K]
TANF Payment and Penalties 93.558 30,573 - - - —
Total TANF Cluster 116,026 - - 90,050 S
5
Child Support Enforcement Section 93.563 40,765 - - 21,000 <
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance: S
Administration 93.568 3,826 - - - O
Energy Assistance Payments- Direct Benefit Payments 93.568 23,200 - - - —
Crisis Intervention Program 93.568 22,919 - - - >
Stephanie Tubbs jones Child Welfare Services-State Grants w
- Permanency Planning - Families for Kids 93.645 928 - - 309 q-
Social Services Block Grant - Other Service and Training 93.667 28,994 3,104 - 10,699 o))
In Home Services 93.667 606 - - 87 S‘
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6.A.b

Camden County, North Carolina
o Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Fed. (Direct & Passed-through
— Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through) State to Local
i Number  Expenditures Expenditures Subrecipients Expenditures
Foster Care and Adoption Cluster:(Note 2)
Title IV-E Foster Care-Administration 93.658 10,595 2,211 - 9,389
Foster Care-Direct Benefit Payments 93.658 4,451 7,739 - 2411
- Adoption Assistance-Direct Benefit Payments 93.659 19,286 4,936 - 4,936
Total Foster Care and Adoption Cluster 34,332 14,886 - 16,736
Division of Child Development:
- Subsidized Child Care (Note 3)
i v
Division of Social Services and Early Education:
Child Care Development Fund-Administration 93.596 64,445 - - -
Division of Child Development:
— Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 60,515 - - -
Child Care and Development Fund - Manditory 93.596 20465 - - -
Child Care and Development Fund - Match 93.596 6,774 - - -
Total Child Care Development Fund Cluster 152,199 - - -
- Foster Care IV-E 93.658 1,749 900 - -
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 17,226 - - -
State Appropriations - 6,997 - -
TANF - MOE - 5,094 - -
o Total Subsidized Child Care Cluster 171,174 12,991 - -
Passed-through the N.C. Dept. of Health and Human Services:
Division of Medical Assistance:
Direct Benefit Payments:
— Medical Assistance Program 93.778 4,245,225 2,347,451 - -
State Children's Insurance Program - N.C. Health Choice 93.767 171,026 8,019 - 125
CMS Research (MIPPA Grant) 93.779 640 - - -
Division of Social Services:
b Administration:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 356,905 908 - 147,143
State Children's Insurance Program - N.C. Health Choice 93.767 20,214 1,258 - 125
o Total U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services 5,236,780 2,388,617 - 286,274
Total Federal Awards 5,350,618 2,388,617 - 376,775
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Grantor/Pass-through

State Awards:

N.C. Dept, of Health and Human Services
Division of Aging and Adult Services:
County Funded Programs/Non Allocating costs
State/County Special Assistance for Adults
Passed through Albemarle Commission:
Senior Center Grant
Nutrition Grant

Division of Social Services:
State Foster Care Benefits Program

Camden County, North Carolina

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal
CFDA
Number

Fed. (Direct &
Pass-through)
Expenditures

Passed-through

State
Expenditures

to
Subrecipients

Local
Expenditures

6.A.b

Total N. C. Department of Health and Human Services

Juvenile Crime Prevention Program

Soil and Water Technical Assistance

N.C. Dept. of Transportation
Camden ECO Park Access Road

Dismal Swamp Welcome/Visitor Center
Total N. C. Dept. Of Transportation

DOT-13

Public School Building Capital Fund Lottery Proceeds

. Department of En
White Goods Gran
Soil and Water Conservation Funds
Solid Waste Disposal
Park and Recreation Trust Fund
Scrap Tire Grant

Total N.C. Dept. EHNR

SHIIP Gant
South Mills Fire Grant
Total N.C. Dept. of Insurance
Total State Awards

Total Federal and State Awards

53,314

5,229
7,470

8,145

109,846
53,314

8,145

74,158

171,305

51,907

23,125

142,857

142,857

44,840

3,487
3,600
8,153
65,000
5,055

85,295

3,279

3,279

425461

44,840

171,305

5,350,618 $

2,814,078 §

44,840 $

548,080
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Camden County, North Carolina
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Fed. (Direct & Passed-through
Grantor/Pass-through CFDA Pass-through) State to Local
i Number  Expenditures Expenditures Subrecipients Expenditures

6.A.b

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Financial Awards:

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and State awards (SEFSA) includes the federal and State grant activity of the Camden
County under the programs of the federal government and the State of North Carolina for the year ended june 30, 2016. The information in this
SEFSA is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Camden County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net position or cash flows of Camden County.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ’

Expenditures reported in the SEFSA are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the
cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Camden County has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 3: Cluster of Programs

The following are clustered by the NC Department of Health and Human Services and are treated separately for state audit requirement purposes:

Subsidized Child Care, TANF, and Foster Care and Adoption.
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6.A.b

Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams & Co., P.A.
4024 Oleander Drive Suite 103
Wilmington, NC 28403

December 20, 2016

The Honorable Beth A. Wood, CPA, State Auditor
Office of the State Auditor

2 South Salisbury Street

20601 Mail Service Center

Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-0601

Dear Ms. Wood:

This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the State of North Carolina’s Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and compliance over its major federal programs for the period
ended June 30, 2016 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the State complied, in
all material respects, with the compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016.

We have audited those federal programs as checked off on the list that follows of Camden County
as major programs in accordance with Uniform Grant Guidance for the year ended June 30, 2016:

A [[] CFDA #93.558 Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF)
B [] CFDA #93.767 Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP)

XI  CFDA # 93.778 Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid)

We acknowledge that:

1. We are independent with respect to Camden County and to the State of North Carolina under
the requirements of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), and if
applicable, Government Auditing Standards issued by the U.S. Government Accountability
Office. Also, we complied with all ethical requirements promulgated by these professional
bodies, as applicable.

2. We are aware that the results of our audit of Camden County will be included in the Report on
Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Grants of the State of North Carolina and that
you intend to place reliance on our audit of the above designated program(s).
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6.A.b

3. We are familiar with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and with generally accepted auditing standards promulgated by the AICPA and with GAO
Government Auditing Standards and will report and conduct out audit in accordance therewith.

4. We are familiar with the auditing and reporting requirements of Office of Management and
Budget Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Grants (Uniform Grant Guidance) as found in 2 CFR 200, and have reported and
conducted our audit in accordance therewith.

We informed you of any changes in the above representations during the course of our work.

Sincerely,

Griqo;:y S Adpms, CPA

Gregory S Adams, CPA
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Page 1 of 10
2016 Turnaround Document

- Instructions: In addition to the audit report, please complete this Turnaround Document only for
each program audited for eligibility. Submit this form along with all required information
to the Local Government Commission.

SPECIFIED PROGRAMS

o Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558
Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) 93.767
Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) 93.778
AUDITOR STATEMENT
o Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2016

s Audit Organization: | THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

Signature of Audit | The information included on this form is based on information included in our
Organization: workpapers and is based on our audit of the major federal program as applicable.
We have not performed any auditing procedures since the date of the auditor's
report and have not performed any additional auditing procedures in connection
with the completion of this form.

Signed: Grfgafy S, Adoms

Title: Manager

I
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Turnaround Document Page 2 of 10
Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY
- Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2016

Audit Organization: | THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

— Please include or attach any information for those programs audited for eligibility known at the time of
submission that pertains to the following:

1) Indicators of possible management bias.

2) Additional related parties we should be aware of.

3) Significant risks of material noncompliance due to fraud or error, including your (the component
auditor’s) response to risk.

4) Noncompliance with laws or regulations that could give rise to a material misstatement in the

SEFA.

5) Any other significant matters that you have communicated or expect to communicate to those
charged with governance including fraud or suspected fraud involving program management,
employees who have significant roles in internal control over compliance at the compliance
requirement type level or others where the fraud resulted in a material misstatement or
noncompliance.

6) Any other matters that you wish to bring to our attention.

Please include an explanation of the above items here or list attachments of any relevant documents.

NONE REPORTED.

May 2015
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Turnaround Document

Page 4 of 10

6.A.b

Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY

Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2016

Audit Organization: THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

yes,

B. | Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) (93.558) Required Responses

1 Indicate the program type at this entity in accordance with section 200.518 of Type A[] Type B [X
Uniform Grant Guidance.
The program was audited due to (choose all that apply
A. Selection as a major program as a result of a risk assessment performed in 1
accordance with section 200.518 of Uniform Grant Guidance
B. Selection as a major program by the N.C. State Auditor’s Office |

2. | The period covered for testing procedures performed (choose all that apply):
A. Year-end only. Control [] Compliance [_]
B. Interim with procedures extended to post-interim period. Control [] Compliance []
C. Interim with alternate procedures applied to post-interim period. Control [] Compliance []
Explain the alternate procedures and rationale for these procedures:

3. For the program audited, were there any audit findings related to internal control Yes [] No []
deficiencies for the eligibility process disclosed because of the audit?
If Please submit copies of the audit findings, including individual error documentation with this document.

Note: Copies of only those audit findings related to internal control deficiencies for the eligibility process are

required to be attached to this document.

eligibility process:

For the program audited, provide the following regarding your sample and results of testing internal controls for the

sample (if identifiable).

Please explain the sample selection methodology if the sample size is less than 60:

A. Sample size —The number of recipient files selected for audit and the total dollar value of the

Recipients

Dollar Value
$

deficiencies for the tested eligibility process.

B. Number of errors — The number of recipient files noted to have one or more internal control

C. Overall Conclusion & Final Assessment of Control Risk — The overall conclusion including a summary of the final
assessment of control risk (Maximum or Low) based on the audit procedures performed.
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6.A.b

For the program audited, were there any audit findings related to eligibility Yes []
noncompliance disclosed because of the audit?

No [

If
yes,

document.

Please submit copies of the audit findings, including individual error documentation with this document.

Note: Copies of only those audit findings related to eligibility noncompliance are required to be attached to this

For the program audited, provide the following regarding your sample and results of testing compliance of eligibility

requirements:

A. Sample size — The number of recipient files selected for audit and the total dollar value of the Recipients
sample (if identifiable).

Please explain the sample selection methodology if the sample size is less than 60:

Doliar Value
$

B. Number of errors — The number of recipient files noted to have one or more deficiencies in the
tested compliance eligibility requirements.

C. Questioned Costs — Any amount associated with recipient files noted as ineligible or receiving $
incorrect benefit amounts.

D. Evaluation of Errors — To provide perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences of the errors noted,
please provide the projection of the identified errors to the overall population of recipients and the dollar value of
the population. Please describe the methodology used for these projections.

E. Additional Procedures (if necessary) - If noncompliance is identified, explain the additional procedures performed

to ensure the evaluation of errors are reasonable to assist in the classification of noncompliance. Please explain:

March 2016
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Turnaround Document Page 6 of 10
Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2016

Audit Organization:. | THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

D. | Children’s Health Insurance Program (CHIP) (93.767)

Required Responses

yes,

1 Indicate the program type at this entity in accordance with section 200.518 of Type A L] Type B [X
Uniform Grant Guidance.
The program was audited due to (choose all that apply
A. Selection as a major program as a result of a risk assessment performed in ]
accordance with section 200.518 of Uniform Grant Guidance
B. Selection as a major program by the N.C. State Auditor's Office O

2. | The period covered for testing procedures performed (choose all that apply):
A. Year-end only. Control [] Compliance []
B. Interim with procedures extended to post-interim period. Control [] Compliance []
C. Interim with alternate procedures applied to post-interim period. Control [] Compliance []
Explain the alternate procedures and rationale for these procedures:

3. | For the program audited, were there any audit findings related to internal control Yes [] No []
deficiencies for the eligibility process disclosed because of the audit?
If Please submit copies of the audit findings, including individual error documentation with this document.

Note: Copies of only those audit findings related to internal control deficiencies for the eligibility process are

required to be attached to this document.

eligibility process:

For the program audited, provide the following regarding your sample and results of testing internal controls for the

sample (if identifiable).
Please explain the sample selection methodology if the sample size is less than 60:

B. Sample size — The number of recipient files selected for audit and the total doliar value of the

Recipients

Dollar Value

deficiencies for the tested eligibility process.

B. Number of errors — The number of recipient files noted to have one or more internal control

C. Overall Conclusion & Final Assessment of Control Risk — The overall conclusion including a summary of the final
assessment of control risk (Maximum or Low) based on the audit procedures performed.

March 2016

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)
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6.A.b

Turnaround Document ' Page 7 of 10
5. | For the program audited, were there any audit findings related to eligibility Yes [] No [X
N noncompliance disclosed because of the audit?
If Please submit copies of the audit findings, including individual error documentation with this document.
yes,

Note: Copies of only those audit findings related to eligibility noncompliance are required to be attached to this
document.

6. | For the program audited, provide the following regarding your sample and results of testing compliance of eligibility
o requirements:

B. Sample size — The number of recipient files selected for audit and the total dollar value of the Recipients
sample (if identifiable).

Please explain the sample selection methodology if the sample size is less than 60:
Dollar Value
Total population was 2 or 100% tested.

B. Number of errors — The number of recipient files noted to have one or more deficiencies in the
tested compliance eligibility requirements.

C. Questioned Costs — Any amount associated with recipient files noted as ineligible or receiving
incorrect benefit amounts.

D. Evaluation of Errors — To provide perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences of the errors noted,
please provide the projection of the identified errors to the overall population of recipients and the dollar value of
the population. Please describe the methodology used for these projections.

- E. Additional Procedures (if necessary) — If noncompliance is identified, explain the additional procedures performed
to ensure the evaluation of errors are reasonable to assist in the classification of noncompliance. Please explain:

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)

March 2016
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6.A.b

Turnaround Document Page 8 of 10
Entity Audited: CAMDEN COUNTY
Year Ended: JUNE 30, 2016

Audit Organization: THOMPSON, PRICE, SCOTT, ADAMS & CO, P.A.

E. | Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid) (93.778)

Required Responses

yes,

1 Indicate the program type at this entity in accordance with section 200.518 of Type AX Type B[]
Uniform Grant Guidance.
The program was audited due to (choose all that apply
A. Selection as a major program as a result of a risk assessment performed in X
accordance with section 200.518 of Uniform Grant Guidance
B. Selection as a major program by the N.C. State Auditor’s Office O

2. | The period covered for testing procedures performed (choose all that apply):
A. Year-end only. Control [X] Compliance [X]
B. Interim with procedures extended to post-interim period. Control [] Compliance []
C. Interim with alternate procedures applied to post-interim period. Control [] Compliance []
Explain the alternate procedures and rationale for these procedures:

3. | For the program audited, were there any audit findings related to internal control Yes [] No X
deficiencies for the eligibility process disclosed because of the audit?
If Please submit copies of the audit findings, including individual error documentation with this document.

Note: Copies of only those audit findings related to internal control deficiencies for the eligibility process are

required to be attached to this document.

deficiencies for the tested eligibility process.

4. | For the program audited, provide the following regarding your sample and results of testing internal controls for the
eligibility process:
C. Sample size — The number of recipient files selected for audit and the total dollar value of the Recipients
sample (if identifiable). 60
Please explain the sample selection methodology if the sample size is less than 60: Dollar Value
B. Number of errors — The number of recipient files noted to have one or more internal control 0

March 2016

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)
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6.A.b

Turnaround Document Page 9 of 10

C. Overall Conclusion & Final Assessment of Control Risk — The overall conclusion including a summary of the final
assessment of control risk (Maximum or Low) based on the audit procedures performed.

Based upon our procedures and the results therein, we conclude that our initial assessment of control risk (low) for
the eligibility process remains unchanged. We tested controls to support our low control risk assessment for the
components of internal control over the eligibility compliance requirement, as well as the other direct and indirect
compliance requirements for the major program. Controls are properly designed, implemented and operating
effectively, maintaining a low assessed level of control risk of noncompliance.

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)

March 2016
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Turnaround Document Page 10 of 10

6.A.b

For the program audited, were there any audit findings related to eligibility Yes []

noncompliance disclosed because of the audit?

No X

If
yes,

document.

Please submit copies of the audit findings, including individual error documentation with this document.

Note: Copies of only those audit findings related to eligibility noncompliance are required to be attached to this

For the program audited, provide the following regarding your sample and results of testing compliance of eligibility

requirements:

C. Sample size — The number of recipient files selected for audit and the total dollar value of the Recipients
sample (if identifiable). 60

Please explain the sample selection methodology if the sample size is less than 60:

Dollar Value

B. Number of errors — The number of recipient files noted to have one or more deficiencies in the 0
tested compliance eligibility requirements.

C. Questioned Costs — Any amount associated with recipient files noted as ineligible or receiving $0.00
incorrect benefit amounts.

D. Evaluation of Errors — To provide perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences of the errors noted,
please provide the projection of the identified errors to the overall population of recipients and the dollar value of
the population. Please describe the methodology used for these projections.

E. Additional Procedures (if necessary) — If noncompliance is identified, explain the additional procedures performed

to ensure the evaluation of errors are reasonable to assist in the classification of noncompliance. Please explain:

March 2016

Attachment: 2015-2016 Camden County Audit (1494 : FY 15-16 Audit by Greg Allison of Thompson, Price, Scott, Adams, & Co., PA)
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6.B

CAMDENCOUNTY

new energy. new vision.

Board of Commissioners
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET

New Business

Item Number: 6.B

Meeting Date: March 06, 2017

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator
Taxes
Prepared by: Lisa Anderson

Item Title January 2017 Monthly Report

Attachments: Monthly Tax Report - Jan 2017  (PDF)

Summary: January 2017 Monthly Report

Recommendation: Review and approve
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2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008

2007

MONTHLY REPORT OF THE TAX ADMINISTRATOR TO THE

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

OUTSTANDING TAX DELINQUENCIES BY YEAR

REAL PROPERTY

428,534.49

85,501.83

40,360.49

17,984.22

12,478.76

8,771.81

6,581.69

4,647.24

3,971.28

4,010.88

6.B.1

<

PERSONAL PROPERTY S
>

©

13,274.19 =
S

4,139.05 5
o

(O]

x

2,913.55 %
|_

>

<

6,586.98 B
=

9,150.40 3
2

7,431.62 =
AN

s

5,116.63 N
5

o

4,795.41 i
s

|_

5,231.68 2>
Z

=

6,951.40 .
o

£

<
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TOTAL REAL PROPERTY TAX UNCOLLECTED
TOTAL PERSONAL PROPERTY UNCOLLECTED
TEN YEAR PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE

COLLECTION FOR 2017 vs. 2016

LAST 3 YEARS PERCENTAGE COLLECTION RATE

2016 93.39%
2015 98.65%
2014 99.36%

THIRTY LARGEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "A"

THIRTY OLDEST UNPAID ACCOUNTS

SEE ATTACHMENT "B"

612,842.69

65,590.91

98.99%

1,680,022.16 vs. 449,369.20

6.B.1

Attachment: Monthly Tax Report - Jan 2017 (1584 : Monthly Tax Report - January 2017)
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513

22

14

13

EFFORTS AT COLLECTION IN THE LAST 30 DAYS
ENDING  January 2017
BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR

NUMBER DELINQUENCY NOTICES SENT

FOLLOWUP REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT SENT
NUMBER OF WAGE GARNISHMENTS ISSUED
NUMBER OF BANK GARNISHMENTS ISSUED

NUMBER OF PERSONAL PHONE CALLS MADE BY TAX ADMINISTRATOR
TO DELINQUENT TAXPAYER

NUMBER OF PERSONAL VISITS CONDUCTED (COUNTY OFFICES)

PAYMENT AGREEMENTS PREPARED UNDER AUTHORITY OF
TAX ADMINISTRATOR

NUMBER OF PAYMENT AGREEMENTS RECOMMENDED TO
COUNTY ATTORNEY

NUMBER OF CASES TURNED OVER TO COUNTY ATTORNEY FOR
COLLECTION (1.D. AND STATUS)

REQUEST FOR EXECUTION FILES WITH CLERK OF COURTS

NUMBER OF JUDGMENTS FILED

6.B.1

Attachment: Monthly Tax Report - Jan 2017 (1584 : Monthly Tax Report - January 2017)
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Parcel Number

03-8943-04-74-3506
01-7989-00-01-1714
02-8934-01-17-4778

03-8971-00-12-0477.
02-8944~-00-87-7021.
01-8907-00-65-3412.
03-8953-04-81-9832.
03-8899-00-45-2682.
03-8971-00-23-2253.
01-7081-00-81-4060.
02-8934-01-06-3185.
01-7998-01-08-8621.
02-8935-04-63-0820.
03-8973-00-19-2109.
01-7998-01-08-6797.
02-8935-02-66-7093.
02-8945-00-41-2060.
02-8934-01-18-6001.
01-7979-00-61~-7358.
03-8965-00-13-1025.
02-8945-00-54-1099.
03-8953-03-12-6266.
01-7081-00-52-7312.
03-8973-00-22-3033.
02-8944-00-31-2148.
02-8937-00-50-8036.
03-8964-00-40-9957.
02-8923-00-19-3774.
01-7999-00-46-1105.
03-8972-00-44-8500.

02/27/17 13:05:32

.0000
.0000
.0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0000
0010
0000
0000

Unpaid Amount YrsDlg

16,419.25
10,653.18
10,563.66
8,062.31
7.830.77
7,187.73
6,594.63
6,243 .84
5,025.80
4,991.16
4,884.14
4,703.21
4,560.91
4,340.07
4,230.70
4,108.38
4,089.49
4,046.28
3,887.67
3,832.20
3,547.63
3,493.63
3,345.38
3,280.35
3,261.75
3,236.69
3,029.92
3,024.06
2,900.97
2,897.97

NHWWNWHWRNWHER WO BRRBOWUIRHENDEWW

Taxpayer Name

ELLIOTT & DONNA JACOBS
CHARLES MILLER HEIRS

LARRY G. LAMB SR

GILBERT WAYNE OVERTON &
MARK M. BRIGMAN SR & LISA L.
WAVERLY MEIGGS SAWYER
MAIDIA S. CECIL HEIRS
SEAMARK INC.
ABODE OF CAMDEN,
CRAIG S. CAREY
WAVERLY M SAWYER
WILLIE L. TURNER ETAL
BELCROSS PROPERTIES, LLC
WANDA ADAMS

EDWARD E. HARRIS JR.

B. F. ETHERIDGE HEIRS
LASELLE ETHERIDGE SR.

LINDA SUE LAMB HINTON

BERT LLC

SHARON EVANS MUNDEN

GERTIE LEE & JONOLA T ROUNTREE
R.VERNON BRAY, JR.

WILLIAM K. COLONNA

TAYLOR LEIGH PROPERTIES LLC
CARL HARRINGTON

CLEVELAND WALSTON LE

LASALLE SEARS HEIRS

WILLIAM CONOVER

LINDA EASON COLSON

ABODE OF CAMDEN INC.

INC.

Delinquencies Top-30 Unpaid

SHILOH
SQUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SQUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SHILOH
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN

SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH

6.B.1

Property Address

117 SUNSET AVE
HORSESHOE RD

152 158 US W

187 THOMAS POINT RD
175 MCKIMMEY RD

866 343 HWY N

113 TROTMAN RD

HOLLY RD

187 C THOMAS POINT RD
201 SHARON CHURCH RD
117 HAVENWOOD DR
1289 343 HWY N

197 158 US E

765 SANDY HOOK RD
1295 343 HWY N

158 US E

168 BUSHELL RD

150 158 US W
HORSESHOE RD

556 TROTMAN RD

263 BELCROSS RD

120 LAUREN LN

256 CULPEPPER RD
RICKS WAY

150 SAND HILLS RD
187 HERMAN ARNOLD RD

291 BARTLETT RD

431 158 US W

176 PUDDING RIDGE RD
343 HWY S

A2

Attachment: Monthly Tax Report - Jan 2017 (1584 : Monthly Tax Report - January 2017)
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Parcel Number
01-7989-00-01-1714.0000

03-8899-00-45-2682.
03-8943-04-93-8214.
01-7988-00-91-0179.
03-8952-00-95-8737.0000
01-7999-00-32-3510.
01-7999-00-12-8596.0000
02-8935-01-19-4055.
01-7989-04-60-1954.
03-8962-00-50-0273.
01-7090-00-60-5052.
02-8955-00-13-7846.
02-8936-00-24-7426.
01-7998-00~57-2800.
01-7090-00-95-5262.
03-8980-00-61-1968.
03-9809-00-45-1097.
03-8899-00-37-0046.
03-9809-00~17-2462.
01-7989-04-60-1568.
03-8953-04-81-9832.
02-8945-00-41-2060.
01-7080-00-62-1977.0000
03-9809-00-24-6322.
01-7998-01-08-8621.
01-7998-01-08-6797.
03-8964-00-40-9957.
03-8980-00-84~-0931.0000
01-7989-04-90-6715.
03-8962-00-04-9097.

02/27/17 13:05:33

YrsDlg

[ ROENIENENEN Keojlecfoo o chte]

Unpaid Amount

Taxpayer Name

CHARLES MILLER HEIRS
SEAMARK INC.

L. P. JORDAN HEIRS
THOMAS L. BROTHERS HEIRS
AUDREY TILLETT

LEAH BARCO

MOSES MITCHELL HEIRS
ANDERSON CARTWRIGHT SR.
CHRISTINE RIDDICK
DAISEY WILLIAMS BURNHAM
JOE GRIFFIN HEIRS
MARIE MERCER

BERNICE PUGH

TINA RENEE LEARY

JOHN F. SAWYER HEIRS
WILLIAMSBURG VACATION
MICHAEL OBER

ELIZABETH LONG

TODD ALLEN RIGGS

EMMA BRITE HEIRS
MAIDIA S. CECIL HEIRS
LASELLE ETHERIDGE SR.
SANDERS CROSSING OF CAMDEN CO
DAVID B. KIRBY

WILLIE L. TURNER ETAL
EDWARD E. HARRIS JR.
LASALLE SEARS HEIRS
CARL TEUSCHER

ANDREW FEREBEE HEIRS
CECIL BARNARD HEIRS

Delinguencies Top-30 Oldest

SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SQUTH MILLS
SQUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SOQUTH MILLS
CAMDEN

CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SHILOH
SHILOH
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SHILOH

6.B.1

Property Address

HORSESHOE RD

HOLLY RD
108 CAMDEN AVE
171 NECK RD —
195 BUNKER HILL RD ™
165 BUNKER HILL RD b
271 SLEEPY HOLLOW RD I
105 BLOODFIELD RD -
RAYMONS CREEK RD -
117 GRIFFIN RD g
IVY NECK RD 2
113 BOURBON ST a
111 LINTON RD -
OLD SWAMP RD .
CAMDEN POINT RD +
CENTERPOINT RD o
HIBISCUS Q
LITTLE CREEK RD Q
116 BLOODFIELD RD @
113 TROTMAN RD x
168 BUSHELL RD Ig
117 OTTERS PL
499 SAILBOAT RD >
1289 343 HWY N =
1295 343 HWY N =
291 BARTLETT RD o
218 BROAD CREEK RD S
1334 343 HWY N =
NECK RD <
©
0o
—
N
N~
—
o
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Roll Parcel Number

0001623
0001709
0000738
0001538
0001046
0000659
0001883
0001072
0001827
0001104
0002194
0002185
0000543
0001230
0001694
0001681
0000297
0001476
0001010
0001546
0000905
0001106
0001250
0002565
0001976
0001703
0000688
0001693
0001853
0001952

helieRiviivRiv v RivlivivRisRiv A Riciv ki vRiviivRiedichioliviiviie v v i v iyl v o)

02/27/17 13:05:51

Unpaid Amount YrsDlg Taxpayer Name

3,885.70
1,960.50
904.69
882.79
844 .03
835.00
778.89
730.04
652.02
614 .60
538.90
448.60
420.48
411.11
344 .85
313.74
309.81
306.68
304.99
303.28
291.52
280.28
277.93
277.38
275.54
270.00
269.10
261.90
249.66
238.91

JEFFREY EDWIN DAVIS
THIEN VAN NGUYEN

DUNG LE TRAN
PAM BUNDY
KAREN BUNDY

MORGAN ROBERSON
DIRECT TV,LLC
TRACK 1 OF CAMDEN
JAMES NYE

STEVE WILLIAMS

MIKE TAYLOR
RAYBURN BURGESS
GEORGE ROWLAND

VAN ZANDER
WAVERLY M SAWYER
ALLIANCE NISSAN
JOHN FRANCIS HICKS

UTWOHWBRNONNBRENUIVITOINRENR WO VO

Delinquencies Top-30 Unpaid

ATLANTIC COASTAL CLEARING
JOHN MATTHEW CARTER
LESLIE ETHERIDGE JR

RICKY'S WELDING, INC.

MICHAEL & MICHELLE STONE

THOMAS B.THOMAS HEIRS
ADAM D. & TRACY J.W. JONES

KEVIN & STACY ANDERSON
JAMI ELIZABETH VANHORN
MICHELE LEE TAYLOR-DUKE
DUANE EDWARD DUNIVAN

ANA ALICIA MARTINEZ LOPEZ

SANDY BOTTOM MATERIALS, INC

HERTFORD
SHILOH
SHILOH
SHILOH
SHILOH
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SHILOH
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SHAWBORO
ELIZABETH CITY
SHILOH
CAMDEN
SHILOH
SOUTH MILLS
SOUTH MILLS
SQUTH MILLS
SHILOH
MOYOCK
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
CAMDEN
SOUTH MILLS

6.B.1

Property Address

158 HWY

431 158 US W

MIC MAC TRAIL

133 EDGEWATER DR
864 SANDY HOOK RD
255 SAILBOAT ROAD
105 AARON DR

431 158 US W

107 RIDGE ROAD

849 SANDY HOOK RD S
143 158 US W

101 ROBIN CT W

150 158 HWY W

150 158 HWY W

114 GARRINGTON ISLAND
CAMDEN CAUSEWAY

116 EDGEWATER DR
431 158 US W

111 AARON DR

617 MAIN ST

108 BINGHAM RD

115 WAYLAND CT

110 AARON DR

812 TULLS CREEK RD
HAVENWOOD DR

158 HWY W

138 COUNTRY CLUB RD
319 PONDEROSA RD

/

X
N zﬁ} ,}’.\»‘ﬂ@;y

Attachment: Monthly Tax Report - Jan 2017 (1584 : Monthly Tax Report - January 2017)
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6.B.1

Roll Parcel Number YrsDlg Unpaid Amount Taxpayer Name City Property Address
P 0000738 10 904 .69 LESLIE ETHERIDGE JR CAMDEN
P 0001046 10 844 .03 THIEN VAN NGUYEN SHILOH 133 EDGEWATER DR
P 0001072 10 730.04 PAM BUNDY SHILOH 105 AARON DR
P 0001106 10 280.28 JAMI ELIZABETH VANHORN SOUTH MILLS 617 MAIN ST
P 0000248 10 219.71 ROBERT H. OWENS CAMDEN 363 # 15 —~
P 0001538 9 882.79 JEFFREY EDWIN DAVIS HERTFORD MIC MAC TRAIL :
P 0001540 9 120.95 DAVID LUKE ELIZABETH CITY CAMDEN CAUSEWAY o
P 0001709 8 1,960.50 JOHN MATTHEW CARTER CAMDEN 158 HWY N
P 0001693 8 261.90 ALLIANCE NISSAN CAMDEN 158 HWY W >
P 0001673 8 177.05 THOMAS PHILLIP WINSLOW CAMDEN 158 HWY W E
P 0000316 8 115.56 JAMES P. JONES CAMDEN 142 SANDHEHILLS RD S
P 0001827 7 652.02 KAREN BUNDY CAMDEN 431 158 US W c
P 0001883 6 778.89 DUNG LE TRAN SHILOH 255 SAILBOAT ROAD ©
P 0001697 6 144.00 RANDY BRICKHOUSE CAMDEN 150 158 HWY W —
P 0001722 6 140.55 JANET LEARY SOUTH MILLS LINTON ROAD !
P 0001230 5 411.11 JAME